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NOTICE

KALYANI INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
CIN : L65993PN2009PLC134196

Registered Office : Mundhwa, Pune 411 036
Phone No. : 020 � 26715000 / 66215000, Fax No. : 020 � 26821124

Website : www.kalyani-investment.com, E-mail : investor@kalyani-investment.com

NOTICE is hereby given that the Twelfth Annual General Meeting of the Members of Kalyani Investment 

Company Limited will be held on Friday, September 3, 2021, at 2.00 p.m. (I.S.T.), through Video Conferencing 

(“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), to transact the following business :

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To consider and adopt :

 a) the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended  March 31, 2021 

and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

 b) the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2021 

and the Report of the Auditors thereon.   

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mrs.Deeksha A. Kalyani (DIN 00129026), who retires by rotation and being 

eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

By Order of the Board of Directors

For Kalyani Investment Company Limited

May 18, 2021    Akshay Chikodikar

Pune      Company Secretary

NOTES  :

1. In view of the ongoing outbreak of the COVID 19 pandemic, social distancing norms to be followed and the continuing 

restrictions on movement of persons at several places in the country and pursuant to General Circular Nos. 14/2020, 

17/2020, 20/2020 and 02/2021 dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 5, 2020 and January 13, 2021 respectively, 

issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (collectively referred to as „MCA Circulars‰) and Circular No. SEBI/HO/

CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 and SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated May 12, 2020 and January 15,  2021 

respectively, issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India  („SEBI Circulars‰) and in compliance with the provisions 

of the Companies Act, 2013 („Act‰) and  SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

(„Listing Regulations‰), the Twelfth Annual General Meeting („AGM‰) of the Company will be conducted through 

Video Conferencing („VC‰) / Other Audio Visual Means („OAVM‰), without the physical presence of the Members 

at a common venue.

2. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual 

Report 2020-21 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered 

with the Company / Depositories. Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2020-21 will also be 

available on the CompanyÊs website www.kalyani-investment.com, websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE 

Limited at www.bseindia.com and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.nseindia.com and on the 

website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com

3. In terms of the MCA Circulars, since the physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with, there is no 

requirement of appointment of proxies. Accordingly, the facility of appointment of proxies by Members under 

Section 105 of the Act will not be available for the AGM.  

4. National Securities Depositories Limited („NSDL‰) will be providing facility for voting through remote e-Voting and 

for participation in the AGM through VC / OAVM Facility and e-Voting during the AGM. 

5. Members may join the AGM through VC / OAVM Facility by following the procedure as mentioned below, which 

shall be kept open for the Members from 1:15 p.m. (I.S.T.) i.e. 45 minutes before the scheduled start time of the AGM 

and will be open upto 15 minutes after the scheduled start time of AGM. 

6. Members may note that the VC / OAVM Facility, provided by NSDL, allows participation of 1,000 Members on 

a on a first-come-first-served basis. This will not include large shareholders (i.e. shareholders holding 2% or more 

shareholding), promoters, institutional investors, directors, key managerial personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit 

Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who 

are allowed to attend the AGM without any restriction on account of first-come-first-served principle. 

7. Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under 

Section 103 of the Act. 
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8. Members holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to intimate any change in their postal address, email 

address, Permanent Account Number (PAN), bank details, ECS details etc. to their respective Depository Participants 

and those holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate the said changes to the Registrar and Transfer 

Agent of the Company, at their address given below. 

9. Equity Shares of the Company are under compulsory demat trading by all investors. Those shareholders, who have 

not dematerialized their shareholding, are advised to dematerialize the same to avoid any inconvenience in future.

10. The SEBI has mandated that w.e.f. April 1, 2019 except in case of transmission or transposition of securities, requests 

for effecting transfer of securities shall not be processed unless the securities are held in the dematerialized form with 

a depository. In view of the same, members holding shares in physical form are requested to get them converted into 

dematerialized form. 

11. Brief Profile of Director(s) proposed to be re-appointed, names of companies in which they hold directorships and 

memberships / chairmanships of Board Committees, shareholding and relationships between directors inter-se, are 

provided in the Report on Corporate Governance forming part of the Annual Report. 

12. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number 

(PAN) by every participant in the securities market. Members holding shares in dematerialized form are therefore 

requested to submit their PAN to the Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining the demat account. 

Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the 

Company, at their address given below.    

13. Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice. 

14. Members, who need assistance before or during the AGM, can contact Mr. Umesh Sharma of Link Intime India Private 

Limited, Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company, at umesh.sharma@linkintime.co.in or call on 020-26161629 / 

26160084. Kindly quote your name, DP ID and Client ID / Folio No. and EVEN in all your communications. 

15. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, under Section 170 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and the Register of Contracts or arrangements in which Directors are interested under Section 189 of 

Companies Act, 2013 and all documents referred to in this Notice and accompanying Explanatory Statement pursuant 

to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, will be available for electronic inspection of the Members from the date of 

circulation of this Notice upto the date of AGM i.e. September 3, 2021. Members seeking to inspect, can send an e-mail 

to Secretarial Department of the Company at investor@kalyani-investment.com. 

16. The Instructions for Members for remote e-Voting and joining Annual General Meeting are as under :  

 The remote e-Voting period begins on Tuesday, August 31, 2021 at 9.00 a.m. and ends on Thursday, September 2, 2021 

at 5.00 p.m. The remote e-Voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names 

appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the cut-off date i.e. August 27, 2021, may cast their votes 

electronically. The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their share in the paid up equity share capital of 

the Company as on the cut-off date, being August 27, 2021. 

 The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of „Two Steps‰ which are mentioned below :

 Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

 A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 

mode 

 In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 

Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email ID in 

their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.
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Type of shareholders

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL

Login Method

1.  If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS 
facility, please visit the e-Services website of NSDL. 
Open web browser by typing the following URL : 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page 
of e-Services is launched, click on the „Beneficial 
Owner‰ icon under „Login‰ which is available 
under „IDeAS‰ section. A new screen will open. 
You will have to enter your User ID and Password. 
After successful authentication, you will be able to 
see e-Voting services. Click on „Access to e-Voting‰ 
under e-Voting services and you will be able to see 
e-Voting page. Click on options available against 
company name or e-Voting service provider 
- NSDL and you will be re-directed to NSDL 
e-Voting website for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting 
& voting during the meeting.

2.  If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, 
option to register is available at https://eservices.
nsdl.com. Select „Register Online for IDeAS‰ 
Portal or click at  https://eservices.nsdl.com/
SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3.  Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web 
browser by typing the following URL: https://
www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page 
of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon 
„Login‰ which is available under ÂShareholder 
/ MemberÊ section. A new screen will open. You 
will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen 
digit demat account number held with NSDL), 
Password / OTP and a Verification Code as shown 
on the screen. After successful authentication, 
you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site 
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on 
options available against company name or 
e-Voting service provider - NSDL and you will be 
redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period 
or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting. 

1.  Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, 
they can login through their user id and password. 
Option will be made available to reach e-Voting 
page without any further authentication. The URL 
for users to login to Easi / Easiest are https://
web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or www.
cdslindia.com and click on NEW System Myeasi.

2.  After successful login of Easi / Easiest the user will 
be also able to see the E-Voting Menu. The Menu 
will have links of e-Voting service provider i.e. 
NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote.

 Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below :

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL



4

3.  If the user is not  registered for Easi / Easiest, option 
to register is available at https://web.cdslindia.
com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

4.  Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting 
page by providing demat Account Number and 
PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com home 
page. The system will authenticate the user by 
sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 
recorded in the demat Account. After successful 
authentication, user will be provided links for the 
respective ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in 
progress.

 

You can also login using the login credentials of your 
demat account through your Depository Participant 
registered with NSDL / CDSL for e-Voting facility.  Once 
login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you 
click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL 
/ CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, 
wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on options 
available against company name or e-Voting service 
provider-NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 
voting during the meeting.

Individual Shareholders (holding securities in 
demat mode) login through their depository 
participants

B) Login Method for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1.  Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.
evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  

2.  Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon „Login‰ which is available under 
ÂShareholder / MemberÊ section.

3.  A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password / OTP and a Verification 
Code as shown on the screen.

 Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.
nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in 
credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

Important note : Members who are unable to retrieve User ID / Password are advised to use Forget User 
ID and Forget Password option available at above mentioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to 
login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL

 Login type  Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990  
and  1800 22 44 30

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request  at helpdesk.
evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022-23058738 or 
022-23058542-43
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Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat  Your User ID is :
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with NSDL.

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with CDSL.

c) For Members holding shares in Physical 
Form.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 
12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** 
then your user ID is 12**************

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered 
with the company
For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 
101456 then user ID is 101456001***

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below :

 a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to login and cast 
your vote.

 b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the Âinitial passwordÊ 
which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your Âinitial passwordÊ, you need to enter the 
Âinitial passwordÊ and the system will force you to change your password.

 c) How to retrieve your Âinitial passwordÊ?

 (i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your Âinitial passwordÊ 
is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your 
mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password 
to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL 
account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ÂUser IDÊ and 
your Âinitial passwordÊ.   

 (ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those 
shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the „ Initial password‰ or have forgotten your 
password : 

 a) Click on „Forgot User Details/Password?‰(If you are holding shares in your demat account with 
NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

 b) Physical User Reset Password?‰ (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com

 c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name 
and your registered address etc.

 d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the 
e-Voting system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to „Terms and Conditions‰ by selecting on the check box.

8. Now, you will have to click on „Login‰ button.

9. After you click on the „Login‰ button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2 : Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies „EVEN‰ in which you are 
holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

2. Select „EVEN‰ of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period 
and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on 
„VC/OAVM‰ link placed under „Join General Meeting‰. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number 
of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on „Submit‰ and also „Confirm‰ when 
prompted. 

4.  Your User ID details are given below :
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5. Upon confirmation, the message „Vote cast successfully‰ will be displayed. 

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation 
page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned 
copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen 
signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail 
to deulkarcs@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost 
care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-Voting website will be disabled upon five 
unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through 
the „Forgot User Details/Password?‰ or „Physical User Reset Password?‰ option available on                                            
www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password. 

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and 
e-Voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or 
call on toll free no. : 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30  or send a request to Ms.Pallavi Mhatre, Manager, 
NSDL at evoting@nsdl.co.in 

Process for those shareholders whose email IDs are not registered with the depositories for procuring 
user id and password and registration of email IDs for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice :

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy 
of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR 
(self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to pune@linkintime.co.in with copy marked to 
evoting@kalyani-investment.com

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID and CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID 
or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, 
PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar 
Card) to pune@linkintime.co.in with copy marked to evoting@kalyani-investment.com. If you are 
an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the 
login method explained at Step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

3. Alternatively shareholder/member may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id 
and password for e-Voting by providing above mentioned documents.

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat 
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to 
update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting 
facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS 
UNDER :

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for 
remote e-Voting.

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and 
have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred 
from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM.

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they 
will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for 
e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for remote e-Voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER :

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL 
e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL 
e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of „VC/OAVM link‰ placed under „Join 
General meeting‰ menu against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed 
under Join General Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member 
login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have 
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the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the 
same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 
disturbance during the meeting.

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting 
via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. 
It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid 
glitches.

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in 
advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 
investor@kalyani-investment.com. The same will be replied by the company suitably.

6. Shareholders holding shares as on the cut-off date i.e. August  27, 2021, who would like to express 
their views / ask questions during the AGM, will have to register themselves as a „Speaker‰ and 
send their request mentioning their name, demat account number / folio number, email id, mobile 
number at investor@kalyani-investment.com between August 27, 2021 (9.00 a.m.) to August 31, 2021 
(5.00 p.m.). Only those members who have registered themselves as a Speaker will only be allowed to 
express their views / ask questions during the AGM. The Company reserves the right to restrict the 
number of speakers depending on the availability of time for the AGM.

17.  Mr.S.V. Deulkar and / or Mr.Sridhar Mudliar and / or Mrs.Meenakshi Deshmukh, Partners of SVD & 
Associates, Company Secretaries has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-Voting process in a 
fair and transparent manner. 

18.  The Scrutinizer shall immediately after conclusion of AGM, unblock the votes cast through e-Voting at AGM 
and remote e-Voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and 
shall submit not later than 48 hours of conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated ScrutinizerÊs Report of the total 
votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or the person authorized by him in writing who shall 
countersign the same. The Chairman or the person authorized by him, shall declare the result of the voting 
forthwith. 

19.  The results of voting along with the ScrutinizerÊs Report shall be placed on the CompanyÊs website                         
www.kalyani-investment.com and on the website of NSDL immediately after the declaration of result by the 
Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing. The results shall also be immediately forwarded to the 
Stock Exchanges.

Registrar & Transfer Agent

LINK INTIME INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Block No.202, Akshay Complex, 2nd Floor, Off Dhole Patil Road, Near Ganesh Mandir, Pune - 411 001

Phone Nos. : 020 - 26161629 / 26160084, Telefax : 020 - 26163503

E-mail : pune@linkintime.co.in

By Order of the Board of Directors

For Kalyani Investment Company Limited

May 18, 2021    Akshay Chikodikar

Pune      Company Secretary
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12th Annual Report 2020-2021

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY

Corporate Governance is ongoing process and Kalyani Investment has always focused on good corporate governance, which 
is a key driver of sustainable corporate growth, long term value creation and trust. The CompanyÂs Corporate Governance is 
a set of systems and procedures to ensure that the affairs of the Company are managed in a way which ensures accountability, 
transparency and fairness in all its transactions. 

The Company is in compliance with the requirements stipulated under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended („Listing Regulations‰) with regard to Corporate Governance, applicable 
for the Financial Year 2020-21.

This chapter of the report, along with the information given under ÂManagement Discussion and AnalysisÊ and ÂShareholder 
InformationÊ constitutes the compliance report of the Company on Corporate Governance.

1.  BOARD LEVEL ISSUES 

 COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

 As on March 31, 2021, the Board of Directors of Kalyani Investment comprised Seven Directors. The Board consists of 
Non-Executive Chairman, who is a relative of Promoter and Six Non-Executive Directors, of which five are Independent. 
The composition of the Board is in conformity with Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations. Details of composition of 
the Board of Directors are given in Table 1.  

 NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS

 During the year 2020-21, the Board of the Company met four times on June 26, 2020, August 10, 2020, November 9, 2020 
and February 9, 2021. All the meetings were held in such manner that the gap between two consecutive meetings was 
not more than one hundred and twenty days.  

 DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORD AND DIRECTORSHIPS

 Table 1 : The composition of the Board, the category of Directors, their attendance at the meetings of the Board of Directors 
held during the year 2020-21 and at the last Annual General Meeting held on September 25, 2020 :

Name of the Director Category Particulars of Attendance

 Number of Board Meetings  Last AGM

   Held Attended 

Mr.Amit B. Kalyani Relative of Promoter, Non-Executive 4 4 Yes

Mrs.Deeksha A. Kalyani  Relative of Promoter, Non-Executive  4 4 Yes

Mr.B.B. Hattarki Independent 4 4 Yes

Mr.R.K. Goyal  Independent 4 4 Yes

Mr.S.K. Adivarekar Independent 4 4 Yes

Mr.S.G. Joglekar Independent 4 4 Yes 

Mrs.Shruti A. Shah Independent 4 4 Yes

Table 2 : The details of the number of Directorships held and Committee Memberships / Chairmanships held in 
Indian Public Limited Companies, whether listed or not, including the Company, as on March 31, 2021 and details of 
Directorships held in other Listed Companies :

Name of the Director In Indian Public Limited Companies,  Directorships held in  other
 whether listed or not, including Kalyani  Listed Companies
 Investment Company Limited 

 Directorships  *Committee *Committee Name of the Company Type of 
   Memberships Chairmanships  Directorship
Mr.Amit B. Kalyani 9 1 — Bharat Forge Limited Executive 
    Hikal Limited Non-Executive 
    BF Utilities Limited Non-Executive 
    Kalyani Steels Limited Non-Executive 
    BF Investment Limited  Non-Executive 
    Schaeffler India Limited Independent
Mrs.Deeksha A. Kalyani  1 1 — —   —

Mr.B.B. Hattarki 8 4 5 Automotive Axles Limited Independent  
    BF Utilities Limited Independent  
    Kalyani Steels Limited Independent  
    BF Investment Limited Independent  
Mr.R.K. Goyal 4 4 — Kalyani Steels Limited Executive 
    Hikal Limited Independent
Mr.S.K. Adivarekar 4 2 2 Kalyani Steels Limited Independent 
    BF Utilities Limited Independent 
Mr.S.G. Joglekar 4 1 — BF Investment Limited  Independent 

Mrs.Shruti A. Shah  4 2 — Balkrishna Industries Limited Independent 
    Kalyani Steels Limited  Independent 
    Jai Corp Limited Independent

* Memberships / Chairmanships of Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee.
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 Certificate from M/s SVD &Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, confirming that none of the Directors on 

the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Director of the 

companies, by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such Statutory 

Authority is enclosed as Annexure „A‰.  

 INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

 Based on the declarations received from the Independent Directors, the Board of Directors has confirmed that the 

Independent Directors on the Board of the Company fulfill the conditions of independence specified in Section 149(6) 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations and are independent of the CompanyÊs 

management. The terms of appointment of the Independent Directors are disclosed on the website of the Company viz. 

www.kalyani-investment.com/financial/policies/

 BOARD PROCEDURE 

 Information Supplied to the Board 

 Among others, information supplied to the Board includes :

 l Annual operating plans and budgets, capital budgets and any update thereof.

 l Quarterly results for the Company.

 l Minutes of meetings of Audit Committee and other committees of the Board.

 l Appointment, remuneration and resignation of Directors.

 l The information on recruitment and remuneration of senior officers just below the level of the Board, including the 

appointment or removal of Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary.

 l Show cause, demand, prosecution notices and penalty notices, if any, which are materially important.

 l Fatal or serious accidents, dangerous occurrences, any material effluent or pollution problems.

 l Any material default in financial obligations to and by the Company.

 l Details of any Joint Venture / Collaboration Agreement.

 l Transactions that involve substantial payment towards goodwill, brand equity or intellectual property.

 l Sale of investments, assets which are material in nature and not in normal course of business.

 l Making of loans and investments of surplus funds.

 l Quarterly details of foreign exchange exposures and the steps taken by management to limit the risks of adverse 

exchange rate movement, if material.

 l Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory or listing requirements and shareholders service such as non-payment 

of dividend, delay in share transfer etc.

 l General Notices of interest by Directors, declaration of Independent Directors at the time of appointment / annual 

declaration.

 l Formation / Reconstitution of Committees of the Board.

 l Dividend declaration.

 l Appointment and fixing remuneration, of the Auditors as recommended by the Audit Committee.

 l Annual Financial Results of the Company, AuditorÊs Report and the Report of the Board of Directors.

 l Compliance certificates for all the laws as applicable to the Company.

 l CSR activities carried out by the Company and expenditure made thereon.

 The Board of Directors of the Company is presented with detailed notes, along with the agenda papers, well in advance 

of each Board and Committee Meeting. All material information is incorporated in the agenda for facilitating focused 

and meaningful discussions at the meeting. In special and exceptional circumstances, additional items on the agenda 

are permitted with the consent of all the Independent Directors. 

 CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION 

 The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company give annual certification on financial reporting 

and internal controls to the Board in terms of Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations. The Chief Executive Officer 

and the Chief Financial Officer also give quarterly certification on financial results, while placing the financial results 

before the Board in terms of Regulation 33(2)(a) of the Listing Regulations. 
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 CODE OF CONDUCT 

 The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management of the Company. The Code has 

been circulated to all the members of the Board and Senior Management and the same is available on the CompanyÊs 

website. (Web-link : http://www.kalyani-investment.com/financial/policies/)

 The Board members and the senior management have affirmed the compliance with the Code. A declaration to that 

effect signed by the Chairman of the Company is contained in this Annual Report.

 COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

 As on March 31, 2021 the Company has Audit Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and Share Transfer Committee. The Board 

Committees are set up and reconstituted, as and when necessary, under the formal approval of the Board to carry out 

clearly defined role which are considered to be performed by the members of the respective Board Committees. The 

CompanyÊs guidelines relating to Board Meetings are applicable to the Committee Meetings, as far as may be practicable. 

Minutes of the proceedings of the Committee Meetings are placed before the Board Meeting for consideration and noting. 

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of all Committees. 

 AUDIT COMMITTEE

 As on March 31, 2021, the Audit Committee of Kalyani Investment comprised three members, of which all are Independent 

Directors. All the members have accounting and finance management expertise. 

 The Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 25, 2020 was attended by the Chairman of the Audit 

Committee, Mr.B.B. Hattarki, to answer the shareholdersÊ queries.

 The representatives of the Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and remaining Board Members are permanent invitees 

to the Audit Committee Meetings. 

 During the year 2020-21 Audit Committee met on June 26, 2020, August 10, 2020, November 9, 2020 and February 9, 

2021 and there were no instances, where the Board had not accepted the recommendations of the Audit Committee. 

Particulars relating to the attendance at the Audit Committee meetings held during the year are given below :

  Name of the Director Category Number of Meetings held Number of Meetings attended

  Mr.B.B. Hattarki, Chairman  Independent  4 4

  Mr.R.K. Goyal Independent 4 4

  Mr.S.K. Adivarekar Independent 4 4

 The Role / Terms of reference of the Audit Committee of the Company includes of the following : 

 l Oversight of the CompanyÊs financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that 

the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

 l Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of Auditors of the Company.

 l Approval of payment to Statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by the Statutory Auditors.

 l Reviewing with the management, the annual financial statements and auditorÊs report thereon before submission to 

the Board for approval, with particular reference to :

   Ø Matters required to be included in the DirectorÊs Responsibility Statement to be included in the BoardÊs Report in 

       terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.

    Ø Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.

   Ø Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management.

   Ø Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings.

   Ø Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements.

   Ø Disclosure of any related party transactions.

   Ø Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report, if any.



5

KALYANI  INVESTMENT

 l Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for approval.

 l  Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, 
rights issue, preferential issue etc.), the statement of funds utilized for the purposes other than those stated in the 
offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization 
of proceeds of a public or rights issue and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in 
this matter.

 l Reviewing and monitoring the auditorÊs independence and performance and effectiveness of audit process.

 l Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties.

 l Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

 l Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary.

 l Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems.

 l Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control 
systems.

 l Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, 
staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure, coverage and frequency of internal 
audit.

 l Discussions with internal auditors on any significant findings and follow up thereon.

 l Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected 
fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board.

 l Discussions with statutory auditors before audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as                          
post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern, if any.

 l To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders 
(in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.

 l To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism.

 l Approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer after assessing the qualifications, experience and background 
etc. of the candidate.

 l Reviewing the utilization of loans and / or advances from / investment by the Company in the subsidiary exceeding 
` 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans / advances / 
investments.

 l Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

 Review of Information by the Audit Committee :

 l Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations.

 l Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by management. 

 l Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors.

 l Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses.

 l The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor.

 Powers of Audit Committee :

 l To investigate any activity within its terms of reference.

 l To seek information from any employee.

 l To obtain outside legal or other professional advice.

 l To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary.

 STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE  

 As on March 31, 2021, Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprised of three members viz. Mr.B.B. Hattarki, Chairman, 
Mrs.Deeksha A. Kalyani and Mr.R.K. Goyal. During the year 2020-21, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee met on 
June 26, 2020, August 8, 2020, November 7, 2020 and February 8, 2021.

 Particulars relating to the attendance at the Stakeholders Relationship Committee meetings held during the year are 
given below :

  Name of the Director Category Number of Meetings held Number of Meetings attended

  Mr.B.B. Hattarki, Chairman Independent 4 4

  Mrs.Deeksha A. Kalyani Non-Executive 4 4

  Mr.R.K. Goyal Independent 4 4
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 Role of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee :

 l Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the Company including complaints related to transfer / transmission 

of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new / duplicate certificates, general 

meetings etc.

 � Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.

 � Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various services being rendered 

by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

 � Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of unclaimed 

dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants / annual reports / statutory notices by the shareholders 

of the Company.

 COMPLIANCE OFFICER 

 Mr. Akshay Chikodikar, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer.

 STATUS OF INVESTORS’ COMPLAINTS 

 During the year, one complaint was received and redressed. The status of complaints is also reported to the Board of 

Directors, as an agenda item.  

 DESIGNATED EXCLUSIVE EMAIL-ID 

 The Company has also provided separate E-mail ID : investor@kalyani-investment.com exclusively for investor servicing.

 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

 As on March 31, 2021, Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprised of three members viz. Mr.B.B. Hattarki, 

Chairman, Mr.Amit B. Kalyani and Mr.R.K. Goyal. During the year 2020-21, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

met on June 26, 2020.

 Role of Nomination and Remuneration Committee :

 l Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of Directors and 

recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the Directors, key managerial personnel and other 

employees.

 l  Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the Board.

 l Devising a policy on Board diversity.  

 l Identifying the persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior management in 

accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal.

 l Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the report of 

performance evaluation of independent directors. 

 l Recommend to the Board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to Senior Management.

 Particulars relating to the attendance at the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings held during the year 

 are given below :

      Name of the Director Category Number of Meetings held Number of Meetings attended

      Mr.B.B. Hattarki, Chairman Independent 1 1

    Mr.Amit B. Kalyani Non-Executive 1 1

   Mr.R.K. Goyal Independent 1 1

 PERFORMANCE EVALUATION CRITERIA FOR DIRECTORS   

 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has devised criteria for performance evaluation of Directors including 
independent Directors. The said criteria provides for certain parameters like seniority / experience, number of years 
on the Board, Board / Committee meetings attended, DirectorÊs position on the CompanyÊs Board Committees, other 
relevant factors and performance of the Company.
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 DIRECTORS WITH MATERIALLY PECUNIARY OR BUSINESS RELATIONSHIP WITH THE COMPANY

 There has been no materially relevant pecuniary transactions or relationship between the Company and its non-executive 
and / or independent Directors for the year 2020-21.

 POLICY ON BOARD DIVERSITY AND NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

 The Board on recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, has approved Policy on 
Board Diversity and Nomination and Remuneration Policy and the same are available on the CompanyÊs website.                                                                     
(Web-link : http ://www.kalyani-investment.com/ financial/policies/). These Policies provides for criteria for 
determining qualifications, positive attributes & independence of director as well as remuneration policy for directors, 
key managerial personnel and other employees, with an objective to retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure 
long term sustainability of talented managerial persons and create competitive advantage. 

 Skills / Expertise / Competencies for the Board of Directors  

 The following is the list of core Skills / Expertise / Competencies identified by the Board of Directors for the Board 
members, in the context of the CompanyÊs business and that the said skills are available with the Board members :

     Industry  Strategy  Financial Legal and Corporate 
 Name of the Director Knowledge / & Planning Skills Regulatory Governance

     experience   knowledge and Risk 
        Management

  Mr.Amit B. Kalyani, Chairman “Ö Ö Ö Ö“ Ö“ “

  Mrs.Deeksha A.  Kalyani “Ö “Ö “Ö Ö Ö

  Mr.B.B. Hattarki “Ö “Ö “Ö Ö Ö

  Mr.S.K. Adivarekar Ö “Ö “Ö Ö“ Ö“

  Mr.R.K. Goyal  “Ö “Ö “Ö Ö“ Ö

  Mr.S.G. Joglekar “Ö “Ö “Ö Ö Ö

  Mrs.Shruti A. Shah “Ö “Ö “Ö Ö“ Ö

 Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors 

 The Non-Executive Directors draw remuneration in the form of commission, upto an aggregate amount not exceeding 
3% of the net profits of the Company for the year, as may be decided by the Board of Directors from time to time.

 Payments to Non-Executive Directors are decided based on multiple criteria of seniority / experience, number of years 
on the Board, Board / Committee meetings attended, DirectorÊs position on the CompanyÊs Board Committees, other 
relevant factors and performance of the Company. The Company does not have any Stock Option Scheme.

 Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees 

 Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves a balance between fixed and incentive 
pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives, appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals. 
The Remuneration will be such, so as to ensure that the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets 
appropriate performance benchmarks.

 Table 3 : The details of the remuneration package of Directors during the year 2020-21, their shareholding in the Company 
and relationship with other directors, if any : 

(` in Million)

  Name of the Director Relationship with other directors Commission# No. of Shares held

  Mr.Amit B. Kalyani  * — 3,119

  Mrs.Deeksha A. Kalyani  ** — 50

  Mr.B.B. Hattarki None 0.40 —

  Mr.S.K. Adivarekar None 0.40 —

  Mr.R.K. Goyal None — —

  Mr.S.G. Joglekar None — —

  Mrs.Shruti A. Shah None 0.40 —

 # Commission proposed and payable after approval of accounts by members of the Company in the ensuing Annual 
  General Meeting (AGM)

 * Husband of Mrs.Deeksha A. Kalyani 

 ** Wife of Mr.Amit B. Kalyani 

 None of the employees are related to any of the Directors of the Company.
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 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE  

 As on March 31, 2021, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee comprised of three members viz.                           
Mr.B.B. Hattarki, Chairman, Mr.S.K. Adivarekar and Mr.R.K. Goyal. During the year 2020-21, the Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee met on June 26, 2020 and November 7, 2020.  

 Terms of Reference :   

 l Formulation and recommendation to the Board, CSR Policy, which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by 
the Company as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

 l Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred in CSR Policy. 

 l  Monitor CSR Policy of the Company from time to time.

 The CommitteeÊs core responsibility is to assist the Board in discharging its social responsibility by formulating and 
monitoring implementation of the framework of the CSR Policy. The CSR Policy of the Company is available on the 
CompanyÊs website. (Web-link : http://www.kalyani-investment.com/financial/policies/)

 Particulars relating to the attendance at the CSR Committee meetings held during the year are given below :

  Name of the Director Category Number of Meetings held Number of Meetings attended

  Mr.B.B. Hattarki, Chairman  Independent  2 2

  Mr.S.K. Adivarekar Independent 2 2 

  Mr.R.K. Goyal Independent 2 2

 SHARE TRANSFER COMMITTEE  

 The Company has constituted the Share Transfer Committee, to approve share transfers, transmissions, consolidation, 
sub-division, deletion of name, issue of duplicate certificates and requests for rematerialization of CompanyÊs 
shares. The Committee comprises of Mr.B.B. Hattarki and Mr.R.K. Goyal, Directors of the Company. During the year                                   
2020-21, the Share Transfer Committee met on July 10, 2020, October 21, 2020, December 19, 2020, February 27, 2021 
and March 23, 2021. The particulars relating to the attendance at the Share Transfer Committee meetings held during 
the year are given below :

  Name of the Director Category Number of Meetings held Number of Meetings attended

  Mr.B.B. Hattarki Independent 5 5

  Mr.R.K. Goyal Independent 5 5

 INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS MEETING 

 During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on February 9, 2021, inter alia to discuss : 

 l Evaluation of the performance of Non-Independent Directors and Board of Directors, as a whole.

 l Evaluation of the performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the views of Executive 
Directors and Non-Executive Directors.

 l Evaluation of the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company Management and 
the Board of Directors, that is necessary for the Board of Directors to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

  All the Independent Directors except Mr.S.G. Joglekar were present at the meeting. The Directors expressed their 
satisfaction with the evaluation process.  

2. MANAGEMENT 

 MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

 STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY AND THRUST OF THE BUSINESS

 Kalyani Investment is a Core Investment Company holding more than 60% of its net assets in the form of investments 
in equity shares of Group Companies, while more than 90% of its net assets in the form of investments in equity / 
preference shares of or debentures / debts in Group Companies. Since the Company is  Core Investment Company, it is 
not required to obtain Certificate of Registration under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. The thrust 
of business is to hold and continue to hold securities in Kalyani Group Companies.   

 RISKS AND CONCERNS

 Kalyani InvestmentÊs income is mainly from the dividends that may be receivable on investments held by it / may be 
held in future. Any adverse impact on the industries of which securities are held by Kalyani Investment, also have a 
bearing on the performance of Kalyani Investment. Any slowdown in the growth of Indian economy or future volatility 
in global financial market, could also adversely affect the business.   

 INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

 The Company has adequate internal control systems to ensure operational efficiency and accuracy in financial reporting 
and compliance of applicable laws and regulations. 

 The internal control is supplemented by review of internal auditors. Observations of the internal auditors are subject 
to periodic review and compliance monitoring. The Audit Committee of Directors reviews the Internal Audit process 
and the adequacy and effectiveness of internal audit and controls periodically. 
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 Key Financial Ratios 

 The Key Financial Ratios for FY 2020-21 and FY 2019-20, along with explanation for significant changes (change of 25% 
or more) are as follows :  

  Particulars 2020-21 2019-20 Change (%)

  Current Ratio 86.40 34.55 150.10*

  Operating Profit Margin (%) 74.49 89.46 (16.73)

  Net Profit Margin (%) 61.85 88.18 (29.86)**

  Net Worth ( ` in Million) 44,937.28 19,009.40 136.40***

  Return on Total Equity (%) 0.17 2.24 (92.26)****

  Investment / Total assets  98.75 98.10 0.66

 * Dividend income invested in bank fixed deposits.

 ** Reduction in Revenue.

 *** Increase in market value of quoted shares.

 **** Decrease in Profit.

 DISCLOSURES

 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 The Board has approved a policy for related party transactions which has been uploaded on the CompanyÊs website at 
the link : http://www.kalyani-investment.com/financial/policies/). The Company has not entered into any ÂRelated 
Party TransactionsÊ pursuant to Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, during the financial year 2020-21.

 DISCLOSURES BY MANAGEMENT TO THE BOARD 

 All disclosures relating to financial and commercial transactions where Directors may have a potential interest are 
provided to the Board and the interested Directors do not participate in the discussions nor do they vote on such matters.

 WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

 The Company promotes ethical behavior in all its business activities and has put in place a mechanism for reporting 
illegal / unethical behavior. The Company has vigil mechanism named ÂWhistle Blower PolicyÊ, wherein the employees 
/ directors can report the instances of unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or any violation of the Code of 
Conduct and / or laws applicable to the Company and seek redressal. This mechanism provides for direct access to 
the Chairperson of the Audit Committee and appropriate protection to the genuine Whistle Blower, who avails of 
the mechanism. The Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism has been disclosed on the website of the Company.               
(Web-link : http://www.kalyani-investment.com/financial/policies/)

 POLICY ON DETERMINING MATERIAL SUBSIDIARY   

 The Board has approved Policy on Material Subsidiary and the same are available on the CompanyÊs website.                     
(Web-link : http://www.kalyani-investment.com/financial/policies/) The Policy is intended to identify Material 
Subsidiaries and to establish a governance framework for such subsidiaries. The Company does not have any subsidiary 
company.

 INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND INDUCTION  

 The Independent Directors are provided with necessary documents / brochures and reports to enable them to familiarize 
with the CompanyÊs business, procedures and practices. Along with role, function, duties and responsibilities expected 
from Director, the Director is also explained in detail the compliances required from him under the Companies Act, 2013 
the Listing Regulations and other relevant regulations and his affirmation is taken with respect to the same.  

 Further, with a view to familiarize Director with the CompanyÊs operations, the Chairman also has one-to-one discussion 
with the newly appointed Director. These initiatives help the Director to understand the Company, its business and 
the regulatory framework in which the Company operates and equips him to effectively fulfill his role as a Director of 
the Company. The details of this familiarization programme are available on the website of the Company. (Web-link : 
http://www.kalyani-investment.com/financials/policies/)

 DISCLOSURE IN RELATION TO SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK PLACE (PREVENTION, 

PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

 In terms of provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013 („the act‰), the Company has formulated a policy for prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment 
of women at workplace. All women employees (permanent, temporary, contractual and trainees), as well as any women 
visiting the CompanyÊs office premises are covered under the policy. During the year under review, no complaint was 
filed pursuant to the said act.
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3. SHAREHOLDERS 

 DISCLOSURES REGARDING APPOINTMENT OR RE-APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

 Mrs.Deeksha A. Kalyani, Director of the Company is retiring by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and 
being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. 

 Details of Director to be re-appointed are given below :

� Mrs.Deeksha A. Kalyani, born on March 3, 1974, has done her BachelorÊs Degree in Arts (Psychology Hons.) and thereafter 
her MasterÊs Degree in Child Psychology from Tufts University, U.S.A. Mrs. Kalyani is instrumental in driving the 
educational foray of the group. Mrs.Deeksha A. Kalyani is wife of Mr.Amit B. Kalyani, Chairman and holds 50 Equity 
Shares of the Company as on March 31, 2021.

  Date Time   Venue Special Resolutions Passed

  September 25, 2020 2.00 p.m.  Held through Video Conferencing  (VC)/ —

       Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) 

  August 27, 2019 2.00 p.m.  Registered Office of the Company at  Reappointment of  
       Mundhwa, Pune - 411 036 Mr.R.K. Goyal, as an

         Independent Director 

  August 21, 2018 2.00 p.m.  Registered Office of the Company at  Re-appointment of
       Mundhwa,  Pune - 411 036 Mr.B.B. Hattarki, as an
            Independent Director  

 POSTAL BALLOT

 No resolution was put through postal ballot during the Financial Year 2020-21.

 None of the businesses proposed to be transacted in the ensuing Annual General Meeting require passing of resolution 
conducted through postal ballot.

 COMMUNICATION TO SHAREHOLDERS 

 Kalyani Investment puts all vital information about the Company and its performance, including quarterly results, 
official announcements and communication to the investors and analysts on its website www.kalyani-investment.com 
regularly for the benefit of the public at large. 

 During the year, quarterly, half yearly, annual financial results are published in leading newspapers such as Financial 
Express (All Editions) and Loksatta (Pune).

  1. Website 

  The CompanyÊs website contains a separate dedicated section titled „Investors‰. The basic information about the 
Company, as called for in terms of Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations, is provided on the CompanyÊs website 
: www.kalyani-investment.com and the same is updated from time-to-time.

 2. Filing with Stock Exchanges

  Financial Results / other information to Stock Exchanges is filed electronically on BSE Listing Centre for BSE and 
on NEAPS for NSE.  

 3. Annual Report

  Annual Report containing, inter alia, Audited Financial Statements, Consolidated Financial Statements, DirectorsÊ 
Report, Independent AuditorÊs Report and other important information, is circulated to members and others 
entitled thereto in electronic / physical form. The management Discussion and Analysis (MDA) Report and Business 
Responsibility Report (BRR) forms part of the Annual Report and the same is also displayed on the CompanyÊs 
website www.kalyani-investment.com 

 Letters and Transfer Deeds received from shareholders are acted upon and replied promptly. 

 FEES PAID TO STATUTORY AUDITORS 

 The Company has paid the fees of ` 0.34 Million to P G Bhagwat LLP, Chartered Accountants, Pune (Firm Registration 
No.101118W/100682) during the year 2020-21.  

 DETAILS OF NON-COMPLIANCE 

 Kalyani Investment has complied with all the requirements of regulatory authorities. No penalties were imposed on the 
Company by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority on any matter relating to the capital market during 
the period under report.

 GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

 Particulars of General Body Meetings held for the last three years are given below :
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 COMPLIANCE WITH MANDATORY AND DISCRETIONARY REQUIREMENTS    

 The Company is fully compliant with the applicable mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations. The Company 
has adopted the following non-mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations.

 1) Unmodified Opinion(s) in Audit Report

  The Company is in the regime of financial statements with unqualified / unmodified Audit Opinion. 

 2) Reporting of Internal Auditors 

  The Internal Auditors of the Company report to the Audit Committee periodically to ensure independence of the 
  Internal Audit function.

 SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

 COMPANY REGISTRATION DETAILS

 The Company is registered in the State of Maharashtra, India. The Corporate Identity Number (CIN) allotted to the 
Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs is L65993PN2009PLC134196.

 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 Day, Date and Time : Friday, September 3, 2021 at 2.00 p.m.

 Mode of Meeting : Through Video Conferencing („VC‰) / Other Audio Visual Means („OAVM‰)

 FINANCIAL CALENDAR 

 1st April to 31st March

 LISTING

 The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on : 

 1) National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE), Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400 051 

 2) BSE Limited (BSE), Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001

 All annual listing fees due during the year have been paid.

 STOCK CODES

 NSE : KICL

 BSE :  533302

 ISIN in NSDL and CDSL :  INE029L01018

 STOCK DATA

 Table below gives the monthly high and low prices and volumes of trading of Equity Shares of the Company at National 
Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) and BSE Limited (BSE) for the year 2020-21 :

        NSE     BSE

  Month & Year High Low Volume (No. of High  Low Volume (No. of 
    (`) (`) Shares Traded)   (`) (`) Shares Traded)

  April, 2020 1,154.80 951.95 19,802 1,160.00 970.00 2,988

  May, 2020 1,190.00 999.00 14,706 1,185.60 980.05 787

  June, 2020 1,447.90 1,138.65 12,725 1,447.95 1,150.05 1,723

  July, 2020 1,350.95 1,215.00 13,586 1,349.00 1,227.75 1,768

  August, 2020 1,680.00 1,215.00 91,333 1,649.00 1,210.50 217,368

  September, 2020 1,498.80 1,231.10 10,987 1,420.00 1,232.00 1,804

  October, 2020 1,394.00 1,230.00 34,210 1,395.00 1,228.25 183,571

  November, 2020 1,360.95 1,235.05 19,622 1,355.00 1,222.75 4,107

  December, 2020 1,439.90 1,260.90 46,866 1,442.25 1,265.00 229,428

  January, 2021 1,671.95 1,419.95 34,487 1,680.00 1,438.00 4,527

  February, 2021 1,654.00 1,501.85 19,019 1,659.95 1,510.00 2,092

  March, 2021 1,799.00 1,486.45      18,476 1,750.00 1,492.00 104,254
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STOCK PERFORMANCE

Chart ÂAÊ plots the movement of Kalyani InvestmentÊs Equity Shares adjusted closing prices compared to the BSE Sensex.

Chart ÂAÊ : Kalyani InvestmentÊs Share Performance Vs. BSE Sensex

 PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING BY OWNERSHIP AS ON MARCH 31, 2021

  Category of the Shareholder  No. of Equity Shares held Shareholding %

  Promoters  3,213,035 73.60

  Mutual Funds   12,875 0.29

  Financial Institutions / Banks   756 0.02

  Foreign Portfolio Investors  144,731 3.32

  Bodies Corporate  212,345 4.86

  NRIs   14,350 0.33

  Indian Public  767,214 17.58

   TOTAL 4,365,306 100.00

 REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENTS AND SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM 
 M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited, having Registered Office at C-101, 1st Floor, 247 Park, Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg, 

Vikhroli (West) Mumbai � 400 083 and Pune Branch Office at Block No.202, Akshay Complex, 2nd Floor, Off Dhole Patil 
Road, Near Ganesh Mandir, Pune � 411 001 are the Registrar and Transfer Agents of the Company and carry out the 
share transfer work on behalf of the Company. The Equity Shares of the Company are traded on the Stock Exchanges 
compulsorily in demat mode.

 PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING BY SHARE CLASS AS ON MARCH 31, 2021

  Category (Shares) No. of Shareholders No. of Equity Shares held Shareholding %

  Up to 5000            16,671 664,679 15.23

  5,001 to 10,000 19 133,257 3.05

  10,001 to 20,000 6 85,442 1.96

  20,001 to 30,000 —   — —

  30,001 to 40,000 — — —

  40,001 to 50,000 3 133,790 3.06

  50,001 to 100,000 2 151,882 3.48

  100,001 and above 2 3,196,256 73.22

   TOTAL 16,703 4,365,306 100.00

Note : Share prices of Kalyani Investment and BSE Sensex have been indexed to 100 as on first working day of Financial 
Year 2020-21 i.e. April 1, 2020.
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 DEMATERIALIZATION

 The CompanyÊs Equity Shares are under compulsory Demat Trading. As on March 31, 2021, dematerialized shares 
accounted for 98.39% of the total Equity.

 INVESTORS CORRESPONDENCE ADDRESS

 1) Link Intime India Private Limited 2) Kalyani Investment Company Limited

  Registrar & Transfer Agent  Secretarial Department

  Block No.202, Akshay Complex, 2nd Floor,   Mundhwa, Pune - 411 036

  Off Dhole Patil Road, Near Ganesh Mandir,  Phone No. : 020 - 66215000

  Pune - 411 001  Fax No. : 020 - 26821124

  Phone No. : 020 - 26161629 / 26160084  E-mail : investor@kalyani-investment.com

  Telefax : 020 - 26163503

  E-Mail : pune@linkintime.co.in

 DECLARATION ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT

 I, Amit B. Kalyani, Chairman of the Company do hereby declare that all the Board Members and Senior Management 
Personnel have affirmed for the year ended March 31, 2021, compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company laid 
down for them.  

Place : Pune  Amit B. Kalyani 
Date : May 18, 2021      Chairman
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Annexure - A
CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C Clause (10)(i) of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,
The Members
Kalyani Investment Company Limited
Mundhwa
Pune - 411 036

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Kalyani 
Investment Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as Âthe CompanyÊ), having CIN - L65993PN2009PLC134196 and 
having Registered Office at Mundhwa, Pune - 411 036, produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this 
Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para C Clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification 
Number (DIN) status at the portal (www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary) and explanations furnished to us by the 
Company & its officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the 
Financial Year ended on March 31, 2021 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors 
of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India and Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in Company

1. Mr.Amit Babasaheb Kalyani    00089430 16/09/2009

2. Mrs.Deeksha Amit Kalyani    00129026 30/03/2015

3. Mr.Bhalachandra Basappa Hattarki    00145710 25/06/2009

4. Mr.Ravindra Kumar Goyal    03050193 12/08/2011

5. Mr.Shrikrishna Kiran Adivarekar    06928271  18/05/2018

6. Mr.Sanjeev Gajanan Joglekar    00073826 26/03/2019

7. Mrs.Shruti Anup Shah    08337714 07/02/2020

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these, based on our verification. This 
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which 
the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For SVD & Associates
Company Secretaries

Meenakshi R. Deshmukh
                            Partner 

FCS No. : 7364
CP No. : 7893

UDIN : F007364C000337067

Note :
We have relied on the documents and evidences provided by electronic mode, in view of prevailing pandemic situation of 
COVID 19, for the purpose of issuing this certificate.

Place : Pune
Date : May 18, 2021 
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CERTIFICATE FROM PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY ON 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,

The Members of

Kalyani Investment Company Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by Kalyani Investment Company Limited 

(hereinafter referred „the Company‰), for the year ended on March 31, 2021 as stipulated in relevant provisions of Securities 

and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosures requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited 

to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the 

Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company 

has complied with the conditions of corporate governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Regulations, as 

applicable.

We further state this certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor efficiency or effectiveness 

with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For SVD & Associates

Company Secretaries

Meenakshi R. Deshmukh

Partner

FCS No. : 7364

CP No. : 7893

           UDIN : F007364C000337089

Note:
We have relied on the documents and evidences provided by electronic mode, in view of prevailing pandemic situation of 
COVID 19, for the purpose of issuing this certificate.

Place : Pune
Date : May 18, 2021
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To

The Members,

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the Twelfth Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company 

together with Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2021.

1. Financial Highlights (on stand-alone basis)

( `  in Million)

   2020-21 2019-20

 Revenue from Operations : 126.04 481.62

 Other Income : — 1.70

 Total Revenue : 126.04 483.32

 Total Expenditure : 33.12 53.43

 Profit before Tax : 92.92 429.89

 Tax Expenses : 14.97 3.72

 Profit after Tax : 77.95 426.17

2. Dividend & Reserves

 The Directors do not recommend any Dividend on Equity Shares for the financial year ended March 31, 2021.

 During the year under review, it is proposed to transfer ` 15.59 Million to Reserve Fund (Under Section 45-IC(1) of 

the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934). An amount of ̀  1,033.13 Million is proposed to be retained as Retained Earnings.

3. Management Discussion and Analysis  (MD&A) 

 Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) for the year under review, as stipulated under SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, is presented as a part of the Corporate Governance Report. 

4. Corporate Governance 

 The Company has committed to maintain the highest standards of Corporate Governance and adhere to the Corporate 

Governance Requirements set out by SEBI. The Report on Corporate Governance as stipulated under SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, is presented in a separate section forming part of the 

Annual Report.

 The requisite certificate from Secretarial Auditors of the Company viz. M/s. SVD & Associates, Company Secretaries, 

Pune, confirming compliance with conditions of Corporate Governance is attached to Report on Corporate 

Governance.

5. Deposits  

 During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

6. Directors 

 In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company,                                            

Mrs.Deeksha A. Kalyani, Director of the Company, is retiring by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting 

and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

 This re-appointment forms part of the Notice of the Annual General Meeting and the Resolution is recommended 

for your approval. Profile of Mrs.Deeksha A. Kalyani, Director is given in the Report on Corporate Governance for 

reference of the members.

 The Company has received declarations from all Independent Directors that they meet the criteria of independence 

as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  

  6.1    Board Evaluation

  Pursuant to provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, the Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the 

directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its Committees. The performance of the Board 

was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the directors on the basis of criteria such as the Board 

composition and structure, effectiveness of board processes, information and functioning. 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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  The performance of the committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the committee 

members on the basis of criteria such as composition of the committee, effectiveness of the committee meetings, 

information and functioning.

  The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of the individual 

directors on the basis of criteria such as contribution of individual director to the Board and committee meetings 

like preparedness on the issues to be discussed and inputs in meetings etc.

  In a separate meeting of independent directors, the performance of the non-independent directors, the Chairman 

of the Company and the Board as a whole was evaluated, taking into account the views of the executive and 

non-executive directors.

 6.2 Policy on Board Diversity and Nomination & Remuneration Policy

  The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, framed a policy for 

selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration. The Policy on Board 

Diversity and Nomination and Remuneration Policy is available on the website of the Company. (Web-link : 

http://www.kalyani-investment.com/financial/policies/)

 6.3 Meetings of the Board

  During the Financial Year 2020-21, four Board Meetings were convened and held. Also a separate meeting of 

Independent Directors as prescribed under Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 was held. The details of 

meetings of the Board of Directors are provided in the Report on Corporate Governance that forms part of this 

Annual Report.

7. Directors’ Responsibility Statement

 Pursuant to the requirements under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to DirectorsÊ Responsibility 

Statement, it is hereby confirmed that :

 i) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2021, the applicable accounting standards 

have been followed and that there are no material departures;

 ii) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 

as at March 31, 2021 and of the profit of the Company for that period;

 iii) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 

for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;  

 iv) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2021, on a Âgoing concernÊ basis;

 v) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal 

financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

 vi) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 

that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

8. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo

 Your Directors have nothing to report on the aforesaid matters as your Company is not engaged in manufacturing, 

has no foreign collaboration and has not exported or imported any goods or services. 

9. Corporate Social Responsibility

 As a part of its initiatives under Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), the Company has undertaken various 

activities in the areas of education. These activities are carried out in terms of Section 135 read with Schedule VII of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, as amended. 

 The details of CSR Activities undertaken by the Company are annexed herewith as  Annexure „A‰. The CSR Policy 

is available on CompanyÊs website. (Web-link : http://www.kalyani-investment.com/financial/policies/)

10. Related Party Transactions

 During the year under review, the Company has not entered into any related party transactions with related parties, 

in terms of sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. The policy on Related Party Transactions as 

approved by the Board is uploaded on the CompanyÊs website. (Web-link : http://www.kalyani-investment.com/

financial/policies/)

11. Risk Management 

 The Company recognizes that risk is an integral and unavoidable component of business and is committed to managing 

the risk in a proactive and efficient manner. The Company as part of business strategy has in place a mechanism to 

identify, assess, monitor risks and mitigate various risks with timely action. Risks are discussed at the meetings of 

the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company.
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12. Audit Committee

 As on March 31, 2021, the Audit Committee comprises of Mr.B.B. Hattarki, Chairman of the Committee and 

Independent Director, Mr.S.K. Adivarekar and Mr.R.K. Goyal, Independent Directors.

 All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were deliberated and accepted by the Board during the 

Financial Year 2020-21.  

13. Auditor and Auditor’s Report 

 During the year, the CompanyÊs Auditors viz. P.G. Bhagwat, Chartered Accountants, a Partnership Firm, was 

converted and incorporated as Limited Liability Partnership (LLP).  P G Bhagwat LLP (Firm Registration No.101118W 

/ W100682) holds the office till the conclusion of the Thirteenth Annual General Meeting to be held in 2022.

 The Notes on Financial Statements referred to in the AuditorÊs Report are self-explanatory and hence do not call 

for any further comments. The AuditorÊs Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or 

disclaimer.

 During the year under review, the Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud as specified under Section 

143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 to the Audit Committee.

14. Secretarial Audit and Secretarial Standards

 Pursuant to provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board had appointed M/s SVD & Associates, 

Company Secretaries, Pune, to undertake Secretarial Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2020-21. The 

Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2021 is annexed herewith as Annexure „B‰. The 

Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer.

 The Company is compliant with the Secretarial Standards issued by the Council of the Institute of Company Secretaries 

of India and approved by Central Government under Section 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013.

15. Particulars of Employees and related Disclosures 

 The information required pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended, has been provided in                  

Annexure „C‰. 

16. Annual Return

 The Company shall upload a copy of Annual Return for FY 2020-21 on its Web-site viz. www.kalyani-investment.com, 

as soon as it has been filed with Registrar of Companies.

17. Whistle Blower Policy

 The Company has vigil mechanism named ÂWhistle Blower PolicyÊ, wherein the employees / directors can report 

the instances of unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or any violation of the Code of Conduct and / or laws 

applicable to the Company and seek redressal. This mechanism provides appropriate protection to the genuine Whistle 

Blower, who avail of the mechanism. During the year under review, the Company has not received any complaint 

under the said mechanism. The Whistle Blower Policy as approved by the Board is uploaded on the CompanyÊs 

website. (Web-link : http://www.kalyani-investment.com/financial/policies/)

18. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments 

 Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 form part 

of the notes to the Financial Statements provided in this Annual Report.    

19. Internal Financial Controls 

 The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements. During the 

year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness was observed in the design or implementation.

20. Material Changes and Commitments, if any affecting Financial Position of the Company 

 There are no adverse material changes or commitments occurring after March 31, 2021, which may affect the financial 

position of the Company or may require disclosure.  

21. Signifi cant and Material Orders

 There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going 

concern status and CompanyÊs operations in future.

22. Familiarization Programme

 The Board members are provided with necessary documents / brochures, reports and internal policies to enable them 

to familiarize with the CompanyÊs procedures and practices. Periodic presentations are made at Board Meetings, 

Board Committee Meetings, on business and performance updates of the Company, global business environment, 

business strategy and risks involved.
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 The details of programmes for familiarization of Independent Directors with the Company are put up on website 

of the Company. (Web-link : http://www.kalyani-investment.com/financials/policies/)

23. Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures or Associate Companies 

 The Company does not have any Subsidiary / Joint Venture. 

 As on March 31, 2021, the Company has two associates. A statement containing the salient features of the financial 

statement of the Associate Companies, in the prescribed format AOC-1, is annexed hereto as Annexure „D‰.

24. Business Responsibility Report

 The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 („Regulations‰) mandates inclusion 

of the Business Responsibility Report (BRR) as a part of Annual Report, for top 1,000 Listed entities based on market 

capitalization. In compliance with the Regulations, BRR is annexed hereto as Annexure „E‰. 

25. Consolidated Financial Statements

 The Consolidated Financial Statements, pursuant to Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 are attached to the 

Standalone Financial Statements of the Company.

26. Obligation of Company under The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition And 

Redressal) Act, 2013

 The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment of women at workplace and has adopted a Policy for 

prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment of women at workplace, in terms of provisions of the 

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules framed 

thereunder. All women employees (permanent, temporary, contractual and trainees), as well as any women visiting 

the CompanyÊs office premises are covered under the Policy. During the year under review, no complaint was filed 

pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

27. Acknowledgement 

 The Directors take this opportunity to express its deep gratitude for the continued co-operation and support received 

from its valued shareholders. 

  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Place : Pune Amit B. Kalyani  

Date  : May 18, 2021 Chairman 
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ANNEXURE – A TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 as amended]

1.  A brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company : 

 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy of the Company emphasize initiatives in specific areas of social development 

that would include primary, secondary education, skills development, vocational training, health and hygiene, preventive 

health care and sanitation, women empowerment, environment and ecological protection, character building by providing 

training opportunities in sports and cultural activities etc. The CSR Policy is available on the website of the Company. 

(Web-link : http://www.kalyani-investment.com/financial/policies/)

2.  The composition of the CSR Committee : 

Sl.  Name of Director Designation / Nature of  Number of meetings of Number of meetings of
No.  Directorship CSR Committee held CSR Committee attended
   during the year during the year

1 Mr.B.B. Hattarki, Chairman Independent 2 2

2 Mr.S.K Adivarekar Independent 2 2

3 Mr.R.K. Goyal Independent 2 2

Sl.  Financial Year Amount available for set-off from preceding  Amount required to be set-off for
No.  financial years ( ` in Million) the financial year, if any ( ` in Million)

1 2020-21  — —

  Total — —

3.  Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects approved by the Board are 

disclosed on the website of the Company :

 Composition of the CSR Committee : Web-link : www.kalyani-investment.com/wp-content/uploads/ Composition_

of_Committees.pdf

 CSR Policy Web-link : www.kalyani-investment.com/financial/policies/

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of Rule 8 of the 

Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report) :

 Not Applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of Rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social 

responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any :

6. Average Net Profit of the Company as per Section 135(5) : ` 95.43 Million

7. a) Two percent of Average Net Profit of the Company as per Section 135(5) : ` 1.91 Million

 b) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years : Not Applicable

 c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any :  Nil

 d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c) : ` 1.91 Million

8. a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year :

Total Amount   Amount Unspent ( ` in Million)

Spent for the   Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR   Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Financial Year   Account as per Section 135(6)   Schedule VII as per second proviso to Section 135(5)
( ` in Million)   
 Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer

1.91 — — — — —
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b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing Projects for the financial year :

c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing Projects for the financial year :

d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads : Not Applicable   
e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable : Not Applicable   
f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) : ` 1.91 Million 
g) Excess amount for set off, if any

9. a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years :

Sl. No. Name of  Item from Local area Location Project Amount Amount Amount Mode of Mode of
 the Project the list of  (Yes/No) of the duration allocated spent transferred Implementation Implementation
  activities in   Project  for the in the to Unspent - Direct  - Through 
  Schedule VII     Project current CSR (Yes/ No) Implementing
  to the Act     ( ` in financial Account  Agency
      Million) Year for the 
       ( ` in Million) Project 
         as per
        Section 135(6)
        ( ` in Million)

    State District      Name CSR 
            Registration 
            No.

— — — — — — — — — — — — —

Sl. No. Name of the  Item from Local area Location of the Amount Mode of  Mode of Implementation - 
 Project the list of  (Yes/ No) Project spent  for the Implementation   Through Implementing
  activities in    Project Direct (Yes / No)  Agency
  Schedule VII    ( ` in Million) 
  to the Act 

    State  District   Name  CSR 
           Registration 
           No.

1 Education (ii) Yes Maharashtra  Pune 1.91 No Akutai Kalyani —

         Charitable 
         Trust

Sl.  Particulars Amount 
No.  ( ` in Million)

i) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) 1.91

ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 1.91

iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] —

iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, if any —

v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] —

Sl.  Preceding Financial Amount Amount spent Amount transferred Amount remaining
No. Year transferred to  in the reporting to any fund specified under to be spent in
  Unspent CSR  Financial Year Schedule VII as per succeeding financial
  Account under  ( ` in Million) Section 135(6), if any years ( ` in Million)
  Section 135(6) 
  ( ` in Million)      

    Name of the  Amount Date of
    Fund ( `  in Million)  transfer 

— — — — — — — —

 b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s) :

Sl.  Project ID Name of  Financial Year Project Total Amount Cumulative Status of the
No.  the Project in which the  duration amount spent amount Project - 
   Project was   allocated on the spent Completed /
   commenced  for the  Project at the Ongoing
     Project in the end of
     ( ` in Million) reporting reporting 
      Financial  Financial
      Year  Year
      ( ` in Million) ( ` in Million)  

— — — — — — — — —
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10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through 

CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details) :

 a)  Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s) : Not Applicable

 b)  Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset : Not Applicable

 c)  Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address 

etc. : Not Applicable

 d)  Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital 

asset) : Not Applicable

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5) : 

Not Applicable

The Responsibility Statement of the CSR Committee of the Board of Directors :

The implementation and monitoring of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives 

and Policy of the Company.

Place :  Pune  Sanjay Yewale B.B. Hattarki

Date   :  May 18, 2021 Chief Executive Officer Chairman, CSR Committee

   & Chief Financial Officer
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ANNEXURE - B TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
and 

Pursuant to Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To,

The Members

Kalyani Investment Company Limited

Mundhwa, 

Pune - 411 036

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 

corporate practices by Kalyani Investment Company Limited bearing CIN - L65993PN2009PLC134196 (hereinafter called 

„the Company‰). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the 

corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the CompanyÊs books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 

by the Company and also the information and explanation provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 

representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the 

audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2021 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder 

and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner 

and subject to the reporting made hereinafter :

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company 

for the financial year ended on March 31, 2021 according to the provisions of :

(i) The Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to time (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (ÂSCRAÊ) and the rules made thereunder;

iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder (not applicable to the Company 

during the audit Period);

v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (ÂSEBI 

ActÊ) :

 a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

 b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

 c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2018 (not 

applicable to the Company during the audit Period); 

 d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (not applicable to 

the Company during the audit Period);

 e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (not applicable 

to the Company during the audit Period);

 f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 

regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

 g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (not applicable to the 

Company during the audit Period); and

 h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-Back of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (not applicable to the Company 

during the audit Period).

(vi)   The specific laws applicable to the Company :

 (a) The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (Applicable to the extent being a Core Investment Company).

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses and regulations of the following :

(i)  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

(ii)  The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 including any amendments thereto. 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 

Standards, etc. mentioned above.
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We further report that :

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 

Directors and Independent Directors. There is no change in the composition of the Board of Directors during the period 

under review.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were generally 

sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on 

the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the 

meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees of the Board, as the case may be.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations 

of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, there were no specific events / actions having a major bearing on the 

CompanyÊs affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.

 For SVD & Associates
 Company Secretaries

 Meenakshi R. Deshmukh
Partner 

Place : Pune FCS No. : 7364
Date  : May 18, 2021  CP No. : 7893
 UDIN : F007364C000337023
Note : This report is to be read with letter of even date by the Secretarial Auditors, which is annexed as Annexure A and 
forms an integral part of this report.

‘ANNEXURE - A’

To,

The Members

Kalyani Investment Company Limited

Mundhwa, Pune - 411 036

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

Management’s Responsibility 

1. It is the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain secretarial records, devise proper systems to 
ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that the systems are adequate 
and operate effectively.  

Auditor’s Responsibility 

2.   Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and procedures followed by the 
Company with respect to secretarial compliances.

3.  We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the CompanyÊs management is adequate and appropriate 
for us to provide a basis for our opinion.

4. We have relied on the documents and evidences provided by electronic mode, in view of prevailing pandemic situation 
of COVID 19. 

5. Wherever required, we have obtained the managementÊs representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events etc.

Disclaimer 

6.  The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

7. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the Company.

 For SVD & Associates
 Company Secretaries

Meenakshi R. Deshmukh
Partner 

Place : Pune FCS No. : 7364
Date  : May 18, 2021  CP No. : 7893
                                                                                                   UDIN : F007364C000337023
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ANNEXURE - C TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Information pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (as amended)
a) The ratio of remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the 

financial year : 

  Sr. No. Name of the Director  Ratio
  1 Mr.Amit B. Kalyani N.A.
  2 Mrs.Deeksha A. Kalyani N.A.
  3 Mr.B.B. Hattarki 0.07
  4 Mr.R.K. Goyal N.A.
  5 Mr.S.K. Adivarekar 0.07
  6 Mr.S.G. Joglekar N.A.
  7 Mrs.Shruti A. Shah 0.07

b) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company 
Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year : 

             (  ̀  in Million)

  Sr. No. Name of Director        Remuneration   % increase / (decrease)

    2020-21  2019-20

  1 Mr.Amit B. Kalyani N.A. 4.80 N.A.

  2 Mrs.Deeksha A. Kalyani N.A. 3.00 N.A.

  3 Mr.B.B. Hattarki 0.40 0.60 (33.34)

  4 Mr.R.K. Goyal N.A. N.A. N.A.

  5 Mr.S.K. Adivarekar 0.40 1.20 (66.67)

  6 Mr.S.G. Joglekar N.A. N.A. N.A.

  7 Mrs.Shruti A. Shah 0.40 N.A. N.A.

 Percentage increase in remuneration of Mr.Sanjay Yewale, Chief Executive Officer & Chief Financial Officer is Nil and 
of Mr.Akshay Chikodikar, Company Secretary is Nil.

c) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employee(s) in the financial year : Not Applicable 

d) The number of permanent employees on the role of the Company as on March 31, 2021 : 2 Employees

e) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last 
financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof 
and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration : 

 Average percentile increase for Salaries of Non-Managerial Personnel � Not Applicable 

 Percentage increment for Salaries of Managerial Personnel is Nil.  

f) The remuneration paid to Directors is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

g) Statement showing the names of the top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and the name of every 
employee of the Company, who - (i) if employed throughout the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for that 
year which, in the aggregate, was not less than one crore two lakh rupees; (ii) if employed for a part of the financial 
year, was in receipt of remuneration for any part of that year, at a rate which, in the aggregate, was not less than eight 
lakh fifty thousand rupees per month; (iii) if employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of 
remuneration in that year which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in excess 
of that drawn by the managing director or whole-time director or manager and holds by himself or along with his 
spouse and dependent children, not less than two percent of the equity shares of the company :

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Place : Pune Amit B. Kalyani  
Date  : May 18, 2021   Chairman 

Sr.   Name & Remuneration Nature of Qualifications Experience Date of  Age Last % of  Whether 
No. Designation  Received   Employment   (Years) Commencement    Employment    Equity Shares  Relative
   (` in Million)    of Employment    held  of Director  
          and if so, name  
          of the Director 

1 Mr.Sanjay  11.52* On deputation  B.Com, MBA 32 30-03-2015 56 Kalyani Steels  — N.A.  
 Yewale,   from Kalyani      Limited
 CEO &  CFO  Steels Limited 

2 Mr.Akshay  0.49 Permanent B.Com, LL.B., 5 29-10-2018 30 Fabtech Projects and — N.A.
 Chikodikar  Employee  ACS     Engineers Limited  

* Remuneration is net of GST.
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ANNEXURE - D TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FORM AOC-1

 [Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

 Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statement of Subsidiaries / Associate Companies / Joint Ventures 

Part “A” : Subsidiaries

Not Applicable

Part “B” : Associates and Joint Ventures 

 Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures  

#  Acquired pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement between the Company, Kalyani Steels Limited, Chakrapani Investments & Trades 
Limited, Surajmukhi Investment & Finance Limited and Gladiolla Investments Limited. 

* Networth is considered as per consolidated financial statement of the investee company wherever consolidated financial statements 

have been prepared.

Notes : 

A. There is Significant Influence due to percentage (%) of Share Capital.

On behalf of the Board of Directors 

Place : Pune   
Date  : May 18, 2021  

Akshay Chikodikar
Company 
Secretary

Sanjay Yewale
Chief Executive Officer & 
Chief Financial Officer

Amit B. Kalyani
Chairman 

R.K. Goyal
Director 

 Name of Associate Hikal Limited  Lord Ganesha Minerals  
   Private Limited

1. Latest Audited Balance Sheet Date 31-03-2021 31-03-2021

2. Date on which the Associate or
 Joint Venture was associated or acquired #October 1, 2009 September 26, 2011

3. Shares of Associate held by the 

 Company on the year end   
 No. 38,667,375 450,000

 Amount of Investment in Associates  ` 65.61 Million ` 55.19 Million

 Extent of Holding % 31.36% 22.50%

4. Description of how there is significant 
 influence Note - A Note - A

5. Reason why the associate is not 
 consolidated Consolidated Consolidated

6. *Networth attributable to Shareholding  
 as per latest Audited Balance Sheet ` 2,927.15 Million ` (35.73) Million

7. Profit / Loss for the year  

 Considered in Consolidation ` 311.04 Million —

 Not Considered in Consolidation — ` (2.983) Million
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ANNEXURE – E TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT
BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

          [Pursuant to Regulation 34(2)(f) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015] 

SECTION A : GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

1. Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company : L65993PN2009PLC134196

2. Name of the Company : Kalyani Investment Company Limited 

3. Registered address : Mundhwa, Pune � 411 036   

4. Website : www.kalyani-investment.com   

5. E-mail id : investor@kalyani-investment.com  

6. Financial Year reported : 2020-21   

7. Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in 

 (industrial activity code-wise) : Investment Activity

8. List three key products / services that the  : The Company is a Non Deposit taking Core Investment

 Company manufactures / provides (as in balance sheet)  Company, as defined in the Core Investment Companies 
    (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2011 

9. Total number of locations where business activity

 is undertaken by the Company     

 a) Number of International Locations   

  (Provide details of major 5) : Not Applicable

 b) Number of National Locations : The Company operates from one location i.e. from its   
    Registered Office situated at Mundhwa, 
    Pune � 411 036

10. Markets served by the Company � 

 Local / State / National / International : Refer Point No.8 and 9 above

SECTION B : FINANCIAL DETAILS OF THE COMPANY

1 Paid up Capital (INR) : ` 43.65 Million

2. Total Turnover (INR) : ` 126.04 Million

3. Total profit after taxes (INR) : ` 77.95 Million

4. Total Spending on Corporate Social Responsibility  : 2% of the average net profits of the Company for the last  
 (CSR) as percentage of profit after tax (%)  three financial years was spent towards Corporate
    Social Responsibility during year 2020-21.

5. List of activities in which expenditure in 4 above has
  been incurred : Promotion of education

SECTION C : OTHER DETAILS

1. Does the Company have any Subsidiary Company / 

 Companies? : No.

2. Do the Subsidiary Company / Companies participate 

 in the BR Initiatives of the Parent Company? If yes, then 

 indicate the number of such subsidiary company(s) : Not Applicable    

3. Do any other entity / entities (e.g. suppliers, 

 distributors etc.) that the Company does business with, 

 participate in the BR initiatives of the Company? If yes, 

 then indicate the percentage of such entity / entities? 

 [Less than 30%, 30-60%, More than 60%] : No

SECTION D : BR INFORMATION

1. Details of Director / Directors responsible for BR 

 a. Details of the Director / Directors responsible for 

  implementation of the BR policy / policies :  

  DIN                   : 03050193

  Name : Mr.R.K. Goyal

  Designation : Director    

 b. Details of BR head :  

  DIN                   : 03050193

  Name : Mr.R.K. Goyal

  Designation : Director

  Telephone No. : 020-66215000

  E-mail ID  : rkgoyal@kalyanisteels.com
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2.  Governance related to BR 

a) Indicate the frequency with which the Board of Directors, Committee of the Board or CEO to assess the BR performance of the
 Company. Within 3 months, 3-6 months, Annually, More than 1 year :
 Annually  

b) Does the Company publish a BR or a Sustainability Report ? What is the hyperlink for viewing this report ? How frequently  
 it is published?  
 The Company has been publishing the BR Report as a part of its Annual Report from the last year. 
 See https://www.kalyani-investment.com/profile/annualreport/   

SECTION E : PRINCIPLE-WISE PERFORMANCE

Preface
As mandated by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), IndiaÊs top 1,000 listed entities based on market capitalization 
on the BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited, are required to submit a ÂBusiness Responsibility ReportÊ (BRR) 
along with their Annual Report for 2020-21. This report is required to be in line with ÂNational Voluntary Guidelines on Social, 
Environmental and Economic Responsibilities of BusinessÊ (NVGs), as released by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in July, 2011.
Kalyani Investment Company Limited (ÂCompanyÊ), to whom the said requirement became applicable for the first time in 2019-20, 
presents its Second BRR in line with the NVGs and the BRR requirement of SEBI. The business responsibility performance of the 
Company will be assessed annually by the CompanyÊs Board of Directors.
The Company is a Core Investment Company holding more than 90% of its assets in the form of investments in shares of or debts 
in Group Companies. The thrust of business is to hold and continue to hold securities in Kalyani Group Companies. 

Principle 1 : Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability 
The Company practices its business with high standards of corporate governance, adhering to all applicable guidelines and gives 
transparent disclosures about the CompanyÊs performance. As the investment company of the Kalyani Group, the values of ethics, 
transparency and accountability are embedded into its daily operations.
The Company has a Code of Conduct for the CompanyÊs Directors and Senior Management. A declaration of compliance with the 
code of conduct by the directors and senior management, is communicated to all stakeholders by the Chairman in the Report on 
Corporate Governance.
The Company promotes ethical behaviour in all its business activities and has put in place a mechanism for reporting illegal 
/ unethical behaviour. The Company has vigil mechanism named ÂWhistle Blower PolicyÊ, wherein the employees / directors 
can report the instances of unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or any violation of the Code of Conduct and / or laws 
applicable to the Company and seek redressal. 

Principle 2 : Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout their life 
cycle
The Company is a Core Investment Company and the thrust of business is to hold and continue to hold securities in Kalyani 
Group Companies. The Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity or providing services under the purview 
of BRR.

Principle 3 : Businesses should promote the well-being of all employees
As of March 31, 2021, the Company has two employees. There are no contractual employees and no employees with disabilities 
in the Company. There is no employees association. 
Employees are encouraged to participate in various skill development programmes, as a part of their professional and skill 
development.

Principle 4 : Businesses should respect the interests of and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who are 
disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized
The Company has identified its internal and external stakeholders. There are no stakeholders who are disadvantaged, marginalized 
and vulnerable, to the extent information available with the Company.  
The Company is an equal opportunity employer and ensures that its remuneration practices are based on merit, irrespective 
of the personÊs ethnic background or gender. In addition, the Company practices affirmative action and ensures there is no 
discrimination of any type against socially disadvantaged sections at the work place.

Principle 5 : Businesses should respect and promote human rights
The Company respects the human rights of all its internal and external stakeholders and ensures compliance with applicable 
laws pertaining to human rights. The Company has not received any complaint relating to violation of human rights during the 
financial year under review.

Principle 6 : Business should respect, protect, and make efforts to restore the environment
The Company is dedicated to manage its business in a manner that preserves the environment. As a Core Investment Company 
with no direct customers / vendors etc. and small number of employees, the Company does not have any significant direct 
environmental impact.

Principle 7 : Businesses, when engaged in infl uencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible manner
The Company actively participates in putting forward its views on the setting of new industry benchmarks or regulatory 
developments pertaining to core investment companies.  

Principle 8 : Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development
Please refer to the Annual Report on CSR activities forming part of the Annual Report 2020-21.

Principle 9 : Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsible manner
Being a Core Investment Company, the Company does not have any direct customers or consumers under the scope of this BRR.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of 
Kalyani Investment Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion

We have audited the Standalone Financial Statements of Kalyani Investment Company Limited („the Company‰), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), 
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the Standalone 
Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter 
referred to as „the Standalone Financial Statements‰). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid  Standalone 
Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 („the Act‰) in the manner so required and 
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the  state of affairs of 
the Company as at March 31, 2021, its profit and other comprehensive income, its changes in equity and its cash flows for 
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. 
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the AuditorÊs Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code 
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone 
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

a) Valuation of investments

At the balance sheet date, the value of investments amounted to ` 44,986.41 Million representing 98.75% of the total assets. 
Investments have been considered as key audit matter due to the size of the balance, various recognition principles, 
subsequent measurement principles and disclosure requirements. Refer Note 1A(m) to the Standalone Financial Statements 
for its accounting policy.

Principle Audit Procedures 

i)  We have understood and evaluated the process of the management to identify impairment indicators (if any) for the 
CompanyÊs investments.

ii)  For quoted investments, we have independently verified the fair values.

iii)  We have evaluated the fair value of unquoted investments adopted by the management and assessed the parameters 
of the fair valuation reports obtained by the management from external experts.

iv)  On a test check basis, we have verified appropriate evidence with regard to assertions of existence and rights to the 
investments.

v)  We have verified principles for recognition, subsequent measurement and disclosures as specified in the accounting 
policy adopted by the Company based on the Ind Accounting Standards.

Other Information 

The CompanyÊs Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Management 
Discussion and Analysis, Board of DirectorsÊ Report along with its Annexures and Corporate Governance Report included 
in the Annual Report but does not include the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditorÊs report thereon. Our 
opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements 
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. 
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

The CompanyÊs Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the 
preparation of these  Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the  financial position,  financial 
performance (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and  cash flows of the Company in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified 
under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the  Standalone 
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, the management is responsible for assessing the CompanyÊs ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the CompanyÊs financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditorÊs report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. 

We also :

�  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

� Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

� Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.

� Conclude on the appropriateness of managementÊs use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the CompanyÊs ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditorÊs report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or if 
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 
to the date of our auditorÊs report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 
as a going concern.

� Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements, including the disclosures 
and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal controls that we identify during 
our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on our independence and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditorÊs report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  As required by the Companies (AuditorÊs Report) Order, 2016 („the Order‰), issued by the Central Government of 
India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure „A‰, a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that :

 (a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

 b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books. 

 c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account.

 d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as 
amended.

 e) On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on March 31, 2021 taken on record 
by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a 
Director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

 f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements 
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure „B‰.

 g) As required by Section 197 (16) of the Act; in our opinion and according to information and explanation provided 
to us, the remuneration paid/provided by the Company to its Directors is in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 197 of the Act and remuneration paid/provided to Directors is not in excess of the limit laid down under 
this Section.

 h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the AuditorÊs Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us :

  (i) According to the information and explanation provided to us, the Company did not have any pending 
litigations that would have an impact on its financial position.

  (ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses.

  (iii) There is no amount required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

           For  P G Bhagwat LLP

Chartered Accountants

 FirmÊs Registration No.101118W/W100682

 

Abhijeet Bhagwat

Partner

Membership No.136835

UDIN : 21136835AAAABI6714

Place : Pune

Date  : May 18, 2021
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading, “Report on Other legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report on 

even date :

 (i) (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 

situation of fixed assets.

  (b) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the fixed assets of the Company are being 

physically verified by the Management, every year. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

The fixed assets have been physically verified by the Management during the year and no material discrepancies 

have been noticed on such verification.

  (c)  The Company does not have any immovable properties. 

 (ii) Being an investment Company, it does not have any physical inventory. Accordingly, Clauses (ii) a, b and c are 

of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

 (iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships 

or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, Clause (iii) a, b and c 

of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

 (iv) According to information and explanation provided to us, the Company does not have any transactions covered 

under the provisions of Section 185 of the Act. According to information and explanation provided to us,                     

Section 186 of the Act is not applicable to the Company being an investment Company.

 (v) According to information and explanation provided to us, the Company has not accepted deposits, hence the 

directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions 

of the Act and the rules framed there under, are not applicable to it.  According to information and explanation 

provided to us, no order has been passed by Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve 

Bank of India or any court or any other tribunal.

 (vi) According to information and explanation provided to us, being an investment Company, maintenance of cost 

records under sub-section (l) of Section 148 of the Act is not applicable.

 (vii) (a)  The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, 

employeesÊ state insurance, income-tax, duty of customs, goods and service tax, cess and any other statutory 

dues with the appropriate authorities.

    According to the information and explanation provided to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect 

of statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2021, for a period more than six month from the date they 

became payable.

  (b) According to the information and explanation provided to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales tax, 

service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax or cess which have not 

been deposited because of any dispute.

 (viii) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanation provided to us, the Company 

has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution, bank or government. The Company does not 

have any debenture holders.

 (ix) According to information and explanation provided to us, the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial 

public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the current year. The Company has not 

availed term loans in the current year.

 (x) Based upon the audit procedures performed by us and according to the information and explanations provided 

to us, no fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or 

reported to us during the year.

 (xi) According to information and explanations provided to us, managerial remuneration to the Directors has been 

paid/provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated under the provisions of Section 197 of the 

Act read with Schedule V.



33

KALYANI  INVESTMENT

 (xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and accordingly, Clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

 (xiii) According to the information and explanation provided to us, all transactions with the related parties are in 

compliance with Section 188 and 177 of Act wherever applicable and the details of transactions have been disclosed 

in the Financial Statements as required by Ind AS 24 ÂRelated Party DisclosuresÊ. Refer Note 27 to the Financial 

Statements.

 (xiv) According to the information and explanation provided to us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment 

or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the current year.

 (xv)  According to the information and explanation provided to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash 

transactions with Directors or persons connected with him.

 (xvi) According to the information and explanation provided to us, the Company is not required to be registered under 

Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For  P G Bhagwat LLP

Chartered Accountants

  FirmÊs Registration No.101118W/W100682

Abhijeet Bhagwat

Partner

Membership No.136835

UDIN : 21136835AAAABI6714

Place : Pune

Date  : May 18, 2021
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Annexure “B”to the Independent Auditor’s Report 

Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading, “Report on Other legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report 

on even date :

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements under Clause (i) of sub-section 

3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 („the Act‰)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements of Kalyani Investment 

Company Limited („the Company‰) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The CompanyÊs management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 

internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 

internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by 

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance 

of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of 

its business, including adherence to CompanyÊs policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 

frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial 

information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the CompanyÊs internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone 

Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the „Guidance Note‰) and the Standards on Auditing, to the extent applicable 

to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and 

the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and 

if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with 

reference to the Standalone Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 

with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 

with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists and testing and 

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 

depend on the auditorÊs judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone 

Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 

on the CompanyÊs internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements

A CompanyÊs internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements is a process designed to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Standalone Financial 

Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A CompanyÊs internal financial 

controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to 

the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 

assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 

of Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and 

expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and Directors of the 

Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, 

or disposition of the CompanyÊs assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Financial Statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error 

or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference 

to the Standalone Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with 

reference to the Standalone Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the 

degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to the 

Standalone Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements 

were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established 

by the Company considering the essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For P G Bhagwat LLP

Chartered Accountants

  FirmÊs Registration No.101118W/W100682

Abhijeet Bhagwat

Partner

Membership No.136835

UDIN : 21136835AAAABI6714

Place : Pune

Date  : May 18, 2021
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ASSETS  

Financial Assets  

 (a) Cash and cash equivalents 3   0.47   1.71 

 (b) Bank balances other than (a) above 4   562.33   248.87   

 (c) Loans 5   —     —

 (d) Investments 6   44,986.41   18,689.33 

 (e) Other financial assets 7   0.50   104.00 

     Total  45,549.71   19,043.91 

Non-Financial Assets    

 (a) Property, Plant and Equipment 8   4.31   5.27 

 (b) Assets for current tax (net) 9   2.27   2.32 

     Total  6.58   7.59 

Total Assets       45,556.29    19,051.50 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY    

Liabilities    

Financial Liabilities    

 (a) Trade payables 10  

  Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 

  and small enterprises    —   —   

  Total outstanding dues of creditors 

  other than micro enterprises and small enterprises    1.42   2.01 

 (b) Other financial liabilities 11   4.77   10.39

     Total    6.19   12.40 

Non-Financial Liabilities    

 (a) Provisions 12   0.03   0.02 

 (b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 13   612.34   29.28 

 (c) Other non-financial liabilities 14   0.45   0.40 

     Total   612.82   29.70 

Equity    

 (a) Share capital 15   43.65   43.65 

 (b) Other equity   

  (i) Reserves & Surplus 16   44,893.63   18,965.75 

     Total  44,937.28    19,009.40 

Total Liabilities and Equity     45,556.29    19,051.50 

  

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2021

     As at As at 

     March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 

    Notes  

As per our attached Report of even date 

For  P G Bhagwat LLP   On behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.101118W/W100682

Abhijeet Bhagwat   Akshay Chikodikar Sanjay Yewale Amit B. Kalyani R.K. Goyal

Partner  Company Secretary Chief Executive Officer  Chairman Director 
Membership No.136835  &  Chief Financial Officer

Place : Pune  Place : Pune

Date  : May 18, 2021  Date  : May 18, 2021

Significant Accounting Policies   1

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of these standalone financial statements

( ` in Million)
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As per our attached Report of even date 

For  P G Bhagwat LLP   On behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.101118W/W100682

Abhijeet Bhagwat   Akshay Chikodikar Sanjay Yewale Amit B. Kalyani R.K. Goyal

Partner  Company Secretary Chief Executive Officer  Chairman Director 
Membership No.136835  &  Chief Financial Officer

Place : Pune  Place : Pune

Date  : May 18, 2021  Date  : May 18, 2021

Revenue from Operations     

(a) Dividend income 17   46.40   456.02

(b) Interest on fixed deposit 17   33.37   8.85

(c) Others   17   0.67   3.29 

(d) Net gain on fair value changes 18   45.60   13.46

       126.04   481.62

Other Income  19   —     1.70

Total Income      126.04   483.32

Expenses   

(a) Employee benefits expense 20   16.80   13.90 

(b) Depreciation 21   0.97   0.98 

(c) Other expenses  22   15.35   38.55 

Total expenses    33.12   53.43

Profi t before exceptional items and tax    92.92   429.89

Exceptional items    —    —  

Profi t before tax      92.92   429.89

Tax expense  23  

Current tax     18.65   4.85

Deferred tax expense    0.69   3.65

Taxation in respect of earlier years (MAT)    (4.37)  (4.78)  

Total Tax expense    14.97   3.72 

Profi t for the year    77.95   426.17

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax   

A. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss   

 -  Changes in fair value of FVTOCI equity investment    26,432.30    (17,905.78)

 -  Tax on above    582.37   1.15

Total other comprehensive income for the year (net)    25,849.93   (17,904.63)

Total comprehensive income for the year   25,927.88   (17,478.46)

Earnings per share (of ` 10/- each) : 24  

Basic & Diluted    17.86   97.63 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Significant Accounting Policies  1

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of these standalone financial statements

( ` in Million)

      Year Ended   Year Ended 

      March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

    Notes
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021 

A. Equity Share Capital    
    ( ` in Million)  

Particulars  Notes   No. of shares   Amount 

As at April 1, 2019  15   4,365,306   43.65 

Changes in equity share capital   —      —    

As at March 31, 2020  15   4,365,306   43.65 

Changes in equity share capital   —      —    

As at March 31, 2021  15   4,365,306   43.65 

B. Other Equity      
( ` in Million)  

     Reserves and Surplus      Other reserve   

Particulars Notes  Retained  General  Statutory   Capital  FVTOCI Total
  Earnings   reserve  Reserve  Redemption equity
    Fund  reserve    investment
       reserve

As at April 1, 2019 16  629.83   2,146.65   290.79   576.00   32,800.94   36,444.21 

Profit for the year   426.17   —     —     —    —  426.17 

Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) :       

Changes in fair value of equity instruments    —     —     —     —     (17,904.63)  (17,904.63)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year   426.17   —     —     —     (17,904.63)  (17,478.46)

Transferred to Statutory reserve fund during the year 16  (85.23)  —     85.23   —     —     —   

As at March 31, 2020   970.77   2,146.65   376.02   576.00   14,896.31   18,965.75 

      
( ` in Million)  

     Reserves and Surplus      Other reserve   

Particulars Notes  Retained  General  Statutory   Capital  FVTOCI Total
  Earnings   reserve  Reserve  Redemption equity
    Fund  reserve    investment
       reserve

As at April 1, 2020 16  970.77   2,146.65   376.02   576.00   14,896.31   18,965.75 

Profit for the year   77.95   —     —     —     —     77.95 

Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) :       

Changes in fair value of equity instruments    —     —     —     —     25,849.93   25,849.93 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year   77.95   —     —     —     25,849.93   25,927.88 

Transferred to Statutory reserve fund during the year 16  (15.59)  —     15.59   —     —     —   

As at March 31, 2021   1,033.13   2,146.65   391.61   576.00   40,746.24   44,893.63 

Significant Accounting Policies  1

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of these standalone financial statements

As per our attached Report of even date 

For  P G Bhagwat LLP   On behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.101118W/W100682

Abhijeet Bhagwat   Akshay Chikodikar Sanjay Yewale Amit B. Kalyani R.K. Goyal

Partner  Company Secretary Chief Executive Officer  Chairman Director 
Membership No.136835  &  Chief Financial Officer

Place : Pune  Place : Pune

Date  : May 18, 2021  Date  : May 18, 2021
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      Year ended Year ended

      March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

A) Cash Flows from Operating Activities  

  Profi t before income tax      92.92   429.89  

 Adjustments to reconcile profi t before tax to net cash fl ows  

 Depreciation and amortisation   0.97 0.98

 Profit on sale of investments    (0.67)  (3.29)

 Net gain on fair value changes    (45.60)  (13.46)

 Impairment of investment    —    15.66 

 Provision no longer required    —     (1.70)

 Cash Generated from Operations before working capital changes    47.62   428.08 

   

 Adjustments for changes in working capital  

 Increase / (Decrease) in provisions    0.01   0.01 

 Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables    (2.20)  2.17 

 Increase / (Decrease) in other financial liabilities    (5.62)  0.74 

 Increase / (Decrease) in other non financial liabilities    0.05   (0.98)

 (Increase) / Decrease in other financial assets    (209.97)  (352.37)

 Cash generated from Operations     (170.11)  77.65  

 Income taxes paid (net of refunds)     (14.26)  (2.21)

 Net Cash from Operating Activities     (184.37)  75.44  

  

B)  Cash Flows from Investing Activities  

 (Purchase) / Sale of shares   —     (132.00)

 (Purchase) / Sale of mutual funds    183.13   57.29 

 Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities     183.13   (74.71)

  

C)  Cash Flows from Financing Activities  

 Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities     —     —   

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents       (1.24)  0.73 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer Note 3)    1.71   0.98 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer Note 3)      0.47   1.71   

This statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 - Statement of Cash Flows. 

Significant Accounting Policies    1

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions   2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of these standalone financial statements

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

( ` in Million)

As per our attached Report of even date 

For  P G Bhagwat LLP   On behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.101118W/W100682

Abhijeet Bhagwat   Akshay Chikodikar Sanjay Yewale Amit B. Kalyani R.K. Goyal

Partner  Company Secretary Chief Executive Officer  Chairman Director 
Membership No.136835  &  Chief Financial Officer

Place : Pune  Place : Pune

Date  : May 18, 2021  Date  : May 18, 2021
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NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts are in Rupees Million, except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

Background

Kalyani Investment Company Limited („the Company‰) is a public limited company domiciled in India and incorporated in 
June, 2009 under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956. The equity shares of the Company are listed on two recognized stock 
exchanges in India i.e. BSE Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE). The Company is primarily 
engaged in the business of making investments in group companies. The Registered Office of the Company is located at 
Mundhwa, Pune � 411036. The CIN of the Company is L65993PN2009PLC134196.

These standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 were approved by the Board of Directors and 
authorized for issue on May 18, 2021.

1A.  Signifi cant Accounting Policies

 This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these standalone financial 
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.  

 (a) Basis of preparation

  (i)  Compliance with Ind AS

    These standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from 
time to time. 

  (ii) Historical cost convention

   The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following : 

   � Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value.

   � Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value.

  (iii) Current versus non-current classification

   The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification.

   An asset is treated as current when it is :

   � Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle. 

   � Held primarily for the purpose of trading.

   � Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period or

   � Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least  
twelve months after the reporting period.

   All other assets are classified as non-current.

   A liability is current when :

   � It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.

   � It is held primarily for the purpose of trading.

   � It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period or 

   � There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the 
reporting period.

   The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

   Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

   The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and
   cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

 (b)  Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID 19 

  The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID 19 on the 
carrying amounts of Investments. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the 
global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company as at the date of approval of these financial 
statements has used internal and external sources of information including credit reports and related information, 
economic forecasts.  The impact of COVID 19 on the CompanyÊs financial statements may differ from the estimated 
as at the date of approval of these financial statements.

  (c) Segment Reporting 

  Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating 
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing 
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors that makes strategic decisions 
for the Company.

  Refer Note 32 for segment information presented.
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 (d) Foreign currency transactions

  Functional and presentation currency

  Items included in the standalone financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the entity operates (Âthe functional currencyÊ). The standalone financial statements 
are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is the CompanyÊs functional and presentation currency.

  Initial Recognition 

  Foreign currency transactions are recorded in Indian currency, by applying the exchange rate between the Indian 
currency and the foreign currency at the date of transaction.

  Conversion  

  Monetary items, designated in foreign currencies are revalued at the rate prevailing on the date of Balance Sheet.

  Exchange Differences 

  Exchange differences arising on the settlement and conversion of foreign currency transactions are recognized as 
income or as expenses in the year in which they arise, except in cases where they relate to the acquisition of qualifying 
assets, in which cases they were adjusted in the cost of the corresponding asset.

 (e) Interest Income 

  Interest income from debt instruments is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to 
the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a timely basis, 
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that assetÊs net carrying 
amount on initial recognition.

 (f) Dividends

  Dividends are recognized in profit or loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is probable that 
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company and the amount of the dividend can 
be measured reliably.

 (g) Taxes 

  Current tax 

  Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year as determined in accordance with 
the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. The management periodically evaluates 
positions taken in returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It 
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to tax authorities.

  Deferred Tax 

  Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets 
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

  Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except :

  � When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction 
that is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor 
taxable profit or loss.  

  � In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in associates, when the timing of the 
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will 
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

  Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits 
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will 
be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and 
unused tax losses can be utilized, except :

  � When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of 
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction, affects 
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

  � In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in associates, deferred tax assets are 
recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable 
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.
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  The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is 
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be 
utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent 
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset 
is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted 
at the reporting date.

  Current and deferred taxes are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to 
items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. 

  Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

  (h) Leases

  The determination of whether a contract is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the contract at the 
inception of the lease. The contract is or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an 
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 

  Company as a Lessee

  At the commencement date, a lessee shall recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. A lessee shall measure 
the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments shall 
be discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot 
be readily determined, the lessee shall use the lesseeÊs incremental borrowing rate. 

  The Company uses the practical expedient to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to a portfolio of leases with 
similar characteristics if the effects on the financial statements of applying to the portfolio does not differ materially 
from applying the requirement to the individual leases within that portfolio. 

  However, when the lessee and the lessor each have the right to terminate the lease without permission from the other 
party with no more than an insignificant penalty the Company considers that lease to be no longer enforceable.  Also 
according to Ind AS 116, for leases with a lease term of 12 months or less (short-term leases) and for leases for which 
the underlying asset is of low value, the lessee is not required to recognize right-of-use asset and a lease liability. 
The Company applies both recognition exemptions.  

  Right of use asset

  Right-of-use assets, which are included under property, plant and equipment, are measured at cost less any 
accumulated depreciation and if necessary, any accumulated impairment. The cost of a right-of-use asset comprises 
the present value of the outstanding lease payments plus any lease payments made at or before the commencement 
date less any lease incentives received, any initial direct costs and an estimate of costs to be incurred in dismantling or 
removing the underlying asset. In this context, the Company also applies the practical expedient that the payments 
for non-lease components are generally recognized as lease payments.

  If the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the lessee at the end of the lease term or if the cost of the 
right-of-use asset reflects that the lessee will exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated to the 
end of the useful life of the underlying asset. Otherwise, the right-of-use asset is depreciated to the end of the lease 
term.

   Lease liability

   Lease liabilities, which are assigned to financing liabilities, are measured initially at the present value of the lease 
payments. Subsequent measurement of a lease liability includes the increase of the carrying amount to reflect interest 
on the lease liability and reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

  Lease modification

  For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a standalone lease, the Company accounts for the re-measurement 
of the lease liability by making a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

  Company as Lessor

  A lessor shall classify each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease. A lease is classified as a finance 
lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. A lease is 
classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership 
of an underlying asset. 

  Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the CompanyÊs net investment in the 
leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net 
investment outstanding in respect of the lease.
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  Where the Company is a lessor under an operating lease, the asset is capitalised within property, plant and equipment 
and depreciated over its useful economic life. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will 
obtain possession of the asset upon end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated 
useful life of the asset and the lease term. 

  Rental income from operating lease is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless 
the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the 
lessorÊs expected inflationary cost increases or another systematic basis is available. Initial direct costs incurred in 
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized 
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in 
which they are earned.

  Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 „Leases‰ for the first time, using the modified retrospective 
transition method, applied to lease contracts that are ongoing as at April 1, 2019.

 (i) Cash and cash equivalents 

  Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with 
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

  For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash and short-term deposits, 
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts and cash credit facilities as they are considered an integral part 
of the CompanyÊs cash management.

 (j) Investment in associate 

  Investment in associate are accounted at cost less accumulated impairment.

 (k) Fair value measurement 

  The Company measures financial instruments at fair value on initial recognition.

  Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption 
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either :

  � In the principal market for the asset or liability or 

  � In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

  The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

  The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when 
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

  A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participantÊs ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that 
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

  The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data 
are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of 
unobservable inputs.

  All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the standalone financial statements are 
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level inputs that is significant 
to the fair value measurement as a whole :

  � Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

  � Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
is directly or indirectly observable.

  � Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
is un-observable.

  For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the standalone financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company 
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization at the 
end of each reporting period.

  External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as unquoted financial assets. Involvement 
of external valuers is decided upon annually by the management. Selection criteria include market knowledge, 
reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained. The management decides, after 
discussions with the CompanyÊs external valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case.

  For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis 
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained 
above.  
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 (l) Financial instruments 

  A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 
instrument of another entity. 

 (m) Financial assets

  Initial recognition and measurement

  All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value 
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

  Subsequent measurement 

  For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories :

  � Financial assets at amortized cost

  � Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

  � Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

  Financial assets at amortized cost

  A financial asset is measured at amortized cost, if both following conditions are met :

  � The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect 
contractual cash flows and 

  � The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments 
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

   After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective 
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on 
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in other income 
in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the statement of profit 
and loss.

  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 

  A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, if both of the following criteria are 
met :

  � The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual 
cash flows and selling the financial assets and 

  � The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments 
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

   After initial measurement, such financial assets, until they are de-recognized or reclassified, are subsequently 

measured at fair value and recognized in other comprehensive income except for interest income, gain / loss on 

impairment, gain / loss on foreign exchange which is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

  A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortized cost or at fair 

value through other comprehensive income.

  In addition, the Company may elect to classify a financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or fair value 

through other comprehensive income criteria, as at fair value through profit or loss. However, such election is 

allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as Âaccounting 

mismatchÊ). After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value in the statement 

of profit and loss.

  De-recognition of financial assets 

  A financial asset is de-recognized when :

  � The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired or 

  � The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 

obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a pass-through 

arrangement and either : 

   (a)  The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or 

   (b) The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but 

has transferred control of the asset.
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  Impairment of financial assets

  In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and 

recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure :

  � Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured at amortized cost e.g. loans, debt-securities, deposits, 

trade receivables and bank balance.

  � Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI.

  The Company follows Âsimplified approachÊ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables.

  The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it 

recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 

  For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that 

whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased 

significantly, 12 month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, 

lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer 

a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss 

allowance based on 12 month ECL. 

  Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a 

financial instrument. The 12 month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events on a 

financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

  ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract 

and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. 

When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider :

 � All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) 

over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial 

instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the Company is required to use the remaining contractual term 

of the financial instrument.

 � Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual 

terms.

 ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income / expense in the 

statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head „Other Expenses‰ in the statement of profit 

and loss.

  The Balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below :

 � Financial assets measured as at amortized cost.

  ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. 
The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-offs criteria, the Company does not 
de-recognize impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

  The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e. financial assets 
which are credit impaired on purchase / origination.

 (n) De-recognition of fi nancial liabilities  

  A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is de-recognized from its balance sheet when and only when, 
it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

  When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms 
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the            
de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of an new liability. The difference in the respective carrying 
amounts is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

 (o) Offsetting of fi nancial instruments

  Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally 
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events 
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of 
the Company or the counterparty.  
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 (p) Property, plant and equipment

  Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction net of accumulated depreciation and 
impairment loss (if any). All directly attributable costs relating to the acquisition and installation of property, plant 
and equipment are capitalized. All repair and maintenance costs are recognized in statement of profit and loss during 
the reporting period in which they are incurred. 

  Subsequent costs are included in the assetÊs carrying amount as recognized as a standalone asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for a standalone asset 
is de-recognized when replaced. 

  The identified components are depreciated over their useful lives, the remaining asset is depreciated over the life 
of the principal asset.

  Depreciation on additions is provided from the beginning of the month in which the asset is put to use.

  Depreciation on assets sold, discarded or demolished during the year is being provided at their respective rates on 
pro-rata basis up to the end of the month prior to the month in which such assets are sold, discarded or demolished. 

  The useful lives has been determined based on technical evaluation done by the managementÊs expert which are 
higher than those specified by Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, in order to reflect the actual usage of the 
assets. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. 

  Depreciation is charged on the basis of useful life of assets on straight line method.

  An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognized upon disposal 
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition 
of the asset is included in the standalone statement of profit and loss when the asset is de-recognized.

  The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each 
financial year.

  Transition to Ind AS

  On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant 
and equipment recognized as at April 1, 2017 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as 
the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

 (q) Impairment of non-fi nancial assets

  The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any 
indication exists, the Company estimates the assetÊs recoverable amount. An assetÊs recoverable amount is the higher 
of an assetÊs or cash-generating unitÊs (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount 
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent 
of those from other assets or group of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable 
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

  In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such 
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. 

  Impairment inventories are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

  Previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to 
determine the assetÊs recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so 
that the carrying amount of asset does not exceed its recoverable amount. Such reversal is recognized in statement 
of profit and loss.

 (r) Trade and other payables

  These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year 
which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are unsecured and are presented as current liabilities unless payment is 
not due within operating cycle determined by the Company after the reporting period. They are recognized initially 
at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

 (s) Provisions and contingent liabilities 

  Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past 
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate 
of the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are determined based on the best estimate required to settle 
the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. Provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect 
current best estimates.
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  A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a 
present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 
settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot 
be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but 
discloses its existence in the financial statements. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made where there is a 
possible obligation arising out of past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or 
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present 
obligation arising out of a past event where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 
settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

 (t) Employee Benefi ts

  (i)  Short-term Employee Benefits

   The distinction between short term and long term employee benefits is based on expected timing of settlement 
rather than the employeeÊs entitlement benefits. All employee benefits payable within twelve months of 
rendering the service are classified as short term benefits. Such benefits include salaries, wages, bonus, short 
term compensated absences, awards, ex-gratia, performance pay etc. and are recognized in the period in which 
the employee renders the related service.

  (ii)  Long term Employment benefits 

   The employeeÊs long term compensated absences are CompanyÊs other long term benefit plans. The present 
value of the obligation is determined based on the actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method 
as at the date of Balance sheet. In case of funded plans, the fair value of plan asset is reduced from the gross 
obligation, to recognize the obligation on a net basis.

   In regard to other long term employment benefits, the Company recognizes the net total of service costs, net 
interest on the net defined benefit asset / liability and re-measurements of the net defined benefit asset / liability 
in the statement of profit and loss. 

   Provident Fund 

   The Company operates single plan for its employees to provide employee benefits in the nature of provident 
fund.

   The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per regulations. 
The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are 
accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognized as employee benefit expense 
when they are due.

   Eligible employees receive benefits from a provident fund, which is a defined benefit plan. Both the employee 
and the Company make monthly contributions to the provident fund plan equal to a specified percentage of 
the covered employeeÊs salary

  (iii)  Termination benefits

   Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the normal retirement 
date or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Company recognizes 
termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates : (a) when the Company can no longer withdraw the 
offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognizes costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of             
Ind AS 37 and involves the payment of terminations benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary 
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the 
offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to present 
value.

 (u) Paid up equity

  Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net 
of tax, from the proceeds.

 (v) Cash Flow Statement 

  Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of 
transactions of a non cash nature and deferral or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows 
from regular operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. 

 (w) Dividend liability

  The Company recognizes a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when 
distribution is authorized and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate 
laws in India, a distribution is authorized when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is 
recognized directly in equity.
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 (x) Earnings per share

  (i) Basic Earnings per Share

   Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year. Earnings considered in 
ascertaining the CompanyÊs earnings per share is the net profit for the period after deducting any attributable 
tax thereto for the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and 
for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential 
equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in 
resources.   

  (ii) Diluted Earnings per Share

   For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to 
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for 
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

 (y) Rounding of amounts

  All amounts disclosed in these standalone financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest 
Million as per the requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

1. B Standards issued but not effective

 Following exposure drafts have been issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India :

 1.  Amendment to Ind AS 116, „Leases‰ - COVID 19 - Related Rent Concessions beyond June 30, 2021

  On July 24,  2020, the MCA issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules, 2020 which 
amended Ind AS 116 to provide relief for lessees in accounting for eligible rent concessions upto July 31, 2021 that are a 
direct consequence of COVID 19. The exposure draft on amendments to Ind AS 116 issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India proposes amendments to extend the relief for lessees in accounting for eligible rent concessions 
upto July 31, 2022.

 2. Amendment to Ind AS 116, „Leases‰ - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform : Phase 2

  The exposure draft on amendments to Ind AS 116 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India proposes 
amendments to include a practical expedient in respect of all lease modifications that change the basis for determining 
future lease payments as a result of interest rate benchmark reform.

 3. Amendments to Ind AS 37, „Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets‰ - Onerous Contracts

  The exposure draft on amendments to Ind AS 37 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India proposes 
amendments regarding costs a Company should include as the cost of fulfilling a contract when assessing whether a 
contract is onerous.

 4. Amendments to Ind AS 16, „Property, Plant and Equipment‰ - Proceeds before Intended Use

  The exposure draft on amendments to Ind AS 16 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India proposes 
amendments regarding proceeds from selling items produced while bringing an asset into the location and condition 
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

 5. Amendments to Ind AS 103, „Business Combinations‰ - Reference to the Conceptual Framework

  The exposure draft on amendments to Ind AS 103 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India proposes 
amendments to change out updated reference to „Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements 
in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards‰ and update it with reference to „Conceptual Framework for Financial 
Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards‰. It also proposes certain consequential amendments.

 6. Amendments to 101, „First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards‰ - Subsidiary as a First-time Adopter

  The exposure draft on amendments to Ind AS 101 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India proposes 
amendments to simplify the application of Ind AS 101 by a subsidiary that becomes a first-time adopter after its parent 
in relation to the measurement of cumulative translation differences.

 7. Amendments to 41, „Agriculture‰ - Taxation in Fair Value Measurements

  The exposure draft on amendments to Ind AS 41 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India proposes 
amendments to remove a requirement to exclude cash flows from taxation when measuring fair value thereby aligning 
the fair value measurement requirements in Ind AS 41 with those in other Ind ASÊs.

 8. Amendments to Ind AS 109, „Financial Instruments‰ - Fees in the Â10 per centÊ Test for De-recognition of Financial 
Liabilities

  The exposure draft on amendments to Ind AS 109 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India proposes 
amendments to clarify the fees a company includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified financial 
liability are substantially different from the terms of the original financial liability.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) :

 9. Amendments to Ind AS 109, „Financial Instruments‰ and Ind AS 107, „Financial Instruments : Disclosures‰ - Interest 
Rate Benchmark Reform : Phase 2

  The exposure draft on amendments to Ind AS 109 and Ind AS 107 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
proposes amendments to assist entities in providing useful information about the effects of the transition to alternative 
benchmark rates and support preparers in applying the requirements of Ind ASÊs when changes are made to contractual 
cash flows or hedging relationships as a result of the transition to an alternative benchmark interest rate.

 10. New Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 117, „Insurance Contracts‰

  The exposure draft of Ind AS 117 is issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India as replacement for Ind AS 
104 Insurance Contracts. 

 11. Amendments to Ind AS 40, „Investment Property‰

  The exposure draft on amendments to Ind AS 40 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India proposes 
to reinstate the fair value option thereby providing the entities an accounting policy choice to subsequently measure 
investment properties using either the cost model or the fair value model.

The above exposure drafts have not been notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (ÂMCAÊ) to be applicable from                            
April 1, 2021 as at the date of approval of these financial statements. On issue of the amendment by MCA, the Company would 
evaluate the impact of the change in the standalone financial statements. 

2.  Signifi cant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

 The preparation of the CompanyÊs standalone financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures 
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. This note provides an overview of the areas that involve a higher degree of 
judgments or complexities and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions 
turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these judgments, estimates 
and assumptions is mentioned below.

 Judgments, estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other 
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances.

  Estimates and assumptions

 The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have 
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial 
year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial 
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due 
to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the 
assumptions when they occur.

 1. Defi ned benefi t plans 

  The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such obligation 
are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may 
differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary 
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined 
benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting 
date. The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for 
plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent 
with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on Indian Assured Lives 
Mortality (2012-14) Ultimate. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic 
changes. Future salary increases and benefit increases are based on expected future inflation rates. Further details 
about employee benefit obligations are given in Note 26.

 2. Fair value measurement of unquoted fi nancial instruments

  When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured 
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF 
model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, 
a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as 
liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair 
value of financial instruments. See Note 28 for further disclosures.
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NOTE 3 : CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars     March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

Balances with Banks   

In current accounts    0.47   1.71 

 Total    0.47   1.71

NOTE 4 : BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars     March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020 

Term deposits with original maturity of more than three months

but less than twelve months    562.33 248.87

 Total     562.33 248.87

NOTE 5 : LOANS  
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars     March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

(A) Loans  

(i) Inter-corporate deposit   50.00   50.00 

Total (A) - Gross   50.00   50.00 

Less : Impairment loss allowance   (50.00)  (50.00)

 Total (A) - Net —    —   

(B) Others  

(i) Unsecured (Other receivable)   0.07   0.07 

Total (B) - Gross   0.07   0.07 

Less : Impairment loss allowance   (0.07)  (0.07)

 Total (B) - Net  —     —   

Total (C) - Gross Loans in India   50.07   50.07 

Less : Impairment loss allowance   (50.07)  (50.07)

 Total (C) - Net — —

 Total (A + B) - Net —     —    

NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) :
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NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) :

Refer notes on Investments below :

35,000 - 12% Non-Cumulative Redeemable ‰C‰ Preference Shares of ` 100/- each fully paid up of Sundaram Trading and 
Investment Private Limited are redeemable on or before July 26, 2027.

9,400,000 - 8% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up of Baramati Speciality Steels Limited 
are redeemable at the end of 20 years from the date of allotment, i.e. on March 28, 2033, with an option to the said Company to 
redeem the said shares in one or more tranches at any time on or after September 28, 2013.    

5,100,000 - 8% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of  ` 10/- each fully paid up of Baramati Speciality Steels Limited 
are redeemable at the end of 20 years from the date of allotment, i.e. on September 28, 2033, with an option to the said Company to 
redeem the said shares in one or more tranches at any time on or after March 28, 2014.     

13,000,000 - 8% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of  ` 10/- each fully paid up of Baramati Speciality Steels Limited 
are redeemable at par on the expiry of 20 years from the date of allotment, i.e. on March 23, 2036, with a call / put option 
respectively to the said Company as well as the holders of 8% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares, after 6 months 
from the date of allotment, i.e. after September 23, 2016, by giving one monthÊs notice to the other party.   

20,000,000 - 8% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of  ` 10/- each fully paid up of Baramati Speciality Steels Limited 
are redeemable at par on the expiry of 20 years from the date of allotment, i.e on March 23, 2037, with a call / put option 
respectively to the said Company as well as the holders of 8% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares, after 6 months 
from the date of allotment, i.e. after September 23, 2017, by giving one monthÊs notice to the other party.   

9,000,000 - 1% Non-Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preference Shares of  ` 10/- each fully paid up of Lord Ganesha Minerals 
Private Limited carry option to convert  the entire amount outstanding into equity shares of the said company at par. The said 
9,000,000 - 1% Non-Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preference Shares of  ̀  10/- each fully paid up, if not opted for conversion, 
are redeemable on March 31, 2030. However, the said Company as well as the holders of 1% Non-Cumulative Optionally 
Convertible Preference Shares, have a call / put option respectively, by giving one monthÊs notice to the other party.

2,030,000 - 8% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of  ` 10/- each fully paid up of Kalyani Mining Ventures Private 
Limited were redeemable after five years from the date of allotment, i.e. on or after March 31, 2020 at the option of Kalyani Mining 
Ventures Private Limited. Shares which are not redeemed by the Company shall be compulsorily redeemed at the expiry of 
twenty years from the date of allotment i.e. on March 31, 2035.        

12,500,000 - 7% Cumulative, Optionally Convertible, Non-participating Preference Shares of  ` 10/- each, fully paid up of 
Kalyani Technoforge Limited allotted on December 22, 2017, carry an option to convert the entire amount in Equity Shares of 
Kalyani Technoforge Limited, at the option to be exercised by Kalyani Technoforge Limited. The Preference Shares which are not 
converted, are redeemable at the end of 7 years from the date of allotment, however Kalyani Technoforge Limited can redeem the 
same after completion of 5 years.        

13,984,973 - 7% Cumulative, Optionally Convertible, Non-participating Preference Shares of ` 10/- each, fully paid up of Kalyani 
Technoforge Limited allotted on September 6, 2018 carry an option to convert the entire amount in Equity Shares of Kalyani 
Technoforge Limited, at the option to be exercised by Kalyani Technoforge Limited. The Preference Shares which are not converted, 
are redeemable at the end of 7 years from the date of allotment, however Kalyani Technoforge Limited can redeem the same after 
completion of 5 years.

13,200,000 - 7% Cumulative, Optionally Convertible, Non-participating Preference Shares of  ` 10/- each, fully paid up of Kalyani 
Technoforge Limited allotted on September 27 , 2019 carry an option to convert the entire amount in Equity Shares of Kalyani 
Technoforge Limited, at the option to be exercised by Kalyani Technoforge Limited. The Preference Shares which are not converted, 
are redeemable at the end of 7 years from the date of allotment, however Kalyani Technoforge Limited can redeem the same after 
completion of 5 years. 

560,000 - 0% Fully Convertible Unsecured Debentures of  ` 100/- each fully paid up of Azalea Enterprises Private Limited are 
compulsorily convertible into such number of fully paid up equity shares of  ` 10/- each at such a price as shall be fixed by the 
said Company upon the expiry of the period of 5 years from the date of their original issue, i.e. on March 29, 2014. However the 
said Company has extended the tenure of the said debentures for further period of 5 years and accordingly the date of conversion 
shall be March 29, 2024.        

165,000 - 0% Fully Convertible Unsecured Debentures of  ` 100/- each fully paid up of Azalea Enterprises Private Limited are 
compulsorily convertible into such number of fully paid up equity shares of  ` 10/- each at such a price as shall be fixed by the 
said Company upon the expiry of the period of 5 years from the date of their original issue, i.e. on April 4, 2014. However the 
said Company has extended the tenure of the said debentures for further period of 5 years and accordingly the date of conversion 
shall be April 4, 2024.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) :

NOTE 7 : OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS  
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars     March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

 Security deposit     0.50   0.50 

 Bank deposits with maturity more than twelve months    —  103.50     

  Total   0.50   104.00 

NOTE 8 : PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT   
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars       Furniture and  
   Fixtures

Gross Block as at March 31, 2019    10.24 

Additions    —   

Disposals / Adjustments    —   

Gross Block as at March 31, 2020    10.24 

Additions    —   

Disposals / Adjustments    —   

Gross Block as at March 31, 2021    10.24 

     ( ` in Million)

Particulars       Furniture and  
   Fixtures

Accumulated Depreciation : 

As at March 31, 2019    3.98 

For the year    0.98 

Disposals / Adjustments    —   

As at March 31, 2020    4.96 

For the year    0.97 

Disposals / Adjustments   —

As at March 31, 2021    5.93

    ( ` in Million)

Particulars       Furniture and  
   Fixtures

Net Block  

As at March 31, 2020    5.27 

As at March 31, 2021   4.31 

NOTE 9 : ASSETS FOR CURRENT TAX   
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars     March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

Advance Income Tax     2.27   2.32  

 Total   2.27   2.32  
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NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) :

NOTE 10 : TRADE PAYABLES  
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars     March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises    —    —   

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises   1.42   2.01 

  Total   1.42   2.01 

(i)  The Company has compiled this information based on the current information in its possession as at March 31, 2021, 
no supplier has intimated the Company about its status as Micro and Small Enterprises or its registration with the 
appropriate authority under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 except as disclosed 
above.  

(ii)  Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are generally settled within 30 days. 

(iii)  The Company does not owe any moneys to Micro and Small Enterprises registered under the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

NOTE 11 : OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES    
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars     March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

Accrued expenses   4.72   10.34 

Payable to employees   0.05   0.05  

  Total    4.77   10.39  

NOTE 12 : PROVISIONS 
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars     March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

Provision for employee benefits   

Provision for compensated absences (refer Note 26)    0.03   0.02

  Total   0.03   0.02 

NOTE 13 : DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 
       ( ` in Million)

Particulars     March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES   

Depreciation and amortisation   (0.24)  (0.13)

Fair valuation of equity shares   711.06   128.69 

Total Deferred tax liabilities      710.82   128.56  

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS   

Fair valuation of preference shares   (98.48)  (99.28)

Total Deferred tax assets   (98.48)  (99.28)

Deferred Tax Liabilities / (Assets) - (net)     612.34   29.28  
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NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) :

Changes in Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) in Profi t and Loss [charged / (credited) during the year]   
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars     March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

Deferred tax assets   

Fair valuation of preference shares   0.80   3.75  

   0.80   3.75 

Deferred tax liabilities   

Depreciation and amortisation   (0.11)  (0.10)

   (0.11)  (0.10)

  Total    0.69   3.65 

Changes in Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) in Other Comprehensive Income [charged / (credited) during the year]
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars     March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

Deferred tax liabilities   

Fair valuation of equity shares   582.37   (1.15)

  Total   582.37   (1.15)

NOTE 14 : OTHER NON-FINANCIAL LIABILITIES  
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars     March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

Statutory dues payable    0.45   0.40  

  Total   0.45   0.40 

 NOTE 15 : SHARE CAPITAL
(a)  Authorised share capital
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars      Equity shares   14% Non  
   Cumulative 
   redeemable  
   preference shares 

As at March 31, 2020 :  

Number of shares    12,000,000   60,000,000 

Face value per share   10   10 

Amount ( ` in Million)     120   600 

  

As at March 31, 2021 :  

Number of shares    12,000,000   60,000,000 

Face value per share   10   10 

Amount ( ` in Million)     120   600 

(b) Terms / rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of issued equity shares having a par value of  ` 10/- per share. Each holder of equity 
shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed 
by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the 
event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive surplus assets of the Company, 
remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) :

(c)  Issued and subscribed equity share capital

          ( ` in Million)

Particulars     Number of shares       Amount 

As at March 31, 2019   4,365,306   43.65 

Changes in equity share capital   —      —   

As at March 31, 2020   4,365,306   43.65 

Changes in equity share capital   —      —   

As at March 31, 2021   4,365,306   43.65 

(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
   

Particulars    Ajinkya  Sundaram

  Investment &  Trading &

  Trading Company Investment Private

   Limited

As at March 31, 2020  

% of holding  12.28% 60.94%

Number of shares    536,182   2,660,074 

  

As at March 31, 2021  

% of holding  12.28% 60.94%

Number of shares    536,182   2,660,074 

NOTE 16 : RESERVES AND SURPLUS 
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars     March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

Retained earnings    970.77   629.83 

Add : Profit for the year     77.95   426.17 

Less : Transfer to statutory reserve fund     (15.59)  (85.23)

As at the end of the year    1,033.13   970.77 

  

General Reserve  as at the beginning and end of the year    2,146.65   2,146.65 

Statutory Reserve Fund

As at the beginning of the year    376.02   290.79 

Add : Transfer from retained earnings   15.59   85.23 

As at the end of the year    391.61   376.02 

  

Capital Redemption reserve as at the beginning and end of the year    576.00   576.00 

FVTOCI Equity investments  

As at the beginning of the year    14,896.31   32,800.94 

Add : Fair value gains / (losses) for the year    25,849.93   (17,904.63)

As at the end of the year    40,746.24   14,896.31  

 Total     44,893.63   18,965.75  



58

12th Annual Report 2020-2021

ii)  Statutory reserve fund    

 As per Section 45-IC(1) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, every non-banking financial company shall create a 
reserve fund and  transfer therein a sum not less than twenty per cent of its net profit every year as disclosed in the 
profit and loss account and before any dividend is declared.   

iii)  FVTOCI Equity investment reserve   

 The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of investment in equity shares in other comprehensive 
income. These changes are accumulated within the FVTOCI investment reserve within equity. The Company will 
transfer amounts from the said reserve to retained earnings when the relevant equity shares are de-recognised.

NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) :

NOTE 17 : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars     Year ended Year ended
  March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

Dividend received on shares, designated at cost   46.40   456.02 

Interest on fixed deposit designated at amortized cost   33.37   8.85 

Profit on sale of investments designated at FVTPL   0.67   3.29  

 Total 80.44 468.16

NOTE 18 : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS - NET GAIN / (LOSS) ON FAIR VALUE CHANGES
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars     Year ended Year ended
  March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

Net gain / (loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss  

- preference shares   45.44   5.01 

- mutual funds   0.16   8.45 

Total net gain / (loss) on fair value changes    45.60   13.46 

Fair value changes :  

- Realized   —     —   

- Unrealized   45.60   13.46 

Total net gain / (loss) on fair value changes   45.60   13.46 

NOTE 19 : OTHER INCOME
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars     Year ended Year ended
  March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

Provision no longer required   —    1.70 

 Total  —     1.70 

NOTE 20 : EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars     Year ended Year ended
  March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

Salaries and wages (refer Note 26)   16.80   13.90  

 Total 16.80 13.90

Nature and purpose of reserves   

i)  General reserve    

 Under the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956, a general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net profit at 
a specified percentage in accordance with applicable regulations. Consequent to the introduction of the Companies 
Act, 2013, the requirement to mandatory transfer a specified percentage of net profit to general reserve has been 
withdrawn. There is no movement in general reserve during the current and previous year.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) :

NOTE 21 : DEPRECIATION
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars     Year ended Year ended
  March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020 

Depreciation   0.97   0.98  

 Total 0.97   0.98

NOTE 22 : OTHER EXPENSES
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars     Year ended Year ended
  March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

Legal and professional fees   6.24   7.96 

Fees and subscription   0.80   0.86 

Sundry expenses   0.10   0.10 

Printing and stationery   0.14   0.69 

Advertisement expenses   0.18   0.19 

CSR expenditure (refer Note 31)   1.91   2.37 

Audit fees (refer Note 25)   0.34   0.33 

Communication   —     0.23 

Brand usage fees   0.56   0.56 

Provision for impairment in investment in associate   —     15.66 

Rates & Taxes   3.88   —  

Directors Commission   1.20   9.60  

 Total   15.35   38.55  

NOTE 23 : TAX EXPENSE
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars     Year ended Year ended
  March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

Current tax   14.30   —   

Add : MAT credit utilized   4.35   4.85     

    18.65   4.85  

Deferred tax expense   0.69   3.65 

Taxation in respect of earlier years (MAT)   (4.37)  (4.78)    

 Total   14.97   3.72  

Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profi t multiplied by statutory tax rate
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars     Year ended Year ended

  March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

Profit before tax  92.92 429.89

Applicable tax rate  27.82% 27.82%

Computed tax expense   25.85   119.60 

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income :  

Non-deductible expenses   4.97   8.12 

Income exempt from tax   —     (126.86)

Provision for diminution in investment   —     4.36 

Profit on sale of investments   0.71   2.90 

Taxation in respect of earlier years   (4.37)  (4.78)

Others   (12.19)  0.38 

Income tax expense  14.97 3.72
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NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) :

NOTE 24 : EARNINGS PER SHARE
    

Particulars     Year ended Year ended

  March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

Net profit / (loss) after tax ( ` in Million)   77.95   426.17 

Weighted average number of equity shares   4,365,306   4,365,306 

Basic and diluted earning per share of nominal value of  ` 10/- each    17.86   97.63 

NOTE 25 : PAYMENT TO AUDITORS
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars     Year ended Year ended

  March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

As auditor :  

Audit fees  0.33 0.33

Certification fees  0.01  —   

 Total 0.34 0.33 

NOTE 26 : PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars     March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

Compensated absences (refer Note A)   0.03   0.02 

   

Particulars     March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

Discount rate  6.80% 6.90%
Salary escalation rate  7.00% 7.00%
Retirement age   VP and above   VP and above 
   - 60 years   - 60 years 
   Others - 55 years   Others - 55 years 
Mortality rate   Indian Assured  Indian Assured
  Lives Lives
  Mortality (2012-14)  Mortality (2012-14) 
  Ultimate  Ultimate 
Attrition rate  5.00% 5.00%

A   Compensated absences   

 The compensated absences cover the CompanyÊs liability for privilege leave.   

I   Significant assumptions   

 The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows : 

B Provident Fund  

 Defined contribution :  The Company also has certain defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to provident 
fund in India for worker at the 12% of basic and dearness allowance as per regulations. The contributions are made to 
registered provident fund administered by the government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount 
contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation. The expense recognized during the 
period towards defined contribution plan is  ` 0.013 Million (March 31, 2020 - ` 0.004 Million).

C Risk Exposure   

 Provision of a defined benefit scheme poses certain risks, some of which are detailed hereunder, as companies take on 
certain long term obligations to make future benefit payments. 

 1)  Liability Risks    

    a.   Asset-Liability Mismatch Risk  

      Risks which arises if there is a mismatch in the duration of the assets relative to the liabilities. By matching 
duration with the defined benefit liabilities, the company is successfully able to neutralize valuation swings 
caused by interest rate movements. Hence companies are encouraged to adopt asset-liability management.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) :

NOTE 27 : RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  

A)  Name of the  related parties and nature of relationship :
    

 Holding Company  Ownership interest held by the Company 

    March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

 Sundaram Trading and Investment Private Limited  60.94% 60.94%

 The principal place of business of the holding company is India.

(i)  Where control exists : 
       

 Associate                   Ownership interest held by the Company 

        March 31, 2021    March 31, 2020 

 i)  Hikal Limited    31.36%  31.36%

 ii)  Lord Ganesha Minerals Private Limited    22.50%  22.50%

 The principal place of business of the associate is India and the Company has accounted for its investment in associate 
at cost.

(ii)  Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year : 
       

 Entities under common control :

 i)  Bharat Forge Limited

 ii) Kalyani Technoforge Limited

 iii) Kalyani Technologies Limited

 iv) Kalyani Steels Limited

  Key Management Personnel :

 i) Mr.Amit B. Kalyani, Chairman, Non-Executive Director
 ii) Mrs.Deeksha A. Kalyani, Non-Executive Director
 iii) Mr.B.B. Hattarki, Independent Director
 iv) Mr.R.K. Goyal, Independent Director
 v) Mr.S.K. Adivarekar, Independent Director 
 vi) Mr.S.G. Joglekar, Independent Director
 vii) Mrs.Shruti A. Shah, Independent Director
 viii) Mr.Sanjay Yewale, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
 ix) Mr.Akshay Chikodikar, Company Secretary

    b.  Discount Rate Risk   

     Variations in the discount rate used to compute the present value of the liabilities may seem small, but in 
practise can have a significant impact on the defined benefit liabilities.   

    c.  Future Salary Escalation and Inflation Risk   

     Since price inflation and salary growth are linked economically, they are combined for disclosure purposes. 
Rising salaries will often result in higher future defined benefit payments resulting in a higher present value of 
liabilities especially unexpected salary increases provided at managements discretion may lead to uncertainties 
in estimating the increasing risk.  

 2)  Unfunded Plan Risk   

 This represents unmanaged risk and a growing liability. There is an inherent risk here that the company may default 
on paying the benefits in adverse circumstances. Funding the plan removes volatility in companyÊs financial and 
also benefit risk through return on the funds made available for the plan.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) :

   ( ` in Million)

a  Remuneration      March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

i) Mr.Amit B. Kalyani, Chairman, Non-Executive Director  —     4.80 

ii) Mrs.Deeksha A. Kalyani, Non-Executive Director   —     3.00 

iii) Mr.B.B. Hattarki, Independent Director   0.40   0.60 

iv) Mr.S.K. Adivarekar, Independent Director   0.40   1.20 

v) Mrs.Shruti A. Shah, Independent Director   0.40   —   

vi) Mr.Sanjay Yewale, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer*  11.52   11.36 

vii) Mr.Akshay Chikodikar, Company Secretary   0.49   0.49  

 Total   13.21   21.45  

* Excludes GST amounting to ` 2.07 Million (Previous year ` 2.04 Million)

   ( ` in Million)

iii Compensation to key management personnel     March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

 Nature of transaction  

 Short-term employee benefits   12.01   11.85 

 Post-employment benefits   —      —    

 Other-long term benefits   —      —    

 Termination benefits   —      —    

 Share base payment   —      —

 As the future liability for gratuity is provided on an acturial basis for the Company as whole, the amount pertaining to 
individual is not ascertainable and therefore not included above.

   ( ` in Million)

iv Transactions with related parties     March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

 i)    Dividend received from Hikal Limited   46.40   61.87 

 ii)  Dividend received from Bharat Forge Limited   —      379.87 

 iii)  Dividend received from Kalyani Technoforge Limited   —      14.28 

 iv)  Reimbursement of expenses to Kalyani Steels Limited   13.59   13.40 

      59.99   469.42 

 v)  Purchase of Preference Shares from Kalyani Technoforge Limited   —      132.00 

 vi)  Branding fees paid to Kalyani Technologies Limited   0.56   0.56 

 vii)  Provision for diminution in value of investment in 
  Lord Ganesha Minerals Private Limited   —      15.66 

   ( ` in Million)

v Outstanding balances with related parties     March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

 i)  Mr.Amit B. Kalyani, Chairman, Non-Executive Director   —     4.80 

 ii) Mrs.Deeksha A. Kalyani, Non-Executive Director   —      3.00 

 iii) Mr.B.B. Hattarki, Independent Director   0.40   0.60 

 iv) Mr.S.K. Adivarekar, Independent Director   0.40   1.20 

 v) Mrs.Shruti A. Shah, Independent Director   0.40   —    

 vi) Kalyani Steels Limited   3.70   1.92  

  Total   4.90   11.52
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NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) :

NOTE 28 : FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 
Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost 
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars     March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020 

Financial assets   

Security deposits   0.50   0.50 

Cash and cash equivalents   0.47   1.71 

Bank balances other than above   562.33   248.87 

Other financial assets   —     103.50 

Total fi nancial assets   563.30   354.58 

Financial liabilities   

Trade payables   1.42   2.01 

Accrued expenses   4.77   10.39 

Total fi nancial liabilities   6.19   12.40 

    ( ` in Million)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
value - recurring fair value measurements 

Investment in preference shares   

March 31, 2021 —  —     521.36 

March 31, 2020 —  —     475.92 

Investments in mutual funds   

March 31, 2021  8.61   —     —   

March 31, 2020  189.28   —     —   

Investment in equity shares   

March 31, 2021  39,269.15   ·     5,121.68 

March 31, 2020  15,713.16   —     2,245.36 

Financial assets and liabilities classifi ed as FVTPL 
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars     March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

Investment in preference shares   521.36   475.92 

Investments in mutual funds   8.61   189.28 

Financial assets and liabilities classifi ed as FVTOCI 
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars     March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

Investment in equity shares   44,390.83   17,958.52 

i) Fair value hierarchy   

  This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments 
that are (a) recognized and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are 
disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the  reliability of the inputs used in determining 
fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into three levels prescribed under the accounting 
standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

Level 1 :  Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.    

Level 2 :  The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation 
techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific 
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is 
included in Level 2.

Level 3 :  If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included 
in Level 3.
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ii)  Valuation process   

 The finance department of the Company includes a team that performs the valuations of assets and liabilities required 
for financial reporting purposes. This team appoints external valuation experts whenever the need arises for Level 3 
fair valuation. This team reports directly to the Chief Financial Officer (CFO). Discussions of valuation processes and 
results are held between the CFO and the valuation team at least once every year, in line with the CompanyÊs annual 
reporting period. 

iii)  Fair value of fi nancial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost   

 The carrying amounts of such financial assets and liabilities are a reasonable approximation of their fair values.    

iv)  Fair value measurements using signifi cant unobservable inputs (Level 3)    
  The following table presents the changes in level 3 items :     

( ` in Million)  

Particulars  Preference shares   Equity Shares   Total 

 As at April 1, 2020   475.92   2,245.36   2,721.28 

 Gains / (losses) recognized in profit or loss   45.44   —     45.44 

 Gains / (losses) recognized in other comprehensive income   —     2,876.32   2,876.32 

 As at March 31, 2021   521.36   5,121.68   5,643.04 

NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) :
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NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) :
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The sensitivity analysis on account of inputs used for fair valuation are as follows :      

Particulars   March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

1.  Equity Shares of Saarloha Advanced Materials Private Limited :  
 EV / EBIDTA multiple & Price / Sales multiple  
 Increase by 10%  108.07 —

 Decrease by 10%  (111.64) —

 Increase by 5%  — 21.04
 Decrease by 5%  — (28.19)

2.  Equity Shares of KSL Holdings  Private Limited :  
 Fair Value of investments  
 Increase by 5%   68.35 22.61
 Decrease by 5%    (22.56)  (21.01)

3.  Equity Shares of Khed Economic Infrastructure Private Limited :  
     Rate per acre  
 Increase by 5%  32.97 32.85
 Decrease by 5%   (32.97)  (32.85)

4.  Preference Shares of Baramati Speciality Steels Limited :  
     Discount rate  
 Increase by 1%   (0.87)  (0.51)
 Decrease by 1%   0.87   0.51 

5.  Preference shares of Kalyani Technoforge Limited :  
     Discount rate  
 Increase by 1%   3.98   (9.30)
 Decrease by 1%   (3.98)  9.30 

NOTE 29 : FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Presented below is a description of the risks (market risk and liquidity risk) together with a sensitivity analysis, performed 
annually, of each of these risks based on selected changes in market rates and prices. These analyses reflect managementÊs 
view of changes which are reasonably possible to occur over a one-year period.  
I Market Risk    

 A)  Foreign currency risk  

   Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of 
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company does not have foreign currency transactions and thereby is not 
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions.

II Liquidity Risk

 Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an 
adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to close out market positions. Due to 
the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, Company treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining 
availability under committed credit lines. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the CompanyÊs liquidity position 
and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. In addition, the CompanyÊs liquidity management 
policy involves projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these debt financing 
plans.  

 i) Maturities of fi nancial liabilities  

   The tables below analyse the CompanyÊs financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their 
contractual maturities :

NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) :

   ( ` in Million)

March 31, 2021     Less than 1 year  More than 1 year 

Non - derivative  

Trade payables  1.42  —   

Accrued Expenses   4.72  —   

   ( ` in Million)

March 31, 2020     Less than 1 year  More than 1 year 

Non - derivative  

Trade payables   2.01   —  

Accrued Expenses   10.34   —   
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NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) :

   ( ` in Million)

Particulars  March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 

Gross carrying amount  50.07   50.07 

Expected loss rate 100.00% 100.00%

Expected credit losses (loss allowance provision)  50.07   50.07 

Carrying amount of loans (net of impairment)  —    —   

III Credit Risk  

 The Company is exposed to credit risk from its activity of giving loans and from its financing activities, including 
deposits with banks and other financial instruments.

 The balances with banks are subject to low credit risk since the counter-party has strong capacity to meet the obligations 
and where the risk of default is negligible or nil. Hence, no provision has been created for expected credit loss for credit 
risk arising from these financial assets.

 A  Loans 

   i)  Expected credit loss for loans :

NOTE 30 : CAPITAL MANAGEMENT  

The CompanyÊs objectives when managing capital are to safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that 
they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and maintain an optimal capital 
structure to reduce the cost of capital.                                                                                                                                                       

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual operating plans and long-term product 
and other strategic investment plans. The funding requirements are met through equity. In order to maintain or adjust the 
capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, 
issue new shares or sell assets.                                                                                                                                                    

The capital structure of the Company is as follows :  

   ( ` in Million)

Loss allowance as on April 1, 2020   50.07 

Changes in loss allowance   —  

Loss allowance as on March 31, 2021   50.07 

   ii) Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - loans

  
  ( ` in Million)

Particulars     March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

Share Capital   43.65   43.65 

Other Equity   44,893.63   18,965.75  

 Total  44,937.28   19,009.40  

Debt equity ratio   —  —

NOTE 31 : CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

       ( ` in Million)  

Sr.   Particulars   Year ended  Year ended
No.     March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year   1.91   2.37 

    Total  1.91   2.37
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b)(i)Amount spent during the year 

       ( ` in Million)  

Sr.  Particulars   2020-21 
No.      In cash Yet to be paid
        in cash 

1  Promotion of education   
  -  Donation     1.91  —   
    Total  1.91   —   

b)(ii) Amount spent during the year 

    ( `  in Million)  

Sr.  Particulars   2019-20 
No.      In cash Yet to be paid
        in cash 

1  Promotion of education   

  -  Donation     2.37   —   

    Total  2.37  —

NOTE 32 : SEGMENT REPORTING    

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating 
decision maker. The Board of Directors has been identified as the chief operating decision maker.   

The Company is in the business of making investments in group companies, focusing on earning income through 
dividends, interest and gains on investment held, which is a single segment in accordance with Ind AS 108 „Operating 
segment‰ notified pursuant to Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.  

All assets are in India. 

NOTE 33 :  

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (ÂCodeÊ) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment received 
Indian Parliament approval and Presidential assent in September, 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of 
India and subsequently on November 13, 2020 draft rules were published and invited for stakeholdersÊ suggestions. 
However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not notified. The Company will assess the impact of the 
Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period of the Code becomes effective. 

NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) :

NOTE 34

The Company has considered the impact of COVID 19 pandemic on its business operations and financial results based 
on its review of current indicators of future economic conditions. However, the impact assessment of this pandemic is a 
continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration and accordingly the Company will 
continue to monitor any material changes of future economic conditions. 

NOTE 35

Section 2(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 defines Associate Company in relation to another company as a company in 
which that other company has a significant influence, but which is not a subsidiary company of the company having such 
influence and includes a joint venture company. As per explanation to Section 2(6), significant influence means control of at 
least twenty percent of paid-up equity share capital and convertible preference share capital or of business decisions under 
an agreement.     

The Company holds investments in below mentioned entities which by share ownership are deemed to be Associate 
Companies :

Sr. No.  Name of the company  Ultimate holding as on March 31, 2021 

i) Dandakaranya Investment and Trading Private Limited 23.92% 

ii) Hastinapur Investment and Trading Private Limited 23.92% 

iii) Dronacharya Investment and Trading Private Limited 23.92% 

iv) Campanula Investment and Finance Private Limited 23.91% 

v) Cornflower Investment and Finance Private Limited 23.91% 
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As per our attached Report of even date 

For P G Bhagwat LLP   On behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.101118W/W100682

Abhijeet Bhagwat   Akshay Chikodikar Sanjay Yewale Amit B. Kalyani R.K. Goyal

Partner  Company Secretary Chief Executive Officer  Chairman Director 
Membership No.136835  &  Chief Financial Officer

Place : Pune  Place : Pune

Date  : May 18, 2021  Date  : May 18, 2021

NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) :

However, the Company does not exercise significant influence in any of the above entities, as demonstrated below : 

i)  The Company does not have any representation on the Board of Directors or corresponding governing body of the 
investee.

ii)  The Company does not participate in policy making process.   

iii)  The Company does not have any material transaction with the investee.   

iv)  The Company does not interchange any managerial personnel.   

v)  The Company does not provide any essential technical information to the investee.  

Accordingly, the above entities have not been considered to be Associate Companies. 

NOTE 36   

Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to conform with current yearÊs classification 
/ disclosure.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To 

The Members of 

Kalyani Investment Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Kalyani Investment Company Limited (hereinafter 
referred to as the „Holding Company‰) and its Associates, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 
2021, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement 
of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter 
referred to as „the Consolidated Financial Statements‰).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration 
of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements of Associates, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements 
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (Âthe Act‰) in the manner so required and give a true and fair 
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the 
Holding Company and its Associates as at March 31, 2021, of the consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, 
consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing („SAs‰) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. 
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the AuditorÊs Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Holding Company and its Associates 
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and 
the Rules thereunder and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and 
the Code of Ethics. 

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and by the other auditors referred to in the „Other Matter‰ paragraph, 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters.

a. Valuation of investments

At the balance sheet date, the value of investments amounted to ` 46,838.10 Million representing 98.80% of the total assets. 
Investments have been considered as key audit matter due to the size of the balance, various recognition and subsequent 
measurement principles. Refer Note 1A(l) to the Consolidated Financial Statements for its accounting policy.

Principle Audit Procedures 

i)  We have understood and evaluated the process of the management to identify impairment indicators (if any) for the 
CompanyÊs investments.

ii) For quoted investments, we have independently verified the fair values.

iii)  We have evaluated the fair value of unquoted investments adopted by the management and assessed the parameters 
of the fair valuation reports obtained by the management from external experts.  

iv)  On a test check basis, we have verified appropriate evidence with regard to assertions of existence and rights to the 
investments.  

v)  We have verified principles for recognition, subsequent measurement and disclosures as specified in the accounting 
policy adopted by the Company based on the Ind Accounting Standards.

Other Information 

The Holding CompanyÊs Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
Management Discussion and Analysis; Board of DirectorsÊ Report along with its Annexures and Corporate Governance Report 
included in the Annual Report but does not include the Consolidated Financial Statements and our AuditorsÊ Report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility 
is to read the other information and in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we 
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding CompanyÊs Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Consolidated 
Financial Statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, 
consolidated financial performance (including other comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in 
equity and consolidated cash flows of the Holding Company and its Associates in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards  specified under Section 133 of the Act read with 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. 



71

KALYANI  INVESTMENT

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its Associates are responsible for maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Holding Company and 
its Associates and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements that give 
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the 
purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its 
Associates are responsible for assessing the ability of the Holding Company and its Associates to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Holding Company and its Associates or to cease operations or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its Associates are responsible for overseeing the financial 
reporting process of the Holding Company and its Associates.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditorÊs report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. 

We also :

� Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations 
or the override of internal control.

� Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 
the Holding Company and its Associates has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls.

� Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.

� Conclude on the appropriateness of managementÊs use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the ability of the Holding Company and its Associates to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditorÊs report to the related disclosures in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements or if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditorÊs report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Holding Company and its Associates to cease to continue as a going concern.

� Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial Statements, including the 
disclosures and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation.

� Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities 
within the Holding Company and its Associates to express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements. We 
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the Financial Statements of such entities 
included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities 
included in the Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors 
remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely 
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and other companies included in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 
we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on our independence and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditorÊs report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication.
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Other Matters

The Consolidated Financial Statements includes the Holding CompanyÊs share (by equity method) of total comprehensive 
income of ` 413.04 Million from its two Associates whose financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose 
report has been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements to the extent 
they have been derived from such financial statements and our report in terms of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act, in 
so far as it relates to the aforesaid Associates, in based solely on the audit report of the other auditor.

Our audit opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of the other auditors 
on separate financial statements of its Associates, as noted in the Other Matters paragraph, we report, to the extent 
applicable, that :

 a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements.

 b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid Consolidated 
Financial Statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the 
other auditors.

 c)  The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with 
by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of 
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

 d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

 e)  On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors of the Holding Company as on March 31, 
2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of auditors of its Associates, 
none of the Directors of the Holding Company and its Associates, is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being 
appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

 f)  For our opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Holding 
Company and its Associates and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure I.

 g)  As required by Section 197(16) of the Act; in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 
to us and based on reports of auditors of the Associates, the remuneration paid / provided during the current year 
to its Directors by the Holding Company and the Associates is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of 
the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. 

 h)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the AuditorÊs Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us and on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements :

  (i) The Consolidated Financial Statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2021 on the 
consolidated financial position of the Holding Company and its Associates - Refer Note 27 to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements.

  (ii) The Holding Company and its Associates did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts 
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

  (iii) There are no amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding 
Company and its Associates during the year ended March 31, 2021.

For  P G Bhagwat LLP
Chartered Accountants

  Firm Registration No.101118W/W100682

Abhijeet Bhagwat
Partner

Membership No.136835                          
Pune    UDIN : 21136835AAAABJ8910
May 18, 2021

Annexure I to the Independent Auditor’s Report 
Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading, „Report on Other legal and Regulatory Requirements‰ of our report on 
even date :

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements under Clause (i) of              
sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements of Kalyani 
Investment Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as the „Holding Company‰) and its Associates for the year ended 
on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  

The management of the Holding Company and its Associates is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company 
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considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal financial controls 
over financial reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to CompanyÊs policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company and its AssociatesÊ internal financial controls with 
reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal financial controls over financial reporting (the „Guidance Note‰) and the Standards 
on Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the internal financial controls with reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference 
to Consolidated Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference 
to Consolidated Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditorÊs judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and audit evidence obtained by other auditors of the Associates 
in terms of their report referred to in other matter paragraph below is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Holding Company and its Associates internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated 
Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A CompanyÊs internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A CompanyÊs internal financial control over 
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being 
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and Directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the CompanyÊs 
assets that could have a material effect on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because 
of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and based on the audit reports of other auditors, the Holding Company and its Associates have, in all 
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting  with reference to Consolidated 
Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 
the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal financial controls over financial reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial 
controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements insofar as it relates to the two Associates, is based on the 
corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies.

For P G Bhagwat LLP
Chartered Accountants

  Firm Registration No.101118W/W100682

Abhijeet Bhagwat
Partner

Membership No.136835                          
Pune    UDIN : 21136835AAAABJ8910
May 18, 2021
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ASSETS  

Financial Assets  

 (a) Cash and cash equivalents 3    0.47   1.71 

 (b) Bank balances other than (a) above 4    562.33   248.87   

 (c) Loans 5   —     —   

 (d) Investments 6    46,838.10   20,174.39 

 (e) Other financial assets 7    0.50   104.00 

      Total  47,401.40   20,528.97 

Non-Financial Assets    

 (a) Property, Plant and Equipment 8    4.31   5.27 

 (b) Assets for current tax (net) 9    2.27   2.32 

        6.58   7.59 

Total Assets       47,407.98   20,536.56 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY    

Liabilities    

Financial Liabilities    

 (a) Trade payables 10  

  Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 

  and small enterprises     —    —   

  Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 

  micro enterprises and small enterprises     1.42   2.01 

 (b) Other financial liabilities 11    4.77   10.39 

      Total   6.19   12.40 

Non-Financial Liabilities    

 (a) Provisions 12    0.03   0.02 

 (b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 13    1,124.22   439.17 

 (c) Other non-financial liabilities 14    0.45   0.40 

      Total  1,124.70   439.59 

Equity    

 (a) Share capital 15    43.65   43.65 

 (b) Other equity   

  (i) Reserves & Surplus 16    46,233.44   20,040.92 

      Total  46,277.09   20,084.57   

Total Liabilities and Equity      47,407.98   20,536.56 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2021

       As at As at 

       March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 

    Notes

As per our attached Report of even date 

For  P G Bhagwat LLP   On behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.101118W/W100682

Abhijeet Bhagwat   Akshay Chikodikar Sanjay Yewale Amit B. Kalyani R.K. Goyal

Partner  Company Secretary Chief Executive Officer  Chairman Director 
Membership No.136835  &  Chief Financial Officer

Place : Pune  Place : Pune

Date  : May 18, 2021  Date  : May 18, 2021

Significant Accounting Policies   1

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 2 

The notes referred to above form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements   

( ` in Million)
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As per our attached Report of even date 

For  P G Bhagwat LLP   On behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.101118W/W100682

Abhijeet Bhagwat   Akshay Chikodikar Sanjay Yewale Amit B. Kalyani R.K. Goyal

Partner  Company Secretary Chief Executive Officer  Chairman Director 
Membership No.136835  &  Chief Financial Officer

Place : Pune  Place : Pune

Date  : May 18, 2021  Date  : May 18, 2021

Revenue from Operations     

(a) Dividend income 17   —     394.15 

(b) Interest on fixed deposit 17   33.37   8.85 

(c) Others   17   0.67   3.29 

(d) Net gain on fair value changes 18   45.60   13.46  

       79.64   419.75 

Other Income  19   —     1.70 

Total Income      79.64   421.45

Expenses   

(a) Employee benefits expense 20   16.80   13.90 

(b) Depreciation 21   0.97   0.98

(c) Other expenses  22  15.35   38.55 

Total expenses    33.12   53.43

Profi t before share in profi t after tax of associates   46.52   368.02 

Share in profit after tax of associates accounted for using equity method  417.56   264.77 

Profi t before tax     464.08   632.79 

Tax expense  23  

Current tax     18.65   4.85 

Deferred tax expense    103.95   152.34

Taxation in respect of earlier years (MAT)    (4.37)  (4.78)   

Total Tax expense    118.23   152.41 

Profi t for the year    345.85   480.38

Other comprehensive income, net of tax   

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss   

     - Changes in fair value of FVTOCI equity investment    26,432.30   (17,905.78)

     - Tax on above    582.37   1.15

Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for using equity method   (3.26)  (0.41) 

Total other comprehensive income for the year (net)    25,846.67   (17,905.04)

Total comprehensive income for the year    26,192.52   (17,424.66)

Earnings per share (of  ` 10 /- each) : 24  

Basic & Diluted    79.23   110.05 

      Year ended Year ended

      March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

    Notes

Significant accounting policies 1 

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

( ` in Million)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
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As per our attached Report of even date 

For  P G Bhagwat LLP   On behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.101118W/W100682

Abhijeet Bhagwat   Akshay Chikodikar Sanjay Yewale Amit B. Kalyani R.K. Goyal

Partner  Company Secretary Chief Executive Officer  Chairman Director 
Membership No.136835  &  Chief Financial Officer

Place : Pune  Place : Pune

Date  : May 18, 2021  Date  : May 18, 2021

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

A. Equity Share Capital    
    ( ` in Million)  

Particulars  Notes   No. of shares   Amount 

As at April 1, 2019  15   4,365,306   43.65 

Changes in equity share capital   —      —    

As at March 31, 2020  15   4,365,306   43.65 

Changes in equity share capital   —     —   

As at March 31, 2021  15   4,365,306   43.65 

B. Other Equity      

( ` in Million)  

      ( ` in Million)  

     Reserves and Surplus          Other reserve   

Particulars Notes  Retained  General  Statutory   Capital  FVTOCI Total
  Earnings   reserve  Reserve  Redemption equity
    Fund  reserve    investment
        reserve 

As at April 1, 2019 16  1,912.40   2,146.65   290.79   576.00   32,800.94   37,726.78 

Less : Adjustment to opening balance   (261.20)  —     —     —     —     (261.20)

Profit for the year   480.38   —     —     —     —  480.38 

Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) :       

Changes in fair value of equity instruments    —     —     —     —     (17,904.63)  (17,904.63)

Other Comprehensive income of associates accounted 

for using Equity Method   (0.41)  —     —     —     —     (0.41)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year   479.97   —     —     —     (17,904.63)  (17,424.66)

Transferred to Statutory Reserve Fund during the year 16  (85.23)  —     85.23   —     —     —   

As at March 31, 2020   2,045.94   2,146.65   376.02   576.00   14,896.31   20,040.92 

     Reserves and Surplus          Other reserve   

Particulars Notes  Retained  General  Statutory   Capital  FVTOCI Total
  Earnings   reserve  Reserve  Redemption equity
    Fund  reserve    investment
        reserve 

As at April 1, 2020 16  2,045.94   2,146.65   376.02   576.00   14,896.31   20,040.92 

Profit for the year   345.85   —     —     —     —     345.85 

Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) :       

Changes in fair value of equity instruments    —     —     —     —     25,849.93   25,849.93 

Other Comprehensive income of associates accounted 
for using Equity Method   (3.26) — — — —  (3.26)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year   342.59   —     —     —     25,849.93   26,192.52 

Transferred to Statutory Reserve Fund during the year 16  (15.59) —  15.59  — —  —  

As at March 31, 2021   2,372.94   2,146.65   391.61   576.00   40,746.24   46,233.44 

Significant accounting policies 1   

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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As per our attached Report of even date 

For  P G Bhagwat LLP   On behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.101118W/W100682

Abhijeet Bhagwat   Akshay Chikodikar Sanjay Yewale Amit B. Kalyani R.K. Goyal

Partner  Company Secretary Chief Executive Officer  Chairman Director 
Membership No.136835  &  Chief Financial Officer

Place : Pune  Place : Pune

Date  : May 18, 2021  Date  : May 18, 2021

A)  Cash Flows from Operating Activities

 Profi t before income tax    464.08   632.79 
 Adjustments to reconcile profi t before tax to net cash fl ows  

 Depreciation and amortisation   0.97 0.98

 Profit on sale of investments    (0.67)  (3.29)

 Net gain on fair value changes    (45.60)  (13.46)

 Impairment of investment   —    15.66

 Provision no longer required   —    (1.70)   

 Share of net profits of associate    (417.56)  (264.77)

 Cash Generated from Operations before working capital changes   1.22   366.21 

 Adjustments for changes in working capital  

 Increase / (Decrease) in provisions    0.01   0.01

 Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables   (2.20)  2.17 

 Increase / (Decrease) in other financial liabilities    (5.62)  0.74 

 Increase / (Decrease)  in other non financial liabilities    0.05   (0.98) 

 (Increase) / Decrease in other financial assets    (209.97)  (352.37)   

 Cash generated from Operations    (216.51)  15.78 

 Income taxes paid (net of refunds)   (14.26)  (2.21)

 Net Cash from Operating Activities    (230.77)  13.57 

  

B)  Cash Flows from Investing Activities  

 (Purchase) / Sale of shares   —     (132.00)

 (Purchase) / Sale of mutual funds    183.13   57.29

 Dividend received from associate   46.40 61.87

 Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities    229.53   (12.84)

  

C)  Cash Flows from Financing Activities  

 Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities   —     —   

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents     (1.24)  0.73

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer Note 3)   1.71   0.98 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer Note 3)    0.47   1.71 

This statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 - Statement of Cash Flows.  

Significant accounting policies 1

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 2 

The notes referred to above form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements  

      Year ended Year ended

      March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

( ` in Million)



78

Consolidated Financial Statements
2020-2021

NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts are in Rupees Million, except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

Background

Kalyani Investment Company Limited („the Company‰) is a public limited company domiciled in India and incorporated in June, 2009 under the provisions 
of Companies Act, 1956. The equity shares of the Company are listed on two recognized stock exchanges in India i.e. BSE Limited (BSE) and National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited (NSE). The Company is primarily engaged in the business of making investments in group companies. The Registered Office of 
the Company is located at Mundhwa, Pune - 411 036. The CIN of the Company is L65993PN2009PLC134196. The Company and its associates are together 
referred to as the ÂGroupÊ.

These consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorized for issue on May 18, 2021.

1A. Signifi cant Accounting Policies 

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements. These policies have been 
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 

(a)  Basis of preparation

 (i)  Compliance with Ind AS

   These consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under  
 the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time. 

 (ii)  Historical cost convention

   The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following :

   � Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value.

   � Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value.

 (iii)  Current versus non-current classification

   The Group presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification.  

   An asset is treated as current when it is :

   � Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle. 

  � Held primarily for the purpose of trading.

  � Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period or

  � Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

  All other assets are classified as non-current.

  A liability is current when :

   � It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.

  � It is held primarily for the purpose of trading.

  � It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period or 

  � There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

  The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

  The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has 
identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

 (iv)  Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

  � Associates

    Associates are all entities over which the group has significant influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the case where the group 
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, after initially 
being recognized at cost.

  � Equity method

   Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognized at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the GroupÊs share of 
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit and loss and the GroupÊs share of other comprehensive income of the investee in other 
comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from associates and joint ventures are recognized as a reduction in the carrying amount 
of the investment.

   When the GroupÊs share of losses in an equity accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any other unsecured   
long-term receivables, the group does not recognize further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the other 
entity.

   Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the groupÊs interest in 
these entities. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting 
policies of equity accounted investees have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group. 

   The Group has adopted not to recognize the effects of the transactions recorded in equity of associate outside the statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income of the associate.

(b)  Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID 19 

 The Group has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID 19 on the carrying amounts of Investments. In 
developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Group as at the 
date of approval of these financial statements has used internal and external sources of information including credit reports and related information, 
economic forecasts. The impact of COVID 19 on the GroupÊs financial statements may differ from the estimated as at the date of approval of these 
financial statements.

(c)  Segment Reporting 

 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The chief operating 
decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of 
Directors that makes strategic decisions for the group. Refer Note 33 for segment information presented.
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(d) Foreign currency transactions 

 Functional and presentation currency

 Items included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which 
the entity operates (`the functional currencyÊ). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the GroupÊs functional 
and presentation currency.

 Initial Recognition 

 Foreign currency transactions are recorded in Indian currency, by applying the exchange rate between the Indian currency and the foreign currency at 
the date of transaction.

 Conversion  

 Monetary items, designated in foreign currencies are revalued at the rate prevailing on the date of Balance Sheet.

 Exchange Differences 

 Exchange differences arising on the settlement and conversion of foreign currency transactions are recognized as income or as expenses in the year 
in which they arise, except in cases where they relate to the acquisition of qualifying assets, in which cases they were adjusted in the cost of the 
corresponding asset.

(e) Interest Income 

 Interest income from debt instruments is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income can 
be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a timely basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, 
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that assetÊs net carrying amount 
on initial recognition.

(f) Dividends

 Dividends are recognized in profit or loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with 
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

(g)  Taxes 

 Current tax 

 Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year as determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the 
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. The management periodically evaluates positions taken in returns with respect to situations in which applicable 
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to tax authorities.

 Deferred Tax 

 Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying 
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

 Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except :

 �  When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination 
and at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

 � In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in associates when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can 
be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

 Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred 
tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the 
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except :

 �  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction 
   that is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

 � In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in associates deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that 
it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary 
differences can be utilized. 

 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable 
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date 
and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, 
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

 Current and deferred taxes are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity. 

 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and 
the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

(h)  Leases

 The determination of whether a contract is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the contract at the inception of the lease. The contract is or 
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 

 Group as a Lessee

 At the commencement date, a lessee shall recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. A lessee shall measure the lease liability at the present value 
of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments shall be discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be 
readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee shall use the lesseeÊs incremental borrowing rate. 

 The Group uses the practical expedient to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics if the effects on the 
financial statements of applying to the portfolio does not differ materially from applying the requirement to the individual leases within that portfolio. 

 However, when the lessee and the lessor each have the right to terminate the lease without permission from the other party with no more than an 
insignificant penalty the Group considers that lease to be no longer enforceable.  Also according to Ind AS 116, for leases with a lease term of 12 months or 
less (short-term leases) and for leases for which the underlying asset is of low value, the lessee is not required to recognize right-of-use asset and a lease 
liability. The Group applies both recognition exemptions.  
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 Right of use asset

 Right-of-use assets, which are included under property, plant and equipment, are measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and if necessary, 

any accumulated impairment. The cost of a right-of-use asset comprises the present value of the outstanding lease payments plus any lease payments 

made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, any initial direct costs and an estimate of costs to be incurred in dismantling 

or removing the underlying asset. In this context, the Group also applies the practical expedient that the payments for non-lease components are 

generally recognized as lease payments.

 If the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the lessee at the end of the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the lessee 

will exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated to the end of the useful life of the underlying asset. Otherwise, the right-of-use asset 

is depreciated to the end of the lease term.

 Lease liability

 Lease liabilities, which are assigned to financing liabilities, are measured initially at the present value of the lease payments. Subsequent measurement of 

a lease liability includes the increase of the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability and reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease 

payments made.

 Lease modification

 For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, the Company accounts for the re-measurement of the lease liability by making a 

corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

 Company as Lessor

 A lessor shall classify each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all 

the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the 

risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. 

 Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the group net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to 

accounting periods to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

 Where the Company is a lessor under an operating lease, the asset is capitalised within property, plant and equipment and depreciated over its useful 

economic life. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain possession of the asset upon end of the lease term, the asset is 

depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term. 

 Rental income from operating lease is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless the payments to the lessor are 

structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessorÊs expected inflationary cost increases or another systematic 

basis is available. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and 

recognized over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

 Effective April 1, 2019, the group adopted Ind AS 116 „Leases‰ for the first time, using the modified retrospective transition method, applied to lease 

contracts that are ongoing as at April 1, 2019.

(i)  Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months 

or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

 For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding 

bank overdrafts and cash credit facilities as they are considered an integral part of the GroupÊs cash management.

(j) Fair value measurement

 The Group measures financial instruments at fair value on initial recognition.

 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 

measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either :

 � In the principal market for the asset or liability or 

 � In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

 The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

 The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming 

that market participants act in their economic best interest.

 A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participantÊs ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its 

highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

 The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, 

maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are categorized within the fair value 

hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level inputs that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole : 

 � Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

 � Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

 � Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is un-observable

 For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have 

occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization at the end of each reporting period.

 External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as unquoted financial assets. Involvement of external valuers is decided upon 

annually by the management. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained. 

The management decides, after discussions with the CompanyÊs external valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case.

 For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of 

the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

(k)  Financial instruments 

 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.  
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(l)  Financial assets

 Initial recognition and measurement

 All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction 
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

 Subsequent measurement 

 For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories :

 � Financial assets at amortized cost

 � Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

 � Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

 Financial assets at amortized cost

 A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if both following conditions are met : 

 � The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and 

 � The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding.

 After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized 
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization 
is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 

 A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the following criteria are met :

 � The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets 
and 

 � The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding.

 After initial measurement, such financial assets, until they are de-recognized or reclassified, are subsequently measured at fair value and recognized in 
other comprehensive income except for interest income, gain / loss on impairment, gain / loss on foreign exchange which is recognized in the statement 
of profit and loss.

 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

 A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive 
income.

 In addition, the Group may elect to classify a financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income 
criteria, as at fair value through profit or loss. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition 
inconsistency (referred to as Âaccounting mismatchÊ). After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value in the 
statement of profit and loss.

 De-recognition of financial assets 

 A financial asset is de-recognized when :

 �  The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired or 

 �  The Group has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in 
full without material delay to a third party under a pass-through arrangement and either :

  (a) The Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or 

  (b) The Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

 Impairment of financial assets

 In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following 
financial assets and credit risk exposure :

 � Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured at amortized cost e.g. loans, debt-securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

 � Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI.

 The Group follows Âsimplified approachÊ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables.

 The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based 
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 

 For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that whether there has been a significant increase 
in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, 
if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no 
longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 month 
ECL. 

 Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12 month ECL 
is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

 ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group 
expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider :

 � All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial 
instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the Group is required to use 
the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument.

 � Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

 ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income / expense in the statement of profit and loss. This 
amount is reflected under the head „Other Expenses‰ in the statement of profit and loss.
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 The Balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

 � Financial assets measured as at amortized cost.

 ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying 
amount. Until the asset meets write-offs criteria, the Group does not de-recognize impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

 The Group does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e. financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/
origination.

(m)  De-recognition of fi nancial liabilities 

 A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is de-recognized from its balance sheet when and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the 

obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

 When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are 

substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of an new liability. 

The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

(n)  Offsetting of fi nancial instruments

 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the 

recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable 

right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or 

bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.

(o)  Property, plant and equipment

 Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction net of accumulated depreciation and impairment loss (if any). All directly 

attributable costs relating to the acquisition and installation of property, plant and equipment are capitalized. All repair and maintenance costs are 

recognized in statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred. 

 Subsequent costs are included in the assetÊs carrying amount as recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future 

economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any 

component accounted for a separate asset is de-recognized when replaced. 

 The identified components are depreciated over their useful lives, the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the principal asset.

 Depreciation on additions is provided from the beginning of the month in which the asset is put to use.

 Depreciation on assets sold, discarded or demolished during the year is being provided at their respective rates on pro-rata basis up to the end of the 

month prior to the month in which such assets are sold, discarded or demolished. 

 The useful lives has been determined based on technical evaluation done by the managementÊs expert which are higher than those specified by Schedule 

II to the Companies Act, 2013, in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. 

 Depreciation is charged on the basis of useful life of assets on straight line method.

 An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic 

benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset is included in the consolidated statement of profit 

and loss when the asset is de-recognized.

 The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year.

 Transition to Ind AS

 On transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognized as at April 1, 

2017 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

(p)  Impairment of non-fi nancial assets

 The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, the Group estimates the 

assetÊs recoverable amount. An assetÊs recoverable amount is the higher of an assetÊs or cash-generating unitÊs (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and 

its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of 

those from other assets or group of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired 

and is written down to its recoverable amount.

 In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 

assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are 

taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. 

 Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

 Previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the assetÊs recoverable amount 

since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of asset does not exceed its recoverable amount. Such 

reversal is recognized in statement of profit and loss.

(q)  Trade and other payables

 These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other 
payables are unsecured and are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within operating cycle determined by the Group after the 
reporting period. They are recognized initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

(r) Provisions and contingent liabilities 

 Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are determined based 
on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. Provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect 
current best estimates.

 A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of 
one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot 
be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial 
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statements. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made where there is a possible obligation arising out of past events, the existence of which will be 
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group or a present 
obligation arising out of a past event where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the 
amount cannot be made.

(s)  Employee Benefi ts

 (i)  Short-term Employee Benefits

  The distinction between short term and long term employee benefits is based on expected timing of settlement rather than the employeeÊs entitlement 
benefits. All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term benefits. Such benefits include 
salaries, wages, bonus, short term compensated absences, awards, ex-gratia, performance pay etc. and are recognized in the period in which the 
employee renders the related service.

 (ii)  Long term Employment benefits

  The employeeÊs long term compensated absences are GroupÊs other long term benefit plans. The present value of the obligation is determined based 
on the actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method as at the date of Balance sheet. In case of funded plans, the fair value of plan asset 
is reduced from the gross obligation, to recognize the obligation on a net basis.

  In regard to other long term employment benefits, the Group recognizes the net total of service costs, net interest on the net defined benefit asset / 
liability and re-measurements of the net defined benefit asset / liability in the statement of profit and loss.

  Provident Fund 

  The Group operates single plan for its employees to provide employee benefits in the nature of provident fund.

  The Group pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per regulations. The group has no further payment 
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are 
recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due.

  Eligible employees receive benefits from a provident fund, which is a defined benefit plan. Both the employee and the Group make monthly 
contributions to the provident fund plan equal to a specified percentage of the covered employeeÊs salary

 (iii)  Termination benefits

  Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date or when an employee accepts 
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognizes termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates : (a) when the 
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognizes costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of          
Ind AS 37 and involves the payment of terminations benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination 
benefits are measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of the 
reporting period are discounted to present value.

(t) Paid up equity

 Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(u)  Cash Flow statement

 Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non cash nature and 
deferral or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular operating, investing and financing activities of the Group are 
segregated.

(v) Dividend Liability

 The Group recognizes a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the Group when distribution is authorized and the distribution 
is no longer at the discretion of the Group. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorized when it is approved by the shareholders. A 
corresponding amount is recognized directly in equity.

(w) Earnings per share

 (i)  Basic Earnings per Share

  Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the financial year. Earnings considered in ascertaining the groupÊs earnings per share is the net profit for the period 
after deducting any attributable tax thereto for the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all 
periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number 
of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.   

 (ii)  Diluted Earnings per Share

  For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted 
average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

(x)  Rounding of amounts

 All amounts disclosed in these consolidated financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest Million as per the requirement of 
Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

1.B  Standards issued but not effective

 Following exposure drafts have been issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India :

 1.  Amendment to Ind AS 116 „Leases‰ - COVID 19 - Related Rent Concessions beyond June 30, 2021

  On July 24, 2020, the MCA issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules, 2020 which amended Ind AS 116 to provide 
relief for lessees in accounting for eligible rent concessions upto July 31, 2021 that are a direct consequence of COVID 19. The exposure draft on 
amendments to Ind AS 116 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India proposes amendments to extend the relief for lessees in 
accounting for eligible rent concessions upto July 31, 2022.

 2.  Amendment to Ind AS 116  „Leases‰ - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform : Phase 2

  The exposure draft on amendments to Ind AS 116 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India proposes amendments to include 
a practical expedient in respect of all lease modifications that change the basis for determining future lease payments as a result of interest rate 
benchmark reform.

 3.  Amendments to Ind AS 37 „Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets‰ - Onerous Contracts

  The exposure draft on amendments to Ind AS 37 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India proposes amendments regarding costs a 
Company should include as the cost of fulfilling a contract when assessing whether a contract is onerous.
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 4. Amendments to Ind AS 16 „Property, Plant and Equipment‰ - Proceeds before Intended Use

  The exposure draft on amendments to Ind AS 16 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India proposes amendments regarding proceeds 
from selling items produced while bringing an asset into the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended 
by management.

 5. Amendments to Ind AS 103 „Business Combinations‰ - Reference to the Conceptual Framework

  The exposure draft on amendments to Ind AS 103 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India proposes amendments to change out 
updated reference to „Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards‰ 
and update it with reference to „Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards‰. It also proposes certain 
consequential amendments.

 6. Amendments to 101 „First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards‰ - Subsidiary as a First-time Adopter

  The exposure draft on amendments to Ind AS 101 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India proposes amendments to simplify the 
application of Ind AS 101 by a subsidiary that becomes a first-time adopter after its parent in relation to the measurement of cumulative translation 
differences.

 7. Amendments to 41 „Agriculture‰ - Taxation in Fair Value Measurements

  The exposure draft on amendments to Ind AS 41 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India proposes amendments to remove a 
requirement to exclude cash flows from taxation when measuring fair value thereby aligning the fair value measurement requirements in Ind AS 41 
with those in other Ind ASÊs.

 8. Amendments to Ind AS 109 „Financial Instruments‰ - Fees in the Â10 per centÊ Test for De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

  The exposure draft on amendments to Ind AS 109 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India proposes amendments to clarify the fees a 
Company includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the original 
financial liability.

 9. Amendments to Ind AS 109 „Financial Instruments‰ and Ind AS 107 „Financial Instruments : Disclosures‰ - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform : Phase 2

  The exposure draft on amendments to Ind AS 109 and Ind AS 107 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India proposes amendments 
to assist entities in providing useful information about the effects of the transition to alternative benchmark rates and support preparers in applying 
the requirements of Ind ASÊs when changes are made to contractual cash flows or hedging relationships as a result of the transition to an alternative 
benchmark interest rate.

 10. New Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 117 „Insurance Contracts‰

  The exposure draft of Ind AS 117 is issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India as replacement for Ind AS 104 Insurance Contracts. 

 11. Amendments to Ind AS 40 „Investment Property‰

  The exposure draft on amendments to Ind AS 40 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India proposes to reinstate the fair value option 
thereby providing the entities an accounting policy choice to subsequently measure investment properties using either the cost model or the fair 
value model. 

 The above exposure drafts have not been notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (ÂMCAÊ) to be applicable from  April 1, 2021 as at the date of 
approval of these financial statements. On issue of the amendment by MCA, the Company would evaluate the impact of the change in the standalone 
financial statements. 

2.   Signifi cant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

 The preparation of the GroupÊs consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. This 
note provides an overview of the areas that involve a higher degree of judgments or complexities and of items which are more likely to be materially 
adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these judgments, 
estimates and assumptions is mentioned below.

 Judgments, estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of 
future events that may have a financial impact on the Group and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

  Estimates and assumptions

 The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of 
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its 
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future 
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected 
in the assumptions when they occur. 

 1. Defi ned benefi t plans 

  The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such obligation are determined using 
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. 
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the 
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are 
reviewed at each reporting date. The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for 
plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of 
the post-employment benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ultimate. Those mortality 
tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and benefit increases are based on 
expected future inflation rates. Further details about employee benefit obligations are given in Note 26.

 2. Fair value measurement of unquoted fi nancial instruments

  When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in 
active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from 
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements 
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the 
reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 29 for further disclosures.

NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) :
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NOTE 3 : CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars     March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020 

 Balances with Banks   

 In current accounts      0.47   1.71  

   Total   0.47   1.71 

NOTE 4 : BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars     March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020 

Term deposits with original maturity of more than three months but less than twelve months   562.33    248.87

   Total   562.33    248.87   

NOTE 5 : LOANS
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars       March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020 

(A) Loans  

(i) Inter-corporate deposit      50.00   50.00 

Total (A) - Gross      50.00   50.00 

Less : Impairment loss allowance      (50.00)  (50.00)

  Total (A) - Net  —     —   

(B) Others   

(i) Unsecured (Other receivable)    0.07   0.07 

Total (B) - Gross    0.07   0.07 

Less : Impairment loss allowance    (0.07)  (0.07)

  Total (B) - Net  —    —

Total (C) - Gross Loans in India    50.07   50.07 

Less : Impairment loss allowance    (50.07)  (50.07)

  Total (C) - Net  —     —  

  Total (A + B) - Net  —   — 

NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) :
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NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) :

Refer notes on Investments below :

35,000 - 12% Non-Cumulative Redeemable „C‰ Preference Shares of  ̀  100/- each fully paid up of Sundaram Trading and Investment Private Limited are redeemable 
on or before July 26, 2027.  

9,400,000 - 8% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of  ` 10/- each fully paid up of Baramati Speciality Steels Limited are redeemable at the end of 20 
years from the date of allotment, i.e. on March 28, 2033, with an option to the said Company to redeem the said shares in one or more tranches at any time on or after 
September 28, 2013.        

5,100,000 - 8% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of  ` 10/- each fully paid up of Baramati Speciality Steels Limited are redeemable at the end of 20 
years from the date of allotment, i.e. on September 28, 2033, with an option to the said Company to redeem the said shares in one or more tranches at any time on 
or after March 28, 2014. 

13,000,000 - 8% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of  ` 10/- each fully paid up of Baramati Speciality Steels Limited are redeemable at par on the expiry 
of 20 years from the date of allotment, i.e. on March 23, 2036, with a call / put option respectively to the said Company as well as the holders of 8%  Non-Cumulative 
Redeemable Preference Shares, after 6 months from the date of allotment, i.e. after September 23, 2016, by giving one monthÊs notice to the other party.

20,000,000 - 8% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of  ` 10/- each fully paid up of Baramati Speciality Steels Limited are redeemable at par on the expiry 
of 20 years from the date of allotment, i.e. on March 23, 2037, with a call / put option respectively to the said Company as well as the holders of 8% Non-Cumulative 
Redeemable Preference Shares, after 6 months from the date of allotment, i.e. after September 23, 2017, by giving one monthÊs notice to the other party. 

9,000,000 - 1% Non-Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preference Shares of  ` 10/- each fully paid up of Lord Ganesha Minerals Private Limited carry option to 
convert  the entire amount outstanding into equity shares of the said company at par. The said 9,000,000 - 1% Non-Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preference 
Shares of  ` 10/- each fully paid up, if not opted for conversion, are redeemable on March 31, 2030. However, the said Company as well as the holders of 1%               
Non-Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preference Shares, have a call / put option respectively, by giving one monthÊs notice to the other party. 

2,030,000 - 8% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of  ` 10/- each fully paid up of Kalyani Mining Ventures Private Limited were redeemable after five 
years from the date of allotment, i.e. on or after March 31, 2020 at the option of Kalyani Mining Ventures Private Limited. Shares which are not redeemed by the 
Company shall be compulsorily redeemed at the expiry of twenty years from the date of allotment, i.e. on March 31, 2035.   

12,500,000 - 7% Cumulative, Optionally Convertible, Non-participating Preference Shares of  ` 10/- each, fully paid up of Kalyani Technoforge Limited allotted 
on December 22, 2017, carry an option to convert the entire amount in Equity Shares of Kalyani Technoforge Limited, at the option to be exercised by Kalyani 
Technoforge Limited. The Preference Shares which are not converted, are redeemable at the end of 7 years from the date of allotment, however Kalyani Technoforge 
Limited can redeem the same after completion of 5 years.    

13,984,973 - 7% Cumulative, Optionally Convertible, Non-participating Preference Shares of  ` 10/- each, fully paid up of Kalyani Technoforge Limited allotted 
on September 6 , 2018 carry an option to convert the entire amount in Equity Shares of Kalyani Technoforge Limited, at the option to be exercised by Kalyani 
Technoforge Limited. The Preference Shares which are not converted, are redeemable at the end of 7 years from the date of allotment, however Kalyani Technoforge 
Limited can redeem the same after completion of 5 years. 

13,200,000 - 7% Cumulative, Optionally Convertible, Non-participating Preference Shares of  ` 10/- each, fully paid up of Kalyani Technoforge Limited allotted 
on September 27, 2019 carry an option to convert the entire amount in Equity Shares of Kalyani Technoforge Limited, at the option to be exercised by Kalyani 
Technoforge Limited. The Preference Shares which are not converted, are redeemable at the end of 7 years from the date of allotment, however Kalyani Technoforge 
Limited can redeem the same after completion of 5 years. 

560,000 - 0% Fully Convertible Unsecured Debentures of  ` 100/- each fully paid up of Azalea Enterprises Private Limited are compulsorily convertible into such 
number of fully paid up equity shares of ` 10/- each at such a price as shall be fixed by the said Company upon the expiry of the period of 5 years from the date of 
their original issue, i.e. on March 29, 2014. However the said Company has extended the tenure of the said debentures for further period of 5 years and accordingly 
the date of conversion shall be March 29, 2024. 

165,000 - 0% Fully Convertible Unsecured Debentures of  ` 100/- each fully paid up of Azalea Enterprises Private Limited are compulsorily convertible into such 
number of fully paid up equity shares of  ` 10/- each at such a price as shall be fixed by the said Company upon the expiry of the period of 5 years from the date of 
their original issue, i.e. on April 4, 2014. However the said Company has extended the tenure of the said debentures for further period of 5 years and accordingly 
the date of conversion shall be April 4, 2024.

NOTE 7 : OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS  
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars     March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 
Security deposit      0.50   0.50 
Bank deposits with maturity more than twelve months     —   103.50   

   Total   0.50   104.00 

NOTE 8 : PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars     Furniture and  
    Fixtures

Gross Block as at March 31, 2019     10.24 

Additions     —   

Disposals / Adjustments     —   

Gross Block as at March 31, 2020     10.24 

Additions     —   

Disposals / Adjustments     —   

Gross Block as at March 31, 2021     10.24 

    ( ` in Million)

Particulars     Furniture and  
    Fixtures

Accumulated Depreciation :

As at March 31, 2019     3.98 

For the year     0.98 
Disposals / Adjustments     —   
As at March 31, 2020     4.96 

For the year     0.97 
Disposals / Adjustments    —

As at March 31, 2021     5.93 

    ( ` in Million)

Particulars     Furniture and  
    Fixtures

Net Block  

As at March 31, 2020     5.27 

As at March 31, 2021     4.31 
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NOTE 12 : PROVISIONS   
 ( ` in Million)  

Particulars       March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

 Provision for employee benefits   
 Provision for compensated absences (refer Note 26)    0.03  0.02 
   Total   0.03  0.02 

NOTE 13 : DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES  

    ( ` in Million)  

Particulars       March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES    

Depreciation and amortisation    (0.24)  (0.13)

Fair valuation of equity shares    711.06   128.69 

On undistributed profits of Associate    511.88   409.89    

Total Deferred tax liabilities      1,222.70   538.45  

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS   

Fair valuation of preference shares     (98.48)  (99.28)

Total Deferred tax assets     (98.48)  (99.28)

Deferred tax liabilities / (assets) - (net)      1,124.22   439.17 

    ( ` in Million)  

Particulars       March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

Deferred tax assets   

Fair valuation of preference shares    0.80   3.75  

     0.80   3.75  

Deferred tax liabilities   

Depreciation and amortisation    (0.11)  (0.10)

On undistributed profits of Associate    101.99   409.89 

    101.88   409.79 

   Total     102.68   413.54  

    ( ` in Million)  

Particulars       March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

Deferred tax liabilities   

Fair valuation of equity shares    582.37   (1.15)

   Total    582.37   (1.15)

NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) :

Changes in Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) in Profi t and Loss [charged / (credited) during the year]

Changes in Deferred Tax Assets  / (Liabilities) in Other Comprehensive Income [charged / (credited) during the year] 

(i)  The Company has compiled this information based on the current information in its possession as at March 31, 2021, no supplier has intimated the 
Company about its status as Micro and Small Enterprises or its registration with the appropriate authority under the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 except as disclosed above.  

(ii)  Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are generally settled within 30 days.  

(iii)  The Company does not owe any moneys to Micro and Small Enterprises registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 
2006.  

NOTE 10 : TRADE PAYABLES
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars     March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises    —     —   

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises    1.42   2.01 

   Total   1.42   2.01 

 NOTE 11 : OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES  
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars     March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

Accrued expenses    4.72   10.34 

Payable to employees    0.05   0.05  

   Total    4.77   10.39

NOTE 9 : ASSETS FOR CURRENT TAX  
    ( ` in Million)

Particulars     March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

Advance Income Tax     2.27   2.32  

   Total   2.27   2.32 
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NOTE 15 : SHARE CAPITAL   

(a) Authorised share capital

Particulars  Equity shares  14% Non Cumulative 
  redeemable preference shares

As at March 31, 2020 :  
Number of shares   12,000,000   60,000,000 
Face value per share  10   10 
Amount ( ` in Million)    120   600 
  
As at March 31, 2021 :  
Number of shares   12,000,000   60,000,000 
Face value per share  10   10 
Amount ( ` in Million)    120   600 

(b) Terms / rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of issued equity shares having a par value of  ` 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per 
share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the 
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive 
surplus assets of the Company, remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts.

(c) Issued and subscribed equity share capital  
   ( ` in Million)  

Particulars  Number of shares    Amount 

As at March 31, 2019  4,365,306   43.65 

Changes in equity share capital  —      —   

As at March 31, 2020  4,365,306   43.65 

Changes in equity share capital  —      —   

As at March 31, 2021  4,365,306   43.65  

(d)  Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

       Particulars Ajinkya Investment  Sundaram Trading & 
 & Trading Company Investment Private Limited

As at March 31, 2020  

% of holding 12.28% 60.94%

Number of shares   536,182   2,660,074 

As at March 31, 2021  

% of holding 12.28% 60.94%

Number of shares   536,182   2,660,074 

NOTE 16 : RESERVES AND SURPLUS   

( ` in Million)  

Particulars     March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020

Retained earnings      2,045.94   1,912.40  

Less : Adjustment to opening balance     —     (261.20)

Add : Profit for the year      345.85   480.38 

Add : Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted     (3.26)  (0.41)

Less : Transfer to statutory reserve fund      (15.59)  (85.23)

As at the end of the year     2,372.94   2,045.94  

General Reserve  as at the beginning and end of the year    2,146.65   2,146.65 

Statutory Reserve Fund  

As at the beginning of the year     376.02   290.79 

Add : Transfer from retained earnings    15.59   85.23 

As at the end of the year     391.61   376.02  

Capital Redemption reserve as at the beginning and end of the year    576.00   576.00 

FVTOCI Equity investments  

As at the beginning of the year    14,896.31   32,800.94 

Add : Fair value gains / (losses) for the year     25,849.93   (17,904.63)

As at the end of the year     40,746.24   14,896.31  

   Total     46,233.44   20,040.92  

NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) :

 NOTE 14 : OTHER NON-FINANCIAL LIABILITIES   

    ( ` in Million)  

Particulars       March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

Statutory dues payable     0.45   0.40

  Total   0.45   0.40 
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Nature and purpose of reserves   

i)  General reserve    

 Under the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956, a general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net profit at a specified percentage in accordance 
with applicable regulations. Consequent to the introduction of the Companies Act, 2013, the requirement to mandatory transfer a specified percentage of 
net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn. There is no movement in general reserve during the current and previous year. 

ii)  Statutory reserve fund    

 As per Section 45-IC(1) of The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, every non-banking financial company shall create a reserve fund and  transfer therein a 
sum not less than twenty per cent of its net profit every year as disclosed in the profit and loss account and before any dividend is declared. 

iii)  FVTOCI Equity investment reserve   

 The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of investment in equity shares in other comprehensive income. These changes are 
accumulated within the FVTOCI investment reserve within equity. The Company will transfer amounts from the said reserve to retained earnings when 
the relevant equity shares are de-recognized.

NOTE 17 : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS   

( ` in Million)  

Particulars     Year ended Year ended 
   March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Dividend received on shares, designated at FVTOCI    —      379.87 
Dividend received on shares, designated at FVTPL    —     14.28 
    —     394.15 
Interest on fixed deposit designated at amortized cost    33.37   8.85 
Profit on sale of investments designated at FVTPL    0.67   3.29 

  Total 34.04 406.29

  

NOTE 18 : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS - NET GAIN / (LOSS) ON FAIR VALUE CHANGES

( ` in Million)

Particulars     Year ended Year ended 
   March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Net gain / (loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss  

- preference shares    45.44   5.01 

- mutual funds    0.16   8.45 

Total net gain / (loss) on fair value changes     45.60   13.46 

Fair value changes  

- Realized   —     —   

- Unrealized    45.60   13.46 

Total net gain / (loss) on fair value changes    45.60   13.46 

NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) :

NOTE 19 : OTHER INCOME  

( ` in Million)

Particulars     Year ended Year ended 
   March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Provision no longer required    —   1.70    

  Total  —   1.70

NOTE 20 : EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES  

   ( ` in Million)  

Particulars     Year ended Year ended 
   March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Salaries and wages (refer Note 26)    16.80   13.90 

  Total 16.80 13.90

NOTE 21 : DEPRECIATION 

( ` in Million)
Particulars     Year ended Year ended 
   March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Depreciation    0.97   0.98 

  Total 0.97 0.98
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NOTE 22 : OTHER EXPENSES   

( ` in Million)  

Particulars     Year ended Year ended 
   March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Legal and professional fees    6.24   7.96 

Fees and subscription    0.80   0.86 

Sundry expenses    0.10   0.10 

Printing and stationery    0.14   0.69 

Advertisement expenses    0.18   0.19 

CSR expenditure  (refer Note 32)    1.91   2.37 

Audit fees (refer Note 25)    0.34   0.33 

Communication    —     0.23 

Brand usage fees    0.56   0.56 

Provision for impairment in investment in associate    —     15.66 

Rates & Taxes    3.88   —   

Directors Commission    1.20   9.60  

  Total   15.35   38.55  

NOTE 23 : TAX EXPENSE

( ` in Million)  

Particulars     Year ended Year ended 
   March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Current tax    14.30   —   

Add : MAT credit utilized    4.35   4.85 

    18.65   4.85 

Deferred tax expense    0.69   3.65 

Taxation in respect of earlier years(MAT)    (4.37)  (4.78)

Deferred tax expense on undistributed profits of Associate    103.26   148.69   

  Total    118.23   152.41  

  

Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profi t multiplied by statutory tax rate  

    ( ` in Million)  
Particulars    Year ended Year ended 
   March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Profit before tax   464.08 632.79

Applicable tax rate   27.82% 27.82%

Computed tax expense    129.11   176.04 

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income :  

Non-deductible expenses    4.97   8.12 

Income exempt from tax    —     (126.86)

Provision for diminution in investment    —     4.36 

Profit on sale of investments    0.71   2.90 

Share in profit of associate    (103.26)  (56.45)

Taxation in respect of earlier years    (4.37)  (4.78)

Deferred tax expense on undistributed profits of Associate    103.26   148.69 

Others    (12.19)  0.39 

Income tax expense   118.23 152.41

NOTE 24 : EARNINGS PER SHARE

  

Particulars     Year ended Year ended 
   March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020  
Net profit / (loss) after tax ( ` in Million)    345.85   480.38 

Weighted average number of equity shares    4,365,306   4,365,306 

Basic and diluted earning per share of nominal value of  ` 10/- each     79.23   110.05  

NOTE 25 : PAYMENT TO AUDITORS  

  ( ` in Million)  

Particulars     Year ended Year ended 
   March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

As auditor :  

Audit fees   0.33 0.33

Certification fees   0.01 —

  Total 0.34 0.33

NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) :
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NOTE 26 : PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS   

    ( ` in Million)  

Particulars      March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

Compensated absences (refer Note A)    0.03   0.02

A   Compensated absences   

 The compensated absences cover the CompanyÊs liability for privilege leave.   

I   Significant assumptions   

 The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows :   

Particulars       March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020  

Discount rate   6.80% 6.90%

Salary escalation rate   7.00% 7.00%

Retirement age    VP and above   VP and above 

    - 60 years   - 60 years 

    Others - 55 years   Others - 55 years 

Mortality rate    Indian Assured  Indian Assured

   Lives Mortality Lives Mortality

    (2012-14)   (2012-14)

   Ultimate    Ultimate 

Attrition rate   5.00% 5.00%

B Provident Fund   

 Defined contribution : The Company also has certain defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to provident fund in India for worker at the 
12% of basic and dearness allowance as per regulations. The contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the government. 
The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual  nor any constructive obligation. The expense 
recognized during the period towards defined contribution plan is  ` 0.013 Million (March 31, 2020 : ` 0.004 Million).  

C Risk Exposure   

 Provision of a defined benefit scheme poses certain risks, some of which are detailed hereunder, as companies take on certain long term obligations to 
make future benefit payments.  

1) Liability Risks   

 a. Asset-Liability Mismatch Risk  

  Risks which arises if there is a mismatch in the duration of the assets relative to the liabilities. By matching duration with the defined benefit 
liabilities, the company is successfully able to neutralize valuation swings caused by interest rate movements. Hence companies are encouraged 
to adopt asset-liability management.  

 b. Discount Rate Risk  

  Variations in the discount rate used to compute the present value of the liabilities may seem small, but in practise can have a significant impact 
on the defined benefit liabilities.  

 c. Future Salary Escalation and Inflation Risk  

  Since price inflation and salary growth are linked economically, they are combined for disclosure purposes. Rising salaries will often result 
in higher future defined benefit payments resulting in a higher present value of liabilities especially unexpected salary increases provided at 
managements discretion may lead to uncertainties in estimating the increasing risk.   

2) Unfunded Plan Risk  

 This represents unmanaged risk and a growing liability. There is an inherent risk here that the company may default on paying the benefits in adverse 
circumstances. Funding the plan removes volatility in companyÊs financial and also benefit risk through return on the funds made available for the plan.

NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) :

NOTE 27 : INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 

Name of entity : Hikal Limited
Place of business : Mumbai, India
% of ownership interest : 31.36%
Relationship : Associate
Accounting method : Equity method
Quoted fair value : March 31, 2021 ` 5,548.77 Million
  March 31, 2020 ` 2,706.72 Million
Carrying amount : March 31, 2021 ` 1,917.30 Million
  March 31, 2020 ` 1,550.67 Million    

The company is engaged in the manufacturing of various chemical intermediates, specially chemicals, active pharma ingredients and contract research 
activities.

Commitments and contingent liabilities in respect of associates  
 ( ` in Million)

     March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020  

Commitments :    

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed 

on capital account and not provided for net of advances    370.94    259.36 

Total Commitments     370.94   259.36 

Contingent liabilities :    

Income Tax     75.68   74.13 

Excise Duty     12.58   12.58 

Value Added Tax (VAT)    3.51   3.51 

Central Sales Tax (CST)    0.88   0.88 

Total Contingent liabilities    92.65   91.10
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Summarized fi nancial information for associates     
Summarized balance sheet

( ` in Million)
     Hikal Limited

   March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Total non-current assets    10,346.24   9,932.20 

Total current assets    8,785.98   7,747.63 

Total non-current liabilities    3,230.34   3,551.60 

Total current liabilities    6,567.87   5,963.21 
Net Assets    9,334.01   8,165.02 

    
Reconciliation to carrying amounts 

( ` in Million)

   March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Opening net assets    8,167.30   7,562.11 

Profit for the year    1,331.40   844.35 

Other comprehensive income    (14.45)  (1.33)

Dividends paid    (147.96)  (197.28)

Dividend distribution tax   —     (40.55)

Closing net assets    9,336.29   8,167.30 

GroupÊs share in %   31.36% 31.36%

GroupÊs share in INR    2,927.86   2,561.26 

Capital Reserve on acquisition    (1,078.01)  (1,078.01)

Share in other reserves not accounted as per the accounting policy adopted 
by the Group (Refer note 1A(a)(iv))    67.48   67.42 

Carrying amount    1,917.33  1,550.67 

Summarized statement of profi t and loss  
( ` in Million)

   March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Revenue     17,254.17   15,109.65 
Profit for the year    1,331.40   844.35 
Other comprehensive income    (14.45)  (1.33)
Total comprehensive income     1,316.95   843.02 
Dividends received    46.40   61.87  

Individually immaterial associates 
( ` in Million)

   March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 
Aggregate carrying amount of individually immaterial associates    —     —   

Aggregate amounts of the groupÊs share of :    —     —   

Profit / (loss) from operations     —     —   

Other comprehensive income    —     —   

Total comprehensive income    —     —   

Share of unrecognized losses of Lord Ganesha Mineral Private Limited   71.06  68.07 

NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) :

Note 27 B : Disclosure in terms of Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013

 Particulars   Net Assets (i.e. Total Assets  Share in profit / (loss) Share in other Share in total
 minus  Total Liabilities )   comprehensive income  comprehensive income

  As a % of   ` in Million As a % of  ` in Million  As a % of ` in Million As a % of ` in Million
 consolidated   consolidated  consolidated  consolidated
 net assets       profit / (loss )       other comprehensive   total comprehensive
     income         income       

1. Parent         
Kalyani 
Investment 
Company 
Limited  97%  44,937.28  23%  77.95  100%  25,849.93  99%  25,927.88 
        
2. Associate 
( Domestic )         
Hikal Limited  4%  1,851.69  91%  314.30  0%  (3.26) 1%  311.04 
Lord Ganesha 
Minerals 
Private Limited  0%  —    0% —    0%  —    0%  —   
        
Consolidation 
adjustments (1%)  (511.88) (14%)  (46.40) 0%  —    0%  (46.40)
        
 Total 100%  46,277.09  100%  345.85  100%  25,846.67  100%  26,192.52
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NOTE 28 : RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS    

A)   Name of the  related parties and nature of relationship : 

 Holding Company        Ownership interest held by the Company 

    March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

 Sundaram Trading and Investment Private Limited   60.94% 60.94%

 The principal place of business of the holding company is India.    
    
(i)  Where control exists : 
 Associate         Ownership interest held by the Company 

    March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

 i)  Hikal Limited   31.36% 31.36%

 ii) Lord Ganesha Minerals Private Limited   22.50% 22.50%

 The principal place of business of the associates is India and the Company has accounted for its investment in associates at cost. 

(ii)  Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year :

 Entities under common control :
 i)  Bharat Forge Limited
 ii)  Kalyani Technoforge Limited
 iii) Kalyani Technologies Limited 
 iv) Kalyani Steels Limited

 Key Management Personnel   

 i) Mr.Amit B. Kalyani, Chairman, Non-Executive Director

 ii) Mrs.Deeksha A. Kalyani, Non-Executive Director

 iii) Mr.B.B. Hattarki, Independent Director

 iv) Mr.R.K. Goyal, Independent Director

 v) Mr.S.K. Adivarekar, Independent Director 

 vi) Mr.S.G. Joglekar, Independent Director

 vii) Mrs.Shruti A. Shah, Independent Director 

 viii) Mr.Sanjay Yewale, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

 ix) Mr.Akshay Chikodikar, Company Secretary  
    ( ` in Million)  
 a  Remuneration    March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

 i) Mr.Amit B. Kalyani, Chairman, Non-Executive Director    —     4.80 
 ii) Mrs.Deeksha A. Kalyani, Non-Executive Director    —     3.00 
 iii) Mr.B.B. Hattarki, Independent Director    0.40   0.60 
 iv) Mr.S.K. Adivarekar, Independent Director    0.40   1.20 
 v) Mrs.Shruti A. Shah, Independent Director    0.40  —

 vi) Mr.Sanjay Yewale, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer*    11.52   11.36 
 vii) Mr.Akshay Chikodikar, Company Secretary    0.49   0.49 

    Total   13.21   21.45  

 * Excludes GST amounting to ` 2.07 Million (Previous year ` 2.04 Million)
 ( ` in Million)  

(iii)  Compensation to key management personnel    March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

  Nature of transaction  
  Short-term employee benefits    12.01   11.85 
  Post-employment benefits    —      —    
  Other-long term benefits    —      —    
  Termination benefits    —      —    
  Share base payment    —      —      

  As the future liability for gratuity is provided on an acturial basis for the Company as whole, the amount pertaining to individual is not ascertainable 
  and therefore not included above.   
    ( ` in Million) 

(iv) Transactions with related parties    March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

 i) Dividend received from Hikal Limited    46.40   61.87 

 ii) Dividend received from Bharat Forge Limited    —     379.87 

 iii) Dividend received from Kalyani Technoforge Limited    —     14.28 

 iv) Reimbursement of expenses to Kalyani Steels Limited    13.59   13.40 

      59.99   469.42

 v) Purchase of Preference Shares from Kalyani Technoforge Limited    —     132.00 

 vi) Branding fees paid to Kalyani Technologies Limited    0.56   0.56 

 vii) Provision for diminution in value of investment in Lord Ganesha Minerals Private Limited    —     15.66 

     ( ` in Million)  

(v) Outstanding balances with related parties      March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

 i) Mr.Amit B. Kalyani, Chairman, Non-Executive Director   —      4.80 
 ii) Mrs.Deeksha A. Kalyani, Non-Executive Director    —      3.00 
 iii) Mr.B.B. Hattarki, Independent Director    0.40   0.60 
 iv) Mr.S.K. Adivarekar, Independent Director    0.40   1.20 
 v) Mrs.Shruti A. Shah, Independent Director    0.40   —   
 vi) Kalyani Steels Limited    3.70   1.92  

    Total   4.90   11.52   

NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) :
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NOTE 29 : FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost   
( ` in Million)  

Particulars      March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020 

Financial assets   

Security deposits    0.50   0.50 

Cash and cash equivalents    0.47   1.71 

Bank balances other than above    562.33   248.87 

Other financial assets    —     103.50 

Total fi nancial assets    563.30   354.58 

Financial liabilities   

Trade payables    1.42   2.01 

Accrued expenses    4.72   10.34 

Total fi nancial liabilities    6.14   12.35  

   

Financial assets and liabilities classifi ed as FVTPL    
( ` in Million)  

Particulars    March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Investment in preference shares    521.36   475.92 

Investments in mutual funds    8.61   189.28  

Financial assets and liabilities classifi ed as FVTOCI    
( ` in Million)  

Particulars    March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Investment in equity shares    44,390.83   17,958.52  

i) Fair value hierarchy   

 This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognized and measured 
at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the  
reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into three levels prescribed under the accounting 
standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.    

( ` in Million) 

    Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Investment in preference shares   

March 31, 2021  —  —     521.36 

March 31, 2020  —  —     475.92  

Investments in mutual funds   

March 31, 2021   8.61   —     —   

March 31, 2020   189.28   —     —      

Investment in equity shares   

March 31, 2021   39,269.15   —     5,121.68 

March 31, 2020   15,713.16   —     2,245.36   

Level 1 :  Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.     

Level 2 :   The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use 
of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument 
are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.   

Level 3 :   If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3.   

ii) Valuation process   

The finance department of the Company includes a team that performs the valuations of assets and liabilities required for financial reporting purposes. 
This team appoints external valuation experts whenever the need arises for Level 3 fair valuation. This team reports directly to the Chief Financial 
Officer (CFO). Discussions of valuation processes and results are held between the CFO and the valuation team at least once every year, in line with the 
CompanyÊs annual reporting period.

iii) Fair value of fi nancial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost 
 The carrying amounts of such financial assets and liabilities are a reasonable approximation of their fair values.      

iv)  Fair value measurements using signifi cant unobservable inputs (Level 3)    
  The following table presents the changes in Level 3 items :      

( ` in Million)  

Particulars  Preference shares   Equity Shares   Total 

 As at April 1, 2020   475.92   2,245.36   2,721.28 

 Gains / (losses) recognized in profit or loss   45.44   —     45.44 

 Gains / (losses) recognized in other comprehensive income   —     2,876.32   2,876.32 

 As at March 31, 2021   521.36   5,121.68   5,643.04 

NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) :
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NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) :
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The sensitivity analysis on account of inputs used for fair valuation are as follows :      

Particulars    March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

1.  Equity Shares of Saarloha Advanced Materials Private Limited :  

  EV / EBIDTA multiple & Price / Sales Multiple   

  Increase by 10%   108.07 —

  Decrease by 10%   (111.64) —

  Increase by 5%   — 21.04

  Decrease by 5%   — (28.19)

  

2.  Equity Shares of KSL Holdings  Private Limited :  

 Fair Value of investments  

 Increase by 5%    68.35 22.61

 Decrease by 5%     (22.56)  (21.01)

  

3.  Equity Shares of Khed Economic Infrastructure Private Limited :  

 Rate per acre  

 Increase by 5%   32.97 32.85

 Decrease by 5%    (32.97)  (32.85)

  

4.  Preference Shares of Baramati Speciality Steels Limited :  

 Discount rate  

 Increase by 1%    (0.87)  (0.51)

 Decrease by 1%    0.87   0.51 

  

5.  Preference Shares of Kalyani Technoforge Limited :  

 Discount rate  

 Increase by 1%    3.98   (9.30)

 Decrease by 1%    (3.98)  9.30  

NOTE 30 : FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Presented below is a description of the risks (market risk and liquidity risk) together with a sensitivity analysis, performed annually, of each of these risks 
based on selected changes in market rates and prices. These analyses reflect managementÊs view of changes which are reasonably possible to occur over a 
one-year period.    

I Market Risk    

 A)  Foreign currency risk    

  Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange 
rates.  The Company does not have foreign currency transactions and thereby is not exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency 
transactions.

II Liquidity Risk   

 Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit 
facilities to meet obligations when due and to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, Company treasury 
maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the CompanyÊs 
liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. In addition, the CompanyÊs liquidity management policy involves 
projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these debt financing plans.

 i) Maturities of fi nancial liabilities  

 The tables below analyse the CompanyÊs financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities :

       (` in Million)  

   March 31, 2021  Less than 1 year  More than 1 year

 Non-derivative   

 Trade payables   1.42    —   

 Accrued Expenses   4.72    —       

 

     (` in Million)  

   March 31, 2020  Less than 1 year  More than 1 year 
  Non-derivative  

   Trade payables   2.01    —   

   Accrued Expenses   10.34    —   

NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) :
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III Credit Risk   

 The Company is exposed to credit risk from its activity of giving loans and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and other 
financial instruments.

 The balances with banks are subject to low credit risk since the counter-party has strong capacity to meet the obligations and where the risk of default 
is negligible or nil. Hence, no provision has been created for expected credit loss for credit risk arising from these financial assets.  

 A  Loans

   i) Expected credit loss for loans  
      ( ` in Million)  

  Particulars   March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

  Gross carrying amount   50.07   50.07 

  Expected loss rate  100% 100%

  Expected credit losses (loss allowance provision)   50.07   50.07 

  Carrying amount of loans (net of impairment)   —    —      

   ii) Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - loans    
 ( ` in Million)  

    Loss allowance as on April 1, 2020    50.07 

    Changes in loss allowance   —   

    Loss allowance as on March 31, 2021    50.07

   iii) Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - loans  

    ( ` in Million)  

    Loss allowance as on April 1, 2019    50.07 

    Changes in loss allowance   — 

    Loss allowance as on March 31, 2020    50.07 

NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) :

NOTE 31 : CAPITAL MANAGEMENT   

The CompanyÊs objectives when managing capital are to safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns 
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.                                                                                                                  

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual operating plans and long-term product and other strategic investment plans. 
The funding requirements are met through equity. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid 
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets.                                                                                                                    

The capital structure of the Company is as follows :  

      ( ` in Million)  

Particulars    March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Share Capital    43.65   43.65 

Other Equity    46,233.44   20,040.92  

    Total   46,277.09   20,084.57  

Debt equity ratio    —  —

NOTE 32 : CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)   

    ( ` in Million)  

Sr. No.  Particulars   Year ended  Year ended
    March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year    1.91   2.37 

    Total  1.91   2.37 

b)   (i) Amount spent during the year      
  ( ` in Million)  

Sr. No.  Particulars    2020-21 

     In cash Yet to be paid
        in cash 

1  Promotion of education   
  -  Donation     1.91   —  

    Total  1.91   —   

b)   (ii)    Amount spent during the year

    ( `  in Million)  

Sr. No.  Particulars   2019-20 

     In cash Yet to be paid
         in cash 

1  Promotion of education   

  -  Donation     2.37    —   

    Total  2.37    —      
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NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) :

As per our attached Report of even date 

For  P G Bhagwat LLP   On behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.101118W/W100682

Abhijeet Bhagwat   Akshay Chikodikar Sanjay Yewale Amit B. Kalyani R.K. Goyal

Partner  Company Secretary Chief Executive Officer  Chairman Director 
Membership No.136835  &  Chief Financial Officer

Place : Pune  Place : Pune

Date  : May 18, 2021  Date  : May 18, 2021

However, the Company does not exercise significant influence in any of the above entities, as demonstrated below :  

i) The Company does not have any representation on the Board of Directors or corresponding governing body of the investee.  

ii) The Company does not participate in policy making process.   

iii) The Company does not have any material transaction with the investee.   

iv) The Company does not interchange any managerial personnel.   

v) The Company does not provide any essential technical information to the investee.

Accordingly, the above entities have not been considered to be Associate Companies.

NOTE 37

Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to conform with current yearÊs classification / disclosure.

NOTE 33 : SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The Board of Directors 
has been identified as the chief operating decision maker.    

The Company is in the business of making investments in group companies, focusing on earning income through dividends, interest and gains on investment 
held, which is a single segment in accordance with Ind AS 108 „Operating segment‰ notified pursuant to Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015 as amended.   

All assets are in India. 

NOTE 34 :   

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (ÂCodeÊ) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment received Indian Parliament approval 
and Presidential assent in September, 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India and subsequently on November 13, 2020 draft rules were 
published and invited for stakeholdersÊ suggestions. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not notified. The Company will assess 
the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period of the Code becomes effective. 

NOTE 35

The Company has considered the impact of COVID 19 pandemic on its business operations and financial results based on its review of current indicators of 
future economic conditions. However, the impact assessment of this pandemic is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and 
duration and accordingly, the Company will continue to monitor any material changes of future economic conditions. 

NOTE 36

Section 2(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 defines Associate Company in relation to another company as a company in which that other company has a 
significant influence, but which is not a subsidiary company of the company having such influence and includes a joint venture company. As per explanation 
to Section 2(6), significant influence means control of at least twenty percent of paid-up equity share capital and convertible preference share capital or of 
business decisions under an agreement. 

The Company holds investments in below mentioned entities which by share ownership are deemed to be Associate Companies :

Sr. No.  Name of the company  Ultimate holding as on March 31, 2021 

i) Dandakaranya Investment and Trading Private Limited 23.92% 

ii) Hastinapur Investment and Trading Private Limited 23.92% 

iii) Dronacharya Investment and Trading Private Limited 23.92% 

iv) Campanula Investment and Finance Private Limited 23.91% 

v) Cornflower Investment and Finance Private Limited 23.91% 
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